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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group” or “Consun
Pharmaceutical”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Company was listed successfully on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 19 December 2013 and has just completed
the third full financial year after that. Looking back to
2016, it was a year in which challenges and opportunities
coexisted for the pharmaceutical industry. With the concerted
efforts of the Group’s management and all staff members,
Consun Pharmaceutical continued to maintain its strong
growth momentum as always and achieved a revenue
of RMB1,223,488,000 and profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB307,526,000 during
the year, representing an annual growth of 47.2% and
23.2% respectively, thereby repaying its shareholders with
remarkable results for their continued trust and support to the
Company.

The concept of “Healthy China” has become a national-level
strategy under the “13th Five Year Plan”, indicating that
the national leaders have attached great importance to the
healthcare industry and national health has further become the
focus of public concern. In the past year, the macro-economy
has entered into the “new normal’” phase and the policies
relating to the pharmaceutical industry was constantly
changing; however, by continuously exploring the sales
channels, improving its business layout and product structure,
strengthening the capability in technology research and
innovation, optimising the internal talent management, Consun
Pharmaceutical has laid a solid foundation for its long-term
development in the future.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

The sales of kidney medicines of Consun Pharmaceutical
amounted to RMB734,476,000 in 2016, representing a
year-to-year growth of 13.8% as compared to last year. Uremic
Clearance Granules (“UCG”), a flagship product of Consun
Pharmaceutical, maintained its strong leading position in the
market of oral modern Chinese medicines for kidney diseases.

The sales of Gadopentetic Acid Dimeglumine Salt Injection,
Consun Pharmaceutical’s leading product in the medical
contrast medium market, amounted to RMB125,033,000 for the
year, representing a year-to-year growth of 2.9% as compared
to last year, maintaining Consun Pharmaceutical’s market
position in medical contrast medium for magnetic resonance
imaging.

CONTROLLING YULIN PHARMACEUTICAL

Consun Pharmaceutical has also been actively expanding its
business. It successfully won the bid to acquire 15% equity
interests in Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.
(“Yulin Pharmaceutical”’) in August 2015 and continued to
increase its total equity interests held in Yulin Pharmaceutical
to 45.27% through the second and third rounds of acquisitions
in the second half of 2015. After the fifth round of acquisition
in June 2016 and the completion of the fourth round of
acquisition after approval by the Company’s shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 19 July 2016,
Yulin Pharmaceutical became a 54.63% owned subsidiary of
the Group. Subsequently, the Group completed the sixth and
seventh rounds of acquisitions of and also capital injection in
Yulin Pharmaceutical and increased its total equity interests in
Yulin Pharmaceutical to 72.62% as at 31 December 2016.

6 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EEHNZEEEEFRAF]

EEAFEEREMHNEEWRAR2016FEZIAR
#5734,476,0007C - WA F R IEK13.8% © &
BEREMEEERKRSERN ([REF]) KA
SR MR B R M IR K BT IS RE L

REAECHMAIREAKGE LB TSN EL
EntLEBREARIGTRHEEERSFRARE
125,033,0007T + RAFRILLIER2.9%  #IFER
BD 29 SETE L SRR A (R ST LL B SR AR O AT o

R EM RS

RERBENERRBER - R2015F8 A KI5
BEATMBEEEEGREFTAR ([EHRE])
15%f% 4+ WHE2015F T FME _HmRE=
T BB E MR ENERE45.27% °
MR201656 A E hipiEER kB R NRKEES
RABPRER2016F7 198 BITH AR EIFFIK
SLEREBRB EMBEEFUKAREEIFTR
54.63%KIMIB AR o Ib1& - ANEE TR E EAHRE
BOETTENRRFECRERIEE - RIEBFEMN
SRS E2016F12A31HEN72.62% °



Yulin Pharmaceutical is a well-established traditional Chinese
medicine manufacturing enterprise principally engaged in
the research and development, production and sales of
Chinese medicines and natural medicines. It will capitalize
on the policy of the “Guidance Opinion on the Reform and
Innovative Development of Well-established Traditional
Enterprises” promulgated by 16 PRC government authorities
including the Ministry of Commerce. The acquisition of Yulin
Pharmaceutical could facilitate the integration of resources
of Consun Pharmaceutical and Yulin Pharmaceutical in terms
of marketing, innovative R&D, manufacturing and supply
chains, so as to complement each other with their respective
strengths. On the other hand, leveraging on the rich cultural
heritage in the pharmaceutical sector, enriched product mix
and solid market foundation of both parties, it is believed that
the cooperation would achieve a win-win situation by fully
realising the synergy between the parties, further exploring
respective potential and enhancing market competitiveness.

Yulin Pharmaceutical was the first merger and acquisition
target of Consun Pharmaceutical after listing. It demonstrated
Consun Pharmaceutical’s prudent approach in its capital
operation as well as its commitment in being accountable
to the Company and its shareholders. 2016 was the
first year Consun Pharmaceutical obtained control of
Yulin Pharmaceutical. Under the leadership of the new
operation team, Yulin Pharmaceutical actively promoted
the integration with Consun Pharmaceutical in terms of
strategy, organization, business and management, adjusted
the systems or mechanisms which might not fit for market
development, pushed forward the transformation of “Brand
& Terminal” marketing mode, strengthened the operation
and management, segmentised the cost control of all levels,
achieving leapfrog development along with integrations
and adjustments. In 2016, revenue (including value added
tax) realized amounted to approximately RMB570,000,000
(excluding value added tax revenue approximately
RMB487,409,000), representing a year-to-year growth of over
30%, and its operating profits realised the most satisfactory
growth rate in Yulin Pharmaceutical history. Looking forward,
we will continue to seek quality partners for cooperation,
with a view to strengthening and expanding the Group’s core
businesses and thus maximising profits.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (“R&D”) AND
INNOVATION

1. The results of the evidence-based medical research
of UCG were widely disseminated and recognized

On 14 July 2016, the press conference on the results
of the evidence-based medical research of UCG was
held in Wuhan. According to the research results, UCG
is a safe and effective cure to slow down the renal
hypofunction of chronic kidney disease patients, which
is of milestone significance in the field of treatment
of chronic kidney disease with traditional Chinese
medicine, offering a better pharmaceutical choice for
the 120 million chronic kidney disease patients and
general physicians and extending patients’ life cycles
with improved quality of life. At the “2016 Medical
Market Annual Conference” held in August 2016, the
evidence-based medical research of UCG project was
accredited as one of the “Ten Best Marketing Cases
in the Medical Market of 2016”. UCG was listed on the
“List of Healthy China’s Brands” and “List of Chinese
Pharmaceutical Brands” respectively.

2. Fruitful results on the research and development of
new medicines

Palliative & Anti-diarrheal Soft Capsule, a new
digestive medicine, has passed the on-site production
inspections and has obtained the approval for
production. It was launched in the market in 2016, which
is expected to further extend our product lines, optimise
our product structure and support the sustainable and
healthy development of Consun Pharmaceutical.
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The assessments of pharmacology, efficacy and safety
on the new medicine for the treatment of diabetic kidney
disease have been completed. Its application for clinic
trial has been submitted to the Department of Food
and Drug Administration of Inner Mongolia Autonomous
Region, pending the approval of Department of
Food and Drug Administration of China. Meanwhile,
US Food and Drug Administration has also officially
processed the case and completed the pre-assessment
engagement on technology. Production and delivery of
the ingredients and granules of lanthanum carbonate
were completed smoothly, and the trial-production
has commenced. As for the Kidney Repair and Edema
Alleviation Granules, its second-round joint R&D with
Hong Kong Baptist University is now underway, which
has obtained a subsidy of HK$2,750,000 from the
Innovation and Technology Commission of Hong Kong.

lopamidol injection for diagnostic imaging has passed
the on-site reviews on research and production as well
as on-site production inspections. It is currently on the
queue for review by the Centre for Drug Evaluation of
the PRC, and it is expected to obtain the approval for
production in 2017. Procedures such as prescription,
quality standard setting and production inspection for
lomeprol injection were completed as scheduled.

In May 2016, the “Ultrasound Micro-bubble Contrast
Medium Project” in collaboration with Chongging
University of Medical Sciences was commenced,
aiming to undertake the R&D of the first ultrasound
micro-bubble contrast product, namely “Huashengxian”.

The R&D of hydrogel patch, the innovative form of
Zheng Gu Shui, has unprecedentedly obtained a
subsidy of RMB1,500,000 from the “Special Projects of
Science and Technology” of the Guangxi Autonomous
Region. This is the first time in the past 10 years Yulin
Pharmaceutical obtained support for its core medicine
products from pharmaceutical innovation fund of the
government of Guangxi Autonomous Region.
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Chairman’s Statement
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In 2016, the Group submitted a total of 9 applications
for invention patents, of which 3 patents have been
granted. As at the end of 2016, the Group has been
granted a total of 22 invention patents, including 11
international patents. In particular, the patent of our
Kidney Repair and Edema Alleviation Granules was
granted the Excellence Award at 18th China Patent
Granting Ceremony in December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has two
provincial “Engineering Technical Research Centre”,
two provincial “Enterprise Technical Research
Centre”, two “Academician Expert Workstation”, one
“Postdoctoral Scientific Research Workstation” and
“Consun Chinese Medicines Research Centre for
Renal Diseases” of Hong Kong Baptist University

In the “Academician Expert Work Station for Biomedical
Technology” of Consun Pharmaceutical located
in Tongliao, Inner Mongolia, CHEN Xiangmei (an
academician of Chinese Academy of Engineering)
has entered the station to commence work, which has
provided new opportunities for Consun Pharmaceutical
to promote technological innovation and also represents
new chances for economic development in the region.

As of today, the Group has two provincial “Engineering
Technical Research Centre” (“Medicine Research
Engineering Centre for Renal Diseases” in Guangdong
Province and “Modern Chinese Medicine Engineering
Technical Research Centre” in Guangxi), two provincial
“Enterprise Technical Research Centre” (Consun
Pharmaceutical (Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd. was
recognized as an “Autonomous Region-level Enterprise
Research Centre” in 2012 and Yulin Pharmaceutical was
recognized as an “Autonomous Region-level Enterprise
Technical Centre” in Guangxi in 1998), two “Academician
Expert Workstation” (“Academician Expert Work Station
for Biomedical Technology” and “Guangxi Academician
Workstation”, where on-site guidance are offered by
Academician CHEN Xiangmei and Academician LIU
Changxiao, respectively), one “Postdoctoral Scientific
Research Workstation” (“Postdoctoral Scientific Research
Workstation” of Consun Pharmaceutical) and “Consun
Chinese Medicines Research Centre for Renal Diseases”
of Hong Kong Baptist University.
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Upholding the strategy of “based on specialties and
complemented by generics”, Consun Pharmaceutical will
continue to push forward the vertical development of flagship
products for kidney disease and diagnostic imaging, as well
as rapidly expand its existing series of products of women
and children, bone fracture, skin, liver and gallbladder and
digestive system, so as to develop its “1+6” product structure
with utmost effort, with multiple leading specialities and full
range of treatment capability in order to be able to provide
comprehensive, reliable health management solutions to
customers.

1. Development of Products for Kidney Disease. UCG,
the Group’s flagship product, maintained its strong
leading position among the oral modern Chinese
medicines for kidney disease in China. The market of
Kidney Repair and Edema Alleviation Granules tends to
expand quickly. Looking ahead, the Group will cover the
whole course of chronic kidney disease treatment with
“Kidney Repair and Edema Alleviation Granules, UCG,
diabetic kidney disease and a dialysis drug for the
treatment of hyperphosphatemia”, expand the domain
of treatment with drugs for the treatment of nephrotic
syndrome, and integrate kidney tonic products such
as Renal Supplement and Cure Oral Solution, Jin-gang
Pill, Gejie Dabu Wan (Gecko Nourishing Pill) and Gecko
Kidney Nourishing Capsule, so as to continuously
strengthen the Group’s leading position in the field of
kidney disease treatment.

2. Development of Imaging Products. Currently, there
are three segments in the medical contrast medium
market, namely magnetic resonance image (“MRI”),
computer tomography (“CT”) and ultrasound imaging.
The Group will expand its coverage in the imaging
domain and consolidate its brand influence while
maintaining its leading position in the market of MRI
with Gadopentetic Dimeglumine Injection.
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Chairman’s Statement
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It is expected that the ultrasound micro-bubble contrast
medium product will apply for drug registration in
the second half of 2017. Currently, the writing of
registration materials and inspection of raw materials
for the reference agent have been completed, and
are now preparing the testing methods and optimizing
the prescription and production process. It is to note
that, the main component of ultrasound micro-bubble
is micro-bubbles with diameter of 2-10um, which is not
only suitable for disease diagnosis and therapeutic
effect evaluation, but also for disease treatment when
loaded with drugs or genes, i.e. precisely targeted
treatment with drug-loaded micro-bubbles following
confirmed diagnosis to achieve “integration of diagnosis
and treatment”. This achievement is expected to open
a new era of the development of diagnostics and
therapeutics, and the successful development and
marketing of this product is expected to turn the Group
into a high-tech medical solution provider.

Development of Products for Women and Children.
The market share of the Group’s blockbuster Iron
Dextran Oral Solution in the field of iron supplement
for women and children has been growing rapidly,
and is expected to reach a record high. In the future,
the Group will integrate Zhixueling (blood-stopping)
Capsule, Dahuangzhechong Tablet, Fuketiaojing
(menstrual period adjusting) Tablet, Yijunfujie (bacteria
suppressing) Solution and Tongbaogixing Tea to forge
a series of products covering women and children
disease treatment and health care.

Development of Products for Bone Fracture. Zheng
Gu Shui is an “old brand” and “good product” widely
recognised by the Chinese people and has been inducted
into the Catalogue of Safe Drugs for the Chinese. The
Group has started a product upgrade scheme based
on Zheng Gu Shui, aiming to enhance the technology
ingredient and efficacy of the product and emerge with
a fresh look. The pharmacology and pharmacodynamics
study for the innovative hydrogel patch of Zheng Gu Shui
has completed, which is expected to be in the market in
2018. The development project of Shiduging ointments
has also been officially approved.
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5. Development of Products for Liver and Gallbladder
Treatment. Jigucao Capsule is one of the Group’s
proprietary products, which is a traditional Chinese
medicines for the nourishment and protection of liver.
In the future, the Group will expand the coverage of
its liver and gallbladder series of products and expect
them to become a main driver of sales volume.

6. Development of Skin Products. Shiduqging
demonstrates a unique concept and significant
effects. In the future, the Company will explore the
possibility of combined administration with Pidanfen and
extend the scope of application of its products while
strengthening the effect treatment of noxious dampness
indications with Shiduging.

7. Development of Products for Digestive System.
In June 2016, the Group’s major innovative product
Palliative and Anti-diarrheal Soft Capsule commenced
production in its production base in Inner Mongolia.
As a pure Chinese herbal preparation with registered
intellectual property rights, it will form for the base
of the Group’s digestive drugs with products like
Caoxiangweikang Capsule, Hawthorn Chrysanthemum
Granules, Anwei Tablet and Shidishui, and as
an important participant, the Group will continue
penetrating the highly-potential digestive drug market.

Being a controlling shareholder of Yulin Pharmaceutical,
Consun Pharmaceutical is well-positioned to integrate the
resources of both itself and Yulin Pharmaceutical in marketing,
innovation and R&D, production and manufacturing and supply
chains, so as to complement each other with their respective
strengths; on the other hand, leveraging on the rich cultural
heritage in the pharmaceutical sector, enriched product mix
and solid market foundation of both parties, it is believed that
the cooperation would achieve a win-win situation by fully
realizing the synergy between the parties, further exploring
respective potential and enhancing market competitiveness.

&
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

Yulin Pharmaceutical will continue its transformation based
on the marketing model of “Brand & Terminal”, strengthen
its strategic cooperation with the core chains, enhance its
terminal promotion capacity and effectiveness and further
consolidate the foundation for its development. It will strive to
enable a leading position for its key products in the market
and establish the “1+6” product structure with all its efforts,
so as to achieve substantial breakthrough in its products for
women and children, bone fracture, skin care and liver and

gallbladder treatment.

OVERALL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

The Group has been adhering to the product strategy of
“based on specialties and complemented by generics”
and the marketing strategy of “in-depth distribution, market
segmentation and classified management”, and will strive to
complement the Company and Yulin Pharmaceutical with their
respective strengths. In the future, the Group will continue to
expand its territory relying on the industrial chain and strive
to become a supplier of comprehensive healthcare solution.

Specifically speaking:

1. “Based on specialties and complemented by generics”
— collaborative development of specialist medicine
and general medicine business, making a significant
breakthrough in 2016 in developing the general drug
market relying on Yulin Pharmaceutical while focusing
on the kidney and contrast specialist prescription drug
market, in order to further balance the development of
specialist drug and general drug business.

2; The brands of “Consun” and “Yulin” endorsing each

other and marching ahead side by side. In line with

the guideline of parallel development of “Consun” and

“Yulin”, the Group will continue to optimise the Consun

brand through event propagation and academic

promotion while renovating Yulin brand based on the

OTC

as to enhance the brand recognition.

“Brand & Terminal” marketing transformation, so
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8, Domestic and foreign trade business taking off side
by side. In the future, the Group will accelerate the
development of its international business and strive to
achieve a balanced development of both foreign trade
and domestic sales relying on Yulin Pharmaceutical’s
foreign trade platform and customer relationship.

4. Extension and optimization of the healthcare industry
chain. In the future, the Group will continue to push
forward the merger and acquisition and integration to
achieve full coverage in the treatment field. Besides, the
Group will continue to expand the territory of medicine,
raw materials and healthcare, and spur synergies.

In summary, by completing the above business layout,
fostering sales channels, optimising product structure,
enhancing research and innovation capacities, strengthening
internal management and gradually realized balanced
development of prescription and non-prescription drugs,
the Group is now on the tract of sustainable and healthy
development.

Chairman
AN Yubao
Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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Financial Highlights
MBEE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2016 2015 Change
20165 20154 #1{t
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
Results ES ARET T ARETIT (%)
Revenue N 1,223,488 831,108 47 2%
Profit before taxation F Bl s ) 403,452 314,782 28.2%
Profit for the year attributable 7" Bz IR
to equity shareholders FEAE S 5 A
of the Company 307,526 249,689 23.2%
Earnings per share s Epl
(expressed in RMB Yuan) (AARETTIR)
— Basic — &K 0.32 0.25 28.0%
— Diluted — 8 0.32 0.25 28.0%
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2016 2015 Change
20165 20154 24
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
Financial Position B AR R AR®T T ARETTT (%)
Total assets BEE 2,759,055 1,917,891 43.9%
Total equity farEm 2,061,051 1,636,755 25.9%
Net assets per share BREEE
(expressed in RMB (AERAREITIR)
Yuan per share) 2.12 1.64 29.3%
Net debt to equity ratio FEIEE SR Net cash Net cash Net cash
FEE FiRE FIRE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year of 2016, the Group’s
RMB1,223,488,000, representing an increase of approximately
47.2% as compared with RMB831,108,000 for 2015.
Categorized by product lines, sales of kidney medicines

revenue was

recorded an increase of 13.8% as compared with last year;
sales of medical contrast medium recorded an increase of
2.9% as compared with last year; The increase in revenue of
these products was mainly attributable to the Group’s efforts
to develop the market segments intensively, to extend our
coverage over hospitals and physicians, so as to increase
sales of the Group’s medicines. Sales of other medicines
recorded a significant increase of 464.4% as compared with
last year, which was mainly attributable to the successful
completion of acquisition of Yulin Pharmaceutical and the
improvement in its operations.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year of 2016, the Group’s gross profit was
RMB911,023,000, representing an increase of 35.9% as
compared with RMB670,566,000 for 2015. The increase in
gross profit was mainly attributable to the increase in sales.
For the year of 2016, the Group’s average gross profit margin
was 74.5%, representing a decrease of 6.2% as compared
with the 80.7% for the last year, which was mainly attributable
to the increases in sales proportion of other medicines,
whereas their average gross profit margin is smaller than
kidney medicines and medical contrast medium.

Other Income

For the year of 2016, the Group’s other income was
RMB6,104,000, which mainly included the government grants
and interest income. Compared with the other income of
RMB31,329,000 for 2015, the decrease was mainly attributable
to the decrease in interest income due to the drops in balance
at bank during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBNWmR DN

Distribution Costs

For the year of 2016, the Group’s distribution costs was
RMB374,365,000, representing an increase of 44.5% as
compared with RMB259,043,000 for 2015. The increase in
distribution costs was mainly attributable to the Group’s
dedication in expanding the marketing and distribution
networks (including that of Yulin Pharmaceutical) by recruiting
additional marketing staff and increasing marketing and
academic promotion activities during the year.

Administrative Expenses

For the year of 2016, the Group’s administrative expenses
were RMB141,666,000, representing an increase of 15.2%
as compared with RMB122,946,000 for 2015. The increase
in administrative expenses was mainly attributable to the
consolidation of Yulin Pharmaceutical’s administrative
expenses during the year.

Finance Costs

For the year of 2016, finance costs were RMB1,509,000,
representing an increase of 242.2% as compared with
RMB441,000 for 2015. The increase was mainly attributable
to the consolidation of Yulin Pharmaceutical’'s finance costs in
respect of its short-term bank loans.

Income Tax

For the year of 2016, the Group’s income tax expense was
RMB83,795,000, representing an increase of 28.7% as
compared with RMB65,093,000 for 2015. The effective tax
rate (income tax expense divided by profit before taxation)
increased slightly by 0.1% from 20.7% for 2015 to 20.8% for
2016, mainly due to the increase in expenses not deductible
for tax purposes during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Annual Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company and Earnings Per Share

For the year of 2016, the Group’s annual profit was
RMB307,526,000, representing an increase of 23.2% as
compared with RMB249,689,000 for 2015. The earnings
per share (basic and diluted) increased by approximately
RMBO0.07 (28%) from RMBO0.25 for 2015 to RMB0.32 for 2016.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Trade Debtors and Bills Receivable

As at 31 December 2016, the balance of trade debtors
and bills receivable was RMB557,275,000, representing
an increase of 53.2% as compared with the balance of
RMB363,703,000 as at 31 December 2015. Trade receivables
turnover days for 2016 were 137.4 days, increased by 6.6
days from 130.8 days for 2015. It was mainly attributable to
the consolidation of Yulin Pharmaceutical’s business, whereas
its customers on average have longer credit periods.

Inventories

As at 31 December 2016, the balance of inventories was
RMB140,974,000, representing an increase of 98.5% as
compared with the balance of RMB71,014,000 as at 31
December 2015. Inventory turnover days for 2016 were 123.8
days, decreased by 17.7 days from 141.5 days for 2015.
It was mainly attributable to the enhancement of inventory
management.

Trade Payables

As at 31 December 2016, the balance of trade payables
was RMB79,733,000, representing an increase of 100.5%
as compared with the balance of RMB39,760,000 as of 31
December 2015. Trade payables turnover days for 2016 were
69.8 days, decreased by 16.8 days from 86.6 days for 2015.
It was mainly attributable to speed up in processing trade
payable as a result of improvement in cash flow from operating
activities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIEEHTEﬁ& *ﬁ'

Cash Flows

For the year of 2016, the Group’s net cash generated from
operating activities was RMB449,177,000, representing an
increase of 144.1% as compared with the RMB184,043,000
for 2015, which was mainly attributable to the increase in
the Group’s revenue and the increase in accrued expenses
payable after the year end of 2015. For the year of 2016, the
Group’s net cash generated from investing activities was
RMB91,888,000, as compared with the net cash used in
investing activities of RMB455,806,000 for 2015, the change
was mainly due to the consideration for acquisition of Yulin
Pharmaceutical was mainly paid in 2015, and there was net
cash acquired through acquisition of Yulin Pharmaceutical,
net of cash paid during 2016. For the year of 2016, the
Group’s net cash outflow from financing activities was
RMB358,341,000, representing an increase of 337.4% as
compared with the RMB81,919,000 for 2015, which was mainly
attributable to increase in payments for dividends and shares
buy-back, and the increase in percentage of equity interest
in Yulin Pharmaceutical after it became a subsidiary of the
Group.

Cash and Bank Balances and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and bank balances
were RMB672,711,000, representing an increase of 37.3% as
compared with RMB489,987,000 as at 31 December 2015,
which was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue and
the completion of acquisition Yulin Pharmaceutical during the
year. The Group did not have any interest bearing borrowings
as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained
a healthy liquidity position throughout the year of 2016. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing
ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the financial
status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
other commitments can meet its funding requirements from
time to time. Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are
mainly denominated in RMB and HKS.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio (total interest bearing borrowings over
shareholders’ equity) of the Group as at 31 December 2016
was 0% (31 December 2015: 0%).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in RMB and
HK$. The majority of assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB and HK$, and there are no significant assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies. The Group is
subject to foreign exchange rate risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
which are denominated in a currency other than HK$ or RMB,
which are the functional currencies of the major operating
companies now comprising the Group. During the year, the
Group did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its
exposure to foreign currency risk.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year of 2016, the Company repurchased
23,489,000 (2015: 2,243,000) ordinary shares from the market
and cancelled those shares. Other than this, there were no
significant changes in the Company’s capital structure. The
Company’s capital comprises ordinary shares and other
reserves.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIEEHTEﬁ& *ﬁ'

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately RMB25,671,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB8,096,000).

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group hired a total of 2,108
1,303 employees). The
total staff costs (including the directors’ remuneration) for
the year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB199,551,000
(2015: RMB154,127,000). The salaries of the employees were
determined with reference to individual performance, work

employees (31 December 2015:

experience, qualification and current industry practices.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to
the Group’s performance as well as individual’'s performance.
Other staff benefits include contributions to Mandatory
Provident Fund and various retirement benefits schemes in
Hong Kong, including the provision of pension funds, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance for employees who are employed by our Group
pursuant to the PRC rules and regulations and the prevailing
regulatory requirements of the PRC. The salaries and benefits
of the Group’s employees are kept at a competitive level and
employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis
within the general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus
system, which is reviewed annually. The Group also operates
a share option scheme adopted by the Company on 2
December 2013 (“Share Option Scheme”) and a share award
scheme adopted on 21 July 2014 (“Share Award Scheme”),
where options to subscribe for shares and share awards may
be granted to the Directors and employees of the Group.

The Group made considerable efforts in continuing education
and training programs for its staff, to continuously enhance
their knowledge, skills and cooperation spirit. The Group
regularly provided internal and external training courses for

relevant staff according to their needs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Except for investments in subsidiaries and associated
companies, during the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group did not hold any significant investment in equity interest
in any other company.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, as at the date of this
report, the Group did not have other future plans for material
investments and capital assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Save as the transactions disclosed in note 15 to the financial
statements “Investments in subsidiaries”, the Group did
not have any other material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies during 2016.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any pledged
assets (31 December 2015: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2015: Nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Management continues to manage the Group’s key risk
exposures, including operational risks (e.g. ensuring high
quality of medicines products, safety in the production
process and efficiency in the distribution processes), financial
risks (e.g. through budget control and cash flow management)
and compliance risks (ensuring the relevant rules and
regulations are complied with) on a daily basis. Management
also pays close attention to the recent development of national
policies in respect of pharmaceutical industry, which is a key
uncertainty facing the Group, and formulates and adjusts the
Group relevant policies accordingly on a timely basis.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to achieving environmental
sustainability and incorporating it in the Group’s daily
operations. Other than complying with all relevant
environmental rules and regulations, management always
encourage water, energy and materials saving and recycling
behaviours which are considered in the performance appraisal
process.

The environmental, social and governance report in
compliance with appendix 27 of the Listing Rules will be
issued in due course.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
During the year of 2016, there was no incidence of significant

non-compliance of laws and regulations that is relevant to the
Group’s operations.
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DIRECTORS

The Board is fully responsible for management and operations. EZ=EZ#

REERRNER

The following table sets forth information regarding our

Directors as at the reporting date.

B=

Directors and Senior Management Profile
EERGREEAEBER

AEEEREERR - TRINEES

Name Appointment Date Age
" ZEBH FiR
Executive Director

HITES

Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman) 24 January 2011

THE R E (£/E) 2011461 H24R 74
Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer) 24 December 2012

RiEw+ (48#) 2012%12A24H 52
Professor ZHU Quan 24 December 2012

REHIE 2012912 424H 77
Non-executive Director

FHITES

Mr. WANG Shunlong 24 December 2012

FIERESEAE 201212 A24H 53
Mr. LIN Sheng 1 April 2016

MR T A 201654 A1H 42
Independent Non-executive Director

BYFHTES

Mr. SU Yuanfu 2 December 2013

LB E 2013F12A2H 71
Mr. FENG Zhongshi 2 December 2013

BT ELEE 2013%12H2H 58
Ms. CHENG Xinxin 2 December 2013

BRIRIR&Z £ 20139 12A2H 64
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EENEREEANEBE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. AN Yubao (%Z#H8E), aged 74, is our chairman and an
executive Director and a Controlling Shareholder. He was
appointed as our Director with effect from 24 January 2011.
He is also the chairman of Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“GZ Consun”) and Consun Pharmaceutical
(Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd. (“Inner Mongolia Consun”) and a
director and the legal representative of Guangzhou Consun
Pharmaceutical Research Company Limited (“Consun
Research”). Mr. AN is primarily responsible for the overall
management, operations, investment and the charting and
reviewing of corporate directions and strategies of our Group.

Mr. AN has over 10 years of experience in medical education
and approximately 20 years of experience in the business
of the pharmaceutical industry. He has served various key
positions, such as executive director, chairman and legal
representative of GZ Consun since its establishment. Mr. AN
served as the vice chairman of BEREHZHRLEmEEEH L
(Guangdong Southern Lee KumKee Commercial Information
Centre) from November 1995 to February 1999. From July
1996 to December 1998, Mr. AN started his career in the
pharmaceutical industry by serving as the chairman and
legal representative of BER M A F WML EERERERAF
(Guangdong Southern Lee KumKee Nutrition Health Products
Co., Ltd.) and representing FEIARBHNEE —FEZKRE (the
First Military Medical University of the People’s Liberation
Army of the PRC) as one of its shareholders. Mr. AN served as
the minister and vice president respectively of 7 ERIAE
(R ARMBRES —FEKE) (Southern Medical University)
(formerly known as the First Military Medical University of the
People’s Liberation Army of the PRC)) from November 1991
to August 2001 and served as the vice president of FE A
RFENEERERAER (Jinan Military General Hospital of
the People’s Liberation Army of the PRC) from 1987 to 1988.
Between 1981 and 1987, Mr. AN worked at various units of the
PRC People’s Liberation Army and was mainly responsible for
hygiene and hospital management.

Mr. AN graduated from FEIARBEHNERZEZPT (the Logistics
Engineering College of the People’s Liberation Army of the
PRC) in 1981 and majored in commanding. Mr. AN also
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
Asia International Open University (Macau) (now known as City
University of Macau) in November 2007.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. LI Qian (3215), aged 52, is our executive Director and
chief executive officer and one of the founders of the Group,
and is also an executive director and the general manager of
Yulin Pharmaceutical, primarily responsible for formulating and
implementing the corporate strategies, overseeing production
activities, business development, research and administrative
management of our Group.

Ms. LI has over 26 years of experience in the business of
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. LI
worked at Southern Medical University from October 1989
to April 1998. Ms. LI joined our Group in April 1998 as
the associate director of general manager’s office, human
resources manager and deputy executive general manager
of GZ Consun. Ms. LI has also served as a director and the
general manager (which was redesignated as president in
May 2008) of GZ Consun since November 1999.

Ms. LI obtained a master’s degree in business administration
at Asia International Open University (Macau) in November
2007. She has obtained 3 invention patents and published
research papers on the “Chinese journal of Clinical Medicine”
(P B RG /R B2 5)). Ms. LI was awarded as Excellent
Private Entrepreneur ({8 & K & & % XR) by Tongliao City
People’s Government of the Inner Mongolia Autonomous
Region in July 2008, and a Model Worker (42 &) by Inner
Mongolia People’s Government in April 2010. In December
2010, she obtained the Third Prize for Technological Progress
in the Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region (A5 & B AR R #
S =) . In December 2011, she was recognised as Famous
Entrepreneur in Pharmaceutical Industry of Guangdong
Province (BRE B 41T¥EE X K) by Guangdong Province
Pharmaceutical Industry Association (AR A ZETEHE) . In
April 2014, she was elected as Chinese Pharmaceutical Brand
Woman (B (B 277%) MEZ %) . In February 2017, she
was accredited as Excellent Entrepreneur in Pharmaceutical
Industry of Guangdong Province (BR&A BEITEEFTLER) .
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EENEREEANEBE

Ms. LI is a local registered pharmacist of Guangdong province
(=R A BEJE 2460 ) recognised by Guangdong Food and Drug
Administration (ER&E R M EMEE EEB) . Since March
2012, she has been appointed as a member of the First Expert
Committee for Kidney Disease and Blood Purify of China
Medical Women's Association (5 — &/ Bl % 22 Al = B i 7%
MM#EFIEEREZE L) . In October 2014, she was elected
as the deputy councillor of Expert Committee for Professional
Committee of Chinese Medicine Product Development and
Incubation of China Association of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (FEF G eh EERRAEEIEEEEXZEE). In
August 2016, she was elected as the deputy councillor of the
First Expert Committee for Chinese Medicine Development
and Research for Kidney Disease of China Association of
Traditional Chinese Medicine (Bl /R 2415 & 55 — iF B £ 8%
BiiZtEHEZEE) , and a member of the Pharmacoeconomics
Expert Committee (¥ ESEHELZE T ) , respectively.
Professor ZHU Quan (4<=), aged 77, is our executive Director.
He was appointed as our Director with effect from 24
December 2012. Professor ZHU is also a director and the chief
scientist of GZ Consun and the general manager of Consun
Research. Professor ZHU joined our Group in August 2006 as
the chief scientist of GZ Consun. Professor ZHU is primarily
responsible for the product research and development of our
Group.

Professor ZHU has over 30 years of experience in teaching
and research at medical school and approximately 10 years
of experience in the business of pharmaceutical industry.
Professor ZHU has served as professor and Ph.D. candidate
supervisor at B P&l £ K & (Macau University of Science
and Technology) since September 2003. He served various
positions, such as a deputy director of medicine department, a
director of BIZK &b+ 24232 B 5= (National Standardization
Laboratory for Chinese Herbal Pharmacology), a Ph.D.
candidate supervisor at FERFELANZ (Nanjing University
of Chinese Medicine) between October 1981 and November
2005. Professor ZHU also served as an expert for BIZR# A =F
B2 iTZ B€ (Science & Technology Commission of Ministry
of Education), an assessment expert for B B ARIEH &£
FIEZE (Department of Life Science of National Natural Science
Foundation) and a drug evaluation expert in Jiangsu Province
and in the PRC.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Professor ZHU graduated from # E#IEft (China Academy of
Traditional Chinese Medicine) (now known as A ErR B& R} 28T
(China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences)) in November
1981 with a master’'s degree in pharmacology of traditional
Chinese medicine.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. WANG Shunlong (EJiE#E), aged 53, is our non-executive
Director who joined our Group in June 2008. He was
appointed as our Director with effect from 24 December 2012.
Mr. WANG is also a director of our subsidiaries, GZ Consun,
and Kangyuan.

Mr. WANG has over 20 years of experience in finance, investment
and enterprise management. Mr. WANG with Hony Capital Limited
from January 2005 to June 2015. Mr. WANG founded 3H Health
Investment (HK) Limited in 2016 and is acting as its founding
partner. Mr. WANG graduated from j&5# K2 (Tsinghua University)
in July 1985 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering and
subsequently in April 1991 with a doctorate degree in engineering.
Mr. WANG currently serves as an executive director of £ 225 [&
AFR/A7"] (CSPC Pharmaceutical Group Limited) which is mainly
engaged in pharmaceutical product development, production and
sale and listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1093).
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EENEREEANEBE

Mr. LIN Sheng (#%), aged 42, is our non-executive Director
who joined our Group in April 2016. He was appointed as our
Director with effect from 1 April 2016.

Mr. LIN has over 16 years of experience in operations, product
marketing and enterprise management, and has extensive
expertise in information technology. Mr. LIN joined Hony Capital in
April 2003 and currently is one of its managing directors * mainly
responsible for the medicine, medical services and telecom,
media and technology industry research and investment. Prior to
joining Hony Capital, Mr. LIN worked with Lenovo Group Limited
from April 2000 to April 2003, where he was responsible for
handheld device product line. He was responsible for strategic
planning, market positioning, product design and business line
operations. Mr. LIN acted as a non-executive director of China
soft International Limited which is listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code:354) from July 2011 to April 2015.
Mr. LIN graduated from Tsinghua University in 1999 and obtained
a dual bachelor degree in engineering physics and business
administration from Tsinghua University, a master degree in
economics from Tsinghua University and an executive master
degree in business administration from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business respectively.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SU Yuanfu (8:701&), aged 71, is our independent non-executive
Director. He joined our Group on 2 December 2013 when he
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Mr. SU graduated from F R ARBHEFENEZE KNE (the
Fourth Military Medical University of the People’s Liberation
Army of the PRC) in December 1969 and obtained a master’s
degree in radiopathology at the same university in December
1982. Mr. SU served various positions at the People’s
Liberation Army of the PRC. From January 1970 to August
1979, he served as a doctor at 7HiE & & A BT (General
Hospital of Tibet Military Region). Between January 1984 and
November 1995, Mr. SU served as the director of science
and research office, the dean of academic affairs, the deputy
superintendent and superintendent of the first affiliated
hospital respectively at the Fourth Military Medical University
of the People’s Liberation Army of the PRC. From November
1995 to June 1998, he served as the director general of #&
% B 20 B 4 2RI/ (Technology Training Bureau of the
Department of Health of the General Logistics Department).
Between June 1998 and June 2004, Mr. SU served as the
director of the department of medical administration and
the deputy superintendent respectively at R E 4R (the
General Hospital of the People’s Liberation Army). Mr. SU has
been a standing director of FEIETHE (Chinese Hospital
Association) since October 2004.
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Mr. FENG Zhongshi (5{P%E), aged 58, is our independent
non-executive Director. He joined our Group on 2
December 2013 when he was appointed as an independent

non-executive Director.

Mr. FENG is a lawyer qualified in the PRC. He is currently a
partner of It EMEAREMEBELFT (Beijing Gaolie Law Firm).
He graduated from FRBIEEARE (China University of Political
Science and Law) in July 1986 with a bachelor's degree in
law. From July 1986 to January 1993, Mr. FENG worked at
5 B)REAAEE (the Department of Justice of Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region). He served as a lawyer at A5 & & E2AD
EFT (Inner Mongolia Jingji Law Office) (now known as #&tt
ZEIEEFT (Jingshi Law Office)) from 1993 to 1995. Between
1996 and 2002, Mr. FENG served as a partner at A5 52
ZEMEFT (Inner Mongolia Huicong Law Office). From 1996
to 2003, he also served as the head of legal department of
It REREREFNAER2AA (Beijing Hui Cong International
Information Co., Ltd.). Between 2002 and 2009, Mr. FENG
served as a lawyer of b R ImAERIEHFT (Beijing ZhongRui
Law Firm). Between June 2011 and January 2013, he served
as a partner of It R & E)EEMEH AT (Beijing Jin Li Law Firm).

Ms. CHENG Xinxin (AXfXfX), aged 64, is our independent
non-executive Director. She joined our Group on 2
December 2013 when she was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director.

Ms. CHENG is a senior accountant recognised by ER&EAE
E2 (Department of Human Resource of Guangdong Province).
She has been a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since October 1994, a registered financial
planner since September 2002, a fellow of the Institute of Public
Accountants of Australia since December 2004 and a member of
the Chartered Association of Business Administrators of the United
Kingdom since March 2005. Ms. CHENG graduated form BFA
E (Jinan University) majoring in trade economy in July 1985. Ms.
CHENG obtained a master's degree in business administration
from Murdoch University in March 2000 and obtained a doctor
of philosophy degree in management by distance learning from
a joint degree programme with European University of Ireland,
University of International Business and Economics and Institute of
Cost and Executive Accountants in March 2005.
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Ms. CHENG has been a director of RBRBELBRADF
(Chang Cheng Insurance Brokers Limited) since June 2003,
the chairman of BN FE EKTI (LB EIIF L (Pearl
River Training Centre, Yuexiu district, Guangzhou City)
since October 2003, a director of EINEBEEHEEZERTEE
fR A 7] (Guangzhou Saibao Lianrui Information Technology
Company Limited) since November 2003 and had been the
principal partner of EMEZEEFTRIEHFT (Guangzhou Xingtai
Accounting Firm) from March 2005 to June 2014 and has been
a salaried consultant of InZEEFAIEHAT (Ruihua Certified
Public Accountants) since July 2014. Ms. CHENG served as,
from November 2000 to July 2016, served as a director of
BETREBEEEER QG (Kang Yuan International Consultant
Limited); from February 2002 to July 2016, a director and
president of EM &7 ERE M B R Q7 (Allwell Company
Limited); from November 1994 to January 2001, successively
as a deputy general manager in the department of enterprise
management, financial department and department of
strategic development of & & B8 ¥ & B 2 & (Yuehai
Enterprise Group Company); from April 1993 to November
1994, as a deputy general manager of FANREREREER
‘A\] (Flying Dragon International Investment Limited); from
July 1975 to April 1993, as deputy section chief, section chief
and deputy director of R & BB EE (Department of Finance of
Guangdong Province).

Save as disclosed, each of our Directors has not been a
director of any other publicly listed company during the past
three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. TANG Ning (F %), aged 51, is a vice president of GZ
Consun. Mr. TANG joined our Group in July 1998 as a
business manager. Between July 1998 and June 2011,
Mr. TANG served various positions at GZ Consun, such as
business manager, regional marketing manager, marketing
director, and president assistant. He has been the vice
president of GZ Consun since June 2011. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. TANG worked at ZF|EZF#L A7 (Cili County
Baifang General Company) between October 1987 and June
1998. Mr. TANG graduated from R EZF: (Hunan University
of Commerce) in June 1986 majoring in marketing.

Mr. ZHOU Shangwen ([&[#3X), aged 47, is a vice president
of GZ Consun. Mr. ZHOU joined our Group in April 2004 as a
marketing manager for Guangdong province. Between April
2004 and June 2013, Mr. ZHOU served various positions at
GZ Consun, such as regional marketing manager, marketing
director for our kidney drugs and president assistant. He
has been the vice president of GZ Consun since July 2013.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. ZHOU worked at BEMmpEEl
% Bt (Guangzhou Brain Hospital) between July 1995 and
March 1997. Between August 1997 and April 2004, Mr. ZHOU
successively worked at js # FE(RE)R B R A Al (Servier
(Tianjin) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.). Mr. ZHOU graduated from
It RERIAE (Beijing Medical University) (now known as 1t

o LLE

(Peking University Health Science Centre)) in July
1995 with a bachelor’s degree in mental health.

Ms. FANG Lanfen (57%), aged 54, is a vice president of
GZ Consun. Ms. FANG joined our Group in July 1999 as a
business manager. Between July 1999 to July 2013, Ms. FANG
served various positions at GZ Consun, such as business
manager, regional marketing manager and marketing director.
She has been the vice president of GZ Consun since July
2013. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. FANG worked at [E$E
8% B BT (Guzhen County Hospital) between July 1985 and
September 1989, and at ZHAKFIEERT (Water Resource
Department of Anhui Province Hospital) between September
1989 and July 1999. Ms. FANG graduated from $FiRBEELE
(Bengbu Medical College) with a bachelor’s degree in medical
in July 1985.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. FANG Peicheng (53&#k), aged 38, is the chief financial
officer and president assistant of GZ Consun. Mr. FANG joined
our Group in August 2010 as an audit manager. He has been
the audit and legal director since January 2013 ' president
assistant of GZ Consun since January 2015, and the chief
financial officer since June 2016. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. FANG worked as audit supervisor at Fafe{t TRRMHERA
Al (Xilong Chemical Company Limited) between May 2008 and
July 2010.

Mr. FANG graduated from FZE T2 (Nan Hua College
of Industry and Commerce) major in computer accounting in
July 2002, and graduated from FEAMAE(ER)GH+EH
% (China University of Petroleum (Eastern China) Accounting
Profession) with a bachelor’'s degree in management in July
2008. Mr. FANG has the Audit Professional Qualification
(Intermediate) granted by FZEARZEME A ERMALE (R
FZEB8 (Ministry of Human Resources and Social Securities of
the People’s Republic of China). He is also a member of The
Institute of Internal Auditors.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. YAU Chi Ming (f£ERf), aged 50, has been our company
secretary since he joined our Group in March 2013. Mr. YAU
is responsible for our company secretarial matters and he has
over 20 years of experience in finance and accounting. Mr.
YAU is a certified public accountant (Practising) and is a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
is also acting as independent non-executive director of three
companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including Cosmo
Lady (China) Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2298),
Common Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited
(stock code: 286) and Chinese Energy Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8009). From April 2015 to June 2016, Mr. YAU acted as
independent non-executive director of CircuTech International
Holdings Limited (formerly known as TeleEye Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 8051). Prior to joining our Group, he worked at an
international audit firm from August 1992 to November 1994
and from May 1995 to October 2012, during which he was
promoted to partner in July 2007. Mr. YAU graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in December 1992 with a bachelor’s
degree in social sciences.
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Mr. GAO Haien (=/8%), aged 48, has been appointed as
the joint company secretary of the Company for a term of
three years with effect from 15 April 2014. Mr. GAO is our
Board secretary and the board secretary of GZ Consun. Mr.
GAO joined our Group in August 2007 as the board secretary
of GZ Consun. Mr. GAO has been the legal representative
of GZ Consun, Inner Mongolia Consun and Kangyuan since
March 2013. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. GAO successively
served as a general manager of the accessories store and
the assistant to headquarters general manager of J&IIFF I8
T R:EHEFR AR (Shenzhen Sunyes Tools Co. Ltd.) from
January 2006 to August 2007. Between July 1995 and January
2006, Mr. GAO successively served as a senior engineer of
B E T XEM (IDT Data System Factory) and a technology
manager of FIITREBEBIEEHL B R AR (Shenzhen Aomeidi
Digital Technology Co. Ltd.).

Mr. GAO graduated from FREIfEZKEZ (China University of
Mining and Technology) in July 1992 with a bachelor’'s degree
in engineering and subsequently obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics at the same university in January 1994.
He obtained a master’'s degree in business administration at
FR R B R BUA A E (Zhongnan University of Economics and
Law) in June 2012. Mr. GAO holds BHEHEKFLRIBE
(Z#) (Professional Certificate in Securities (Band I1)) granted
by FEESZ£WE (Securities Association of China) and %
=@ MWMELKEZ (Board Secretary Certificate) granted by
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He is also a member of Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one
of the top priorities of the Company. The Board believes that
good corporate governance is one of the areas that lead to
the success of the Company and in balancing the interests
of shareholders, customers and employees, and the Board
is devoted to ongoing enhancements of the efficiency and
effectiveness of such principles and practices.

The Company has adopted and complied with the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in Appendix 14
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report” to the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2016.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
THE DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The
Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all the Directors have complied with the required
standards of dealing as set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 31 December 2016.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board currently comprises
8 Directors, of which three are executive Directors, two
are non-executive Directors and three are independent
non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board during
2016 and up to the date of this report is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman)

Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer)
Professor ZHU Quan

Non-executive Directors
Mr. WANG Shunlong
Mr. LIN Sheng (appointed on 1 April 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. SU Yuanfu

Mr. FENG Zhongshi

Ms. CHENG Xinxin

Biographical details of current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on
pages 25 to 36.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

During the year of 2016, there were three independent
non-executive Directors representing one third or more of the
Board, and one of them, Ms. CHENG Xinxin has accounting
professional qualifications. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and thus are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and
managing the Company’s affairs, including the responsibilities
for the adoption of long-term strategies and appointing and
supervising senior management to ensure that the operation
of the Group is conducted in accordance with the objective
of the Group. The Board is also responsible for determining
the Company’s corporate governance policies which include:
(i) development and review of the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; (ii) review and monitoring
of the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; (iii) review and monitoring
of the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and Directors; and (iv) review of the Company’s
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for
guiding and monitoring the Company in discharging its
duties, certain responsibilities are delegated to various Board
committees which have been established by the Board to
deal with different aspects of the Company’s affairs. Unless
otherwise specified in their respective written terms of
reference as approved by the Board, these Board committees
are governed by the Company’s articles of association
(“Articles of Association”) as well as the Board’s policies
and practices (in so far as the same are not in conflict with
the provisions contained in the Articles of Association). With
the new composition of members of the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee, the independent
non-executive Directors will be able to effectively devote their
time to perform the duties required by the respective Board
committees.
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The Board has also delegated the responsibility of
implementing its strategies and the day-to-day operation to
the management of the Company under the leadership of
the executive Directors. Clear guidance has been made as
to the matters that should be reserved to the Board for its
decision which include matters on, inter alia, capital, finance
and financial reporting, internal controls, communication with
shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and
corporate governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The financial statements set
out on pages 89 to 207 were prepared on the basis set out in
Note 1(b) to the financial statements. Financial results of the
Group are announced in a timely manner in accordance with
statutory and/or regulatory requirements. The declaration of
reporting responsibility issued by the external auditor of the
Company on the Company’s financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 75 to 88.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times
a year (does not include obtaining Board consent through
circulating written resolutions) at approximately quarterly
intervals, to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operational and financial performance of the Company. Other
Board meetings will be held when necessary. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication, of a
majority of Directors. During the year of 2016, the Board held
4 meetings.
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GENERAL MEETINGS

An annual general meeting was held by the Company on 27
May 2016, and an extraordinary general meeting was held by

Corporate Governance Report
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the Company on 19 July 2016. Details of Directors’ attendance & ' S&=ZFHFEeEMEBWOT ¢
are as follows:
No. of No. of
attendance/ attendance/
No. of board No. of general
meetings meetings
HERE HERE
Director 2= EEEERRY BRERAEXE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman) TEELE (£/F) 4/4 2/2
Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer) RIER L (#831) 4/4 2/2
Professor ZHU Quan REZHIHK 4/4 0/2
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. WANG Shunlong FIEBE S AE 4/4 2/2
Mr. LIN Sheng (appointed on MEEF A (R20164F 3/3 0/2
1 April 2016) 481 HEZE)
Independent Non-Executive VEHITES
Directors
Mr. SU Yuanfu BT E 4/4 0/2
Mr. FENG Zhongshi BHELEE 4/4 2/2
Ms. CHENG Xinxin BRIk 22 £ 4/4 2/2

At least 14 days’ notices are given to all Directors in advance for
attending regular and other Board meetings. Meeting agendas
and other relevant information are provided to the Directors at
least 3 days before the date of the Board meetings. All Directors
are consulted to include additional matters in the agenda for
Board meetings and have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures,
and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
prior notice by any Director.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

By providing all Directors with relevant guideline, updated
materials and training regarding the relevant laws and
applicable regulations, the duties and responsibilities of being
a Director, and relevant disclosure requirements, the Group
ensure that each Director understands and is familiar with the
relevant rules and the latest development. The Group has also
provided funding to each Director, to encourage Directors to
participate in various continuous professional development
courses, to ensure that each Director continue to possess the
necessary knowledge and skills to take part in and contribute
to the Board’s affairs.

For the year of 2016, the Directors’ participation in continuous
professional development training is as follows:

BFHEEXRRE

AEBEBAMEESRMHAMAMER  ER
ERCEREFNBEME ENMBRHREERD
HHEAE S - EMERRIEN - NEREREFY
BB EBRUNRHER - AEETER
REERHKE FPHEF2HEFZEFERX
BRAE  UBRREEFHELBMFE2AEL
R EERESHRIEHER -

R20165FE - EFLHENBEFTEZREIWN
T

Training related to
corporate governance,
regulatory development

and other relevant

professional topics

FRLEER EERER

Director BEE Ht A= £ EERIEI
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman) ZEELE (£/E) vV
Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer) REZL (HAFE) vV
Professor ZHU Quan REHFZ Vv
Non-Executive Directors EHITES

Mr. WANG Shunlong TIBgELE vV
Mr. LIN Sheng (appointed on 1 April 2016) B (R20169F4 81 HEZ(T) v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. SU Yuanfu BoTfEtE v
Mr. FENG Zhongshi BB LE Vv
Ms. CHENG Xinxin BRIk + Vv

All Directors have provided record of training attendance and
the Company will continue to arrange and/or fund the training
in accordance with paragraph A.6.5 of the Code Provisions.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION

All Directors have entered into letters of appointment with the
Company for a specific term of three years from the date of
Listing, subject to re-election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting one third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation. However,
if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third shall be the
name of retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire in
each year will be those who have been longest in the office
since their last re-election or appointment but as for persons
who became or were last re-elected as Directors on the same
day those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. Such retiring Directors may,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting. All Directors appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of shareholders after their appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall
then be eligible for re-election.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 2 December 2013 with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of the
Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board on
regular basis; identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members; assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and make recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
re-election of Directors. When identifying suitable candidates
for directorship, the Nomination Committee will carry out the
selection process by making reference to a series of criteria as
bases, including but not limited to skills, experience, education
background, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of the proposed candidates, and taking
into consideration of the Company’s Board Diversity Policy. All
candidates must be able to meet the standards as set forth
in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who
is to be appointed as an independent non-executive Director
should also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Qualified candidates will then be
recommended to the Board for approval.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee RAFHEM B REZEEH=EKEH
comprises three members and two of them are independent X' ERMA/BUIERNTES (DHIRFHFTE
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. SU Yuanfu (chairman), %4 (E£/F) BRMRML L) AR —BHRITES
Ms. CHENG Xinxin and one Executive Director, namely Mr. AN (BLZEEXRL) - W2016%5F - REREGHETT
Yubao. In 2016, the Nomination Committee held one meeting —X&#% SZEGXEHFEEHMNFBUT :
and details of the committee members’ attendance are as

follows:

No. of attendance/
No. of committee meeting

Committee member EEERE HERE ZESEHRNIE
Independent non-Executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. SU Yuanfu (Committee Chairman) BrekE (ZE52LE) 1/
Ms. CHENG Xinxin BRIk 22 + 1/
Executive Director HITES

Mr. AN Yubao LTHE A& 1/1

The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and EZZE s TEESNEE  HEMAK
composition of the Board, and assessed the independence FFTEYIFRITESZTHNB L UERRBRARD
of the independent non-executive Directors and concluded ARNESZSESZTEHECEZZHIT -

that the Company’s Board Diversity Policy has been properly

implemented.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

ExgznitE®

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having AR RIBARIT A EEEZESKE Z L EIEFAHR
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With HEBE#HRE % o AENAFEREENEE
a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, AARREESEE AN S Tt AT IFHIEZETH
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level BEERGFIUFEZENBERITE W ERH
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its TEHE&@%T{LHEEK -

strategic objectives and its sustainable development, and has

adopted the Board Diversity Policy.
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All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
age,
cultural background and ethnicity, in addition to educational

perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy, the following measurable objectives were adopted:

(A) at least 40% of the members of the Board shall be
non-executive directors or independent non-executive
directors;

(B) at least 1/3 of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(C) at least 1 of the members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or relevant financial management
professional qualifications;

(D)  at least 50% of the members of the Board shall have 7
years or more of experience in the industry he/she is
specialised in; and

(E) at least 2 of the members of the Board shall have
China-related work experience.

46 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EEHX/FESEABRAA

EZeMBRELOKARARS RRA - AHEE
BAEELNEENENTIBEMNESZENE ST
Lo - BEAERZ RIS T EBELE
£ BRYEEBS BELR - R ABRRG
THION - RERERRNER - Fik - XEEF
Kk - & ERAEBNRERAIRESTSRH
MBRRMELIRTE °

PEREFEZTCEREME - L TAHERR

EERA
(A) ZEDIREZFENEERIENTESHE
MIEHITES

(B) ZIIBEFEKEARBUIFRITES :

(C) EMREFGKEE
MIBEEREEER

ESestslEn

(D) Z50%EEEMEANL
BIESA &R R

BERMITRE

(E) =ZoREESKEBEAKRATEEHEIE
5 -



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 2 December 2013 with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2
of the Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it
will review the proposals made by the management on the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
and make recommendation to the Board. The Board will
have final authority to approve the recommendations made
by the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee also include making recommendation
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to all Directors and senior management
of the Group and to ensure none of the Directors determine
their own remuneration. The emoluments of executive
Directors are determined based on the skills, knowledge,
individual performance as well as contributions, the scope of
responsibility and accountability of such Directors, taking into
consideration of the Company’s performance and prevailing
market conditions. The remuneration policy of independent
non-executive Directors is to ensure that the independent
non-executive Directors are adequately compensated for
their efforts and time dedicated to the Company’s affairs
including their participation in respective Board committees.
The emoluments of independent non-executive Directors
are determined with reference to their skills, experience,
knowledge, duties and market trends.
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As the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
consists of three members and two of them are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. FENG Zhongshi
(chairman), Mr. SU Yuanfu and one executive Director, namely
Ms. LI Qian. In 2016, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting and details of the committee members’ attendance
are as follows:

Committee member ZEERE

RAFEHREMZE  FHEE S =2KEA
K- EFMARBELFEATES (DRI RBHE
EE(ER) BETRELE) AR—BHITES
(RRFEXL) - N2016%F - HFMEBESRITT —
REB% BSREGNEBHEGENFBLOL

No. of attendance/
No. of committee meeting

HERY ZEEESBRHY

Independent non-Executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. FENG Zhongshi (Committee Chairman)

Mr. SU Yuanfu ERIT R ST
Executive Director HITES
Ms. LI Qian RiEL+

The Remuneration Committee assessed the performance,
reviewed the proposal made by management on the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
and made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. Details of remuneration of Directors are set out
in Note 6 to the Financial Statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 2 December 2013 with written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph C3.3 and C3.7 of the
Code Provisions. Its terms of reference were amended on 16
December 2015 and came into effective from 1 January 2016,
which are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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The Audit Committee reports to the Board and has held reqular BZZEZE@mEFe@®hEs  WEeHAMAEEHED
meetings to review and make recommendations to improve FfNfIE HIEEE S LAE&L$EIE’JE7H‘%#&¢$£
the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and % BB EERAPEE - EREELHETER
internal controls. The primary duties of the Audit Committee, &HA& (AT B8E) HHINEZBMANEFE =5
among other things, are to make recommendation to the Board ZHEMFEAEESIZEHERS  BSEMBR
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external RNERAEBREF KRS - ARSI ALE
auditor, review the financial statements and oversee financial 227 o

reporting, risk management and internal control procedures of

the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee consists RAREEH  BEREE€H=ZLKEAK B
of three members and two of them are independent EMEBIIENTES (DRIABKMRM LT (=
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. CHENG Xinxin &) MEHFELRLE) ULK—ZIHnTESE (AT)E
(chairlady), Mr. FENG Zhongshi and one non-executive #E&L4A) BZLZESELEHARNFEREER A
Director, namely Mr. WANG Shunlong. The Audit Committee SEEFTRMAMNETRE L EE - Wi st R EfEE s
has reviewed with management of the Company the RUBEHRESE - FZESMEINIEZEME
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, & '@ WEHBKEFEELE -

and discussed internal controls and financial reporting

matters. The Audit Committee also met with the external

auditors and reviewed the Annual Results.

In 2016, the Audit Committee held two meetings and details of R2016% @ BZEE LT TMALE 88
the committee members’ attendance are as follows: eEEEeENEROT -

7

No. of attendance/
No. of committee meeting

Committee member ZEERE HERE ZEEEBXH
Independent non-Executive Directors BIYEHITES

Ms. CHENG Xinxin (Committee Chairlady) MR LT (ZEEEE/FE) 2/2
Mr. FENG Zhongshi BB LA 2/2
Non-Executive Director EHITES

Mr. WANG Shunlong FIERE LA 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the BWZZES®EHEARREREEHAEEMRS
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted EI&ETRBIRIEG] - Watswm TREARERE - AEE
by the Group, and discussed risk management, internal ZEIMBEHREEH - FREEGMERQFINE
controls and financial reporting matters. The Audit Committee ZEEMEH @ WEBRARRINARFERE - &
also met with the external auditors and reviewed this annual SEE&HEMIMNEZBENAERE - R - BEEIM®
report of the Company. The Board has not taken a different HEEHEEZZEGHIRER -

view from the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,

designation or dismissal of external auditors.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year of 2016, the Company engaged KPMG as
the external auditors. Apart from providing audit services,
KPMG also provided interim financial statements review and
tax consulting services. The fees in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by KPMG for the year ended 31
December 2016 amounted to approximately RMB2,100,000
and RMB1,580,000, respectively.

The reporting responsibilities of KPMG are set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 75 to 88.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the
Group to maintain a sound and effective risk management and
internal control system, and making review on its effectiveness
at least once a year. The Audit Committee assists the Board
in fulfilling its governance role over finance, operations,
compliance, risk management and internal control of the
Group. The Group’s Audit and Legal Centre assists the Board
and the Audit Committee in reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control system on an
ongoing basis. The Board is regularly updated on significant
risks which may affect the performance of the Group.

The Group’s internal control system is designed to safeguard
assets against misappropriation and unauthorized disposition,
to ensure compliance of relevant ordinances and rules, to
ensure proper maintenance of accounting records for provision
of reliable financial information used within the business or for
publication and to manage operational risks. The controls built
into the risk management system are intended to manage,
not eliminate, significant risks in the Group’s business
environment. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to business objective, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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The Group has established on-going procedures for
identifying, assessing and managing the significant
risks involved with the Group. Meanwhile, it reviews the
effectiveness of the relevant internal control system. These
procedures include but not limited to: (1) to engage a
professional consultancy firm to assist the Group in improving
the structure and mechanism of the risk management body
and preparing the code of risk management; (2) to identify
the significant risks involved in the business and assess
the impact of such risks on the business of the Group; (3)
information gathering channels, to ensure material or potential
inside information being captured and kept confidential until
timely disclosure is made in accordance with the Listing
Rules; and (4) to conduct gap analysis on the internal control
measures in response to the significant risks, and make
recommendations on the improvement of its internal audit
functions.

The Group’s Audit and Legal Centre assists in implementing
the risk management practices and prepares regular work
reports on whether the relevant internal control is adequate
and effective in the previous year. The Audit Committee
will report to the Board on the implementation of the risk
management and internal control policy, including the
identification of risk factors and assessment on which grades
of risks are acceptable by the Group and the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control policy.

Based on the report prepared by the Group’s Audit and Legal
Centre and Audit Committee, the Board believes that the
risk management and internal control system of the Group
is proper and effective, and the Group has complied with
the provisions of risk management and internal control as
contained in the corporate governance code. The Group will
continue to review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system in coming years.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. YAU Chi Ming and Mr. GAO Haien, being our joint
company secretaries, are primarily responsible for the
company secretarial work of the Group. Mr. GAO currently
does not possess the specified qualifications as required
under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. The Company confirms
that Mr. YAU and Mr. GAO have for the year of 2016 attended
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS IR ERAER

The shareholders of the Company may make requisition for ARXRFBRRARBATEHBESIZAAIAEHNE
the convening of an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) of FERBHRARFTRRFR ARG ([IRRHEH K

the Company in accordance with the procedures set out in the
Articles of Association as follows:

(1)  Any one or more shareholders, who at the date of (1)
deposit of the requisition hold not less than one tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings, shall have the right, by
written notice, to require an EGM to be called by the
Directors of the Company for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition.

(2)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or ~ (2)
the company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal place of business of the Company in the PRC

Address: 71, Dongpeng Avenue, Eastern section,
Guangzhou Economic and Technological
Development District, Guangzhou, PRC

Email: ir@chinaconsun.com

Attention: Joint Company Secretary

Registered Address of the Company

Address: Clifton House, 75 Fort Street,
PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY 1-1108,
Cayman Islands

Attention: Joint Company Secretary

(3) The Board will convene an EGM within 21 days from the  (3)
date of deposit of the requisition.
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(4) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board does not
proceed duly to convene such EGM, the requisitionists
themselves may do so in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

For matters in relation to the Board, the Shareholders
can contact the Company at the following:

Address: 71, Dongpeng Avenue, Eastern section,
Guangzhou Economic and Technological
Development District, Guangzhou, PRC

Email: ir@chinaconsun.com
Tel: (86) 20-82264529
Fax: (86) 20-82261886

Attention: Joint Company Secretary

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the
Company, a shareholder should lodge a written notice of his
or her proposal (“Proposal”) with his or her detailed contact
information at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, the address is: 22nd Floor, World-Wide House, 19
Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Board will be asked to
include the Proposal in the agenda for the general meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of ordinary resolution of the
Company.

(2) At least 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution of the
Company in an EGM of the Company or an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting
of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining
a high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor
relations. The Company is committed to a policy of open and
timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders
and public investors.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including interim and annual reports and public
announcements. Extensive information about the Company’s
activities for the year ended 31 December 2016 has been
provided in this annual report. While the annual general
meeting provides a valuable forum for direct communication
between the Board and its shareholders, the Company also
maintains its website (http://www.chinaconsun.com) to provide
an alternative communication channel for the public and its
shareholders. All corporate communication and Company’s
latest updates are available on the Company’s website for
public’s information.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there has been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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The Board of the Company are pleased to present the annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements (the “Financial Statements”) of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future
developments in the group’s business, can be found in the
Chairman’s statement and the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on page 5 to 15 and pages 17 to 24 of this
annual report, which form part of this director’s report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2016 and its state of affairs as at 31 December 2016 are set
out in the Financial Statements on pages 89 to 207.

The Company paid an interim dividend of RMB0.045 per
share in 2016, totally approximately RMB42,942,000 (2015
interim dividend: Nil). The Board proposed to declare a final
dividend of HK$0.05 per share (2015: RMBO0.075 per share),
totally approximately RMB36,599,000 (2015: approximately
RMB74,119,000) for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 31 May 2017 and, if approved,
is expected to be paid on or about Friday, 16 June 2017 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Friday, 9 June 2017. The final dividend is
declared and will be paid in HK$.
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Besides, the Board proposed, subject to approval by the
Disinterested Shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting to be held on Tuesday, 11 April 2017 in respect
of the Share Buy-back and the transactions contemplated
thereunder, the payment of a special dividend of HK$0.10
per share. If approved, the proposed special dividend is
expected to be paid on or about Friday, 19 May 2017 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Friday, 12 May 2017. For details of the
arrangement of the proposed special dividend, please refer
to the announcements published/to be published by the
Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December
2012 to 2016 is set out on page 208. This summary does not
form part of the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes in share capital of the Company during the
year of 2016 are set out in Note 24 to the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s distributable
reserves, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman lIslands, amounted to RMB814,463,000 (2015:
RMB1,005,713,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group maintains good business relationships with its
suppliers and customers, which are beneficial for the Group’s
healthy long-term development.
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For the year of 2016, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Company’s five largest customers, including sales to entities
which are known to the Group to be under common control
with these customers, accounted for approximately 47.9% of
the total revenue for the year; sales to the largest customer
accounted for approximately 18.7% thereof. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Company’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 53.8% of the total purchase for
the year; purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 15.3% thereof.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders who owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND
JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANIES

Details of the major subsidiaries and associated companies of
the Group are set out in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in the Group’s investment properties, other
property, plant and equipment during the year of 2016 are set
out in Notes 9 and 10 to the Financial Statements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year of 2016, the Group’s total capital expenditure
amounted to RMB19,116,000 (2015: RMB14,528,000) which
was used for acquisition of properties, plant and equipment.
The details of the properties, plant and equipment of the
Group and the changes in lease prepayments of the Group
during the year of 2016 are set out in Notes 10 and 11 to the
Financial Statements.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had no interest
bearing borrowings (31 December 2015: Nil).
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year
and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman)

Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer)
Professor ZHU Quan

Non-executive Directors
Mr. WANG Shunlong
Mr. LIN Sheng (appointed on 1 April 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. SU Yuanfu

Mr. FENG Zhongshi

Ms. CHENG Xinxin

Each of the Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years from the date of
Listing, and can be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other. None of
the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation on
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of
them are considered to be independent.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
one third of the existing Directors shall retire from office at
each annual general meeting. Accordingly, Mr. AN Yubao,
Professor ZHU Quan and Mr. WANG Shunlong shall retire from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Except for
Mr. WANG Shunlong wants to devote more time to develop
his own business and does not offer himself for re-election,
Mr. AN Yubao and Professor ZHU Quan are eligible and offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are disclosed in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management Profile” on pages 25 to 36 of this
annual report.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Mr. AN Yubao, the chairman of the Board of the
Company, Ms. LI Qian, the chief executive officer of the
Company, and Mr. YOUNG Wai Po, Peter (collectively,
the “Controlling Shareholders” or “Non-Competing
Covenantors”) entered into a deed of non-competition (“Deed
of Non-Competition”) on 2 December 2013, pursuant to
which the Non-Competing Covenantors have irrevocably
and severally (but not jointly and severally) undertaken
to the Company (for itself and for the benefit of each of
the members of the Group) that with effect from the date
of Listing and for as long as the shares of the Company
remain so listed on the Stock Exchange and the Controlling
Shareholders are individually or collectively with any of his/
its associates interested directly or indirectly in not less than
30.0% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company
(the “Restricted Period”), the Non-Competing Covenantors or
their respective associates shall not, (i) directly or indirectly
engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render
any services to or otherwise be involved in any business
(whether as owner, director, operator, licensor, licensee,
partner, shareholder, joint venturer, employee, consultant or
otherwise) in competition with or likely to be in competition
with the existing business carried on by the Group (the
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“Restricted Business”); and (ii) directly or indirectly take any
action which constitutes an interference with or a disruption
of the Restricted Business including, but not limited to, (a)
solicitation of any existing or then existing employees of the
Group for employment by them or their associates (excluding
the Group); (b) solicitation of any current or then current
customers and/or suppliers and/or former customers and/
or suppliers of the Group for the preceding 6 months at the
relevant time away from the Group; and (c) without the consent
from the Company, making use of any information pertaining
to the business of the Group which may have come to their
knowledge in their capacity as Substantial Shareholders for
the purpose of engaging, investing or participating in any
Restricted Business. Each of the Non-Competing Covenantors
severally (but not jointly and severally) undertakes to the
Company (for itself and for the benefit of each of the members
of the Group) that, in respect of any order or any part of it
undertaken or proposed to be undertaken by him/her or his/
her associates for the Restricted Business, it shall and shall
procure that his/her associates shall, unconditionally use
reasonable endeavours to procure that such customer(s) to
appoint or contract directly with any member of the Group for
the Restricted Business under the relevant order.

Each of the Non-Competing Covenantors jointly and
severally undertakes to indemnify and keep indemnified the
Group against any damage, loss or liability suffered by the
Company or any other member of the Group arising out of
or in connection with any breach of its undertakings and/
or obligations under the Deed of Non-Competition, including
any costs and expenses incurred as a result of such breach
provided that such indemnity shall be without prejudice to
any other rights and remedies the Company is entitled to in
relation to any such breach, including specific performance,
and all such other things and remedies are hereby expressly
reserved by the Company.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to
the Company of his/its compliance with the Deed of
Non-Competition provided to the Company until (i) the date on
which the Company’s shares cease to be listed on the Stock
Exchange; or (ii) the date on which the relevant Covenantor
and his/its associates cease to own 30% or more of the then
issued share capital of the Company directly or indirectly;
whichever occurs first.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company had
reviewed the status of compliance as well as confirmation by
the Controlling Shareholders of the Company and, on the basis
of such confirmation, are of the view that such Controlling
Shareholders have complied with their non-competition
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition and these
non-competition undertakings have been enforced by the
Company in accordance with its terms.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

We had not entered into any transactions which constitute
non-exempt connected transactions within the meaning of the
Listing Rules during the year of 2016.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s existing Share Option Scheme was approved
for adoption on 2 December 2013 for the purpose to provide
the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to eligible participants and for such other purposes
as the Board approve from time to time. Subject to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme, the board may, at their absolute
discretion, grant or invite any person belonging to any of the
following classes to take up options to subscribe for shares:
(a) any employee, supplier/service provider, customer,
partner or joint-venture partner of the Group (including any
director, whether executive and whether independent or not,
of the Group) who is in full-time or part-time employment with
the Company or any subsidiaries, (b) any person who have
contributed or may contribute to the Group. The total number
of share which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10%
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of the total number of shares in issue on the date of Listing
unless the Company seeks the approval of the shareholders in
general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the Share
Option Scheme provided that options lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes of the Company will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating 10% limit.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

The exercise price per share of the Company for each option
granted shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer for the grant of option (“Date of Grant”)
which must be a trading day;

the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five trading days immediately preceding the
Date of Grant; and

(3) the nominal value of the shares on the Date of Grant.
Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance
of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within the
date as specified in the offer letter issued by the Company.
The exercise period of any option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall not be longer than 10 years commencing
on the date of grant and expiring on the last day of such
10-year period subject to the provisions for early termination
as contained in the Share Option Scheme. The maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted and to be granted to each grantee under
the Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of shares in issue. Any further grant of
options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to issuance of
a circular by the Company and approved by its shareholders in
accordance with the Listing Rules.
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As at 31 December 2016, the number and weighted average
exercise prices of share options are as follows:
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For year ended
31 December 2016

BZ2016F
12A31BLFE
Weighted
average Number of
exercise price share options
InfEFES B
TEE g
HK$ ’000 shares
BT FIR
Outstanding at the beginning FHEARITEE
of the year 6.64 52,846
Granted under the 2016 Grant BIE2016F R EE T 4.01 52,000
Cancelled during the year FATH 6.64 (24,790)
Forfeited during the year FRRIK 5.84 (8,633)
Outstanding at the end of the year FREAITE 4.82 71,423
Exercisable at the end of the year FERA1T6EE 6.64 20,623

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2016 had a
weighted average exercise price of HK$4.82 and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 8.6 years.

Apart from the aforesaid share option schemes, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2016 was any of the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the Directors, or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the shares in, or debentures of, the Company, or
had exercised any such right.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Board of the Company had adopted a Share Award
Scheme (“Share Award Scheme”) on 21 July 2014 as a means
to recognise the contributions by the selected employees and
provide them with incentives in order to retain them for the
continual operation and development of the Group and attract
suitable personnel for the further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the selected employees
may be granted during the duration of the Share Award
Scheme an award in the form of awarded shares (“Awarded
Shares”). Awarded Shares will be purchased by the trustee
of the Company (“Trustee”) on the market out of cash
contributed by the Company and be held on trust for the
selected employees until such shares are vested on them in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Award Scheme.
The Board shall not make any further award of Awarded
Shares which will result in the nominal value of the shares
awarded by the Board under the Share Award Scheme
exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected employee under the Share Award
Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The Awarded Shares held by the
Trustee under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 2%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Trustee
purchased 10,472,000 (2015: 9,528,000) Awarded Shares
at the cost of approximately RMB44,638,000 (2015:
approximately RMB45,359,000). As at 31 December 2016,
302,000 Awarded Shares granted by the Company under the
Share Award Scheme to certain employees had also been
vested.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the Directors and chief executives
of the Company had the following interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company, its group members and/or associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code:

Name of Director Nature of Interest and Capacity
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Approximate
Percentage of
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EEnE ERtERS D BHEEBERERO BORERD L
AN Yubao® Beneficial Owner 18,565,817 Shares (L) 1.90 (L)
ZHE@ EmEEA 18,565,8170% (L) 1.90 (L)
AN Yubao® Interest of controlled corporation 196,200,000 Shares (L) 20.14 (L)
ZHIE® ZPEHEE S 196,200,0000% (L) 20.14 (L)

Sub-total 214,765,817 Shares (L) 22.04 (L)

/INEE 214,765,817 (L) 22.04 (L)
LI Qian® Beneficial Owner 15,865,261 Shares (L) 1.63 (L)
REO EmEEA 15,865,2610% (L) 1.63 (L)
LI Qian® Interest of controlled corporation 126,232,000 Shares (L) 12.96 (L)
BRE 2 A e o 126,232,0000% (L) 12.96 (L)

Sub-total 142,097,261 Shares (L) 14.59 (L)

INEF 142,097,2610% (L) 14.59 (L)
ZHU Quan® Beneficial Owner 3,200,000 Shares (L) 0.33 (L)
KEO EmBEAA 3,200,0008% (L) 0.33 (L)
CHENG Xinxin Beneficial Owner 1,937,000 Shares (L) 0.20 (L)
R AR EmEEA 1,937,0008% (L) 0.20 (L)
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Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares

of the Company or the relevant associated corporation.

2) Including shares in relation to 10,000,000 Share Options,
10,000,000 Share Options and 3,200,000 Share Options
granted during the year to Mr. AN Yubao, Ms. LI Qian and
Professor ZHU Quan respectively under the Share Option
Scheme adopted on 2 December 2013.

(3) The entire issued share capital of Central Success
Developments Limited (“Central Success”) is owned by Mr.
AN, therefore, Mr. AN is deemed to be interested in all the

shares held by Central Success under the provisions of SFO.

4) The entire issued share capital of Double Grace International
Limited (“Double Grace”) is owned by Ms. LI, therefore, Ms.
Ll is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Double

Grace under the provisions of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
other interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, any of its group
members or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following persons/entities (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had, or were
deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company, its group members and/
or associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required

to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder

Nature of Interest and Capacity
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Approximate
Number and Class Percentage of

of Securities”  Shareholding (%)

RREB, A EEHERSHD EHHERERND  BORER (%)
Guidoz Limited® Beneficial owner 110,050,000 shares (L) 11.03 (L)
Guidoz Limited® EnEAA 110,050,0008% (L) 11.30 (L)
YOUNG Wai Po, Peter® Interest of controlled corporation 110,050,000 shares (L) 11.03 (L)
BRI A E R 110,050,0008% (L) 11.30 (L)
Central Success® Beneficial owner 196,200,000 shares (L) 20.14 (L)
FEK® ERBERA 196,200,000 (L) 20.14 (L)
Double Grace® Beneficial owner 126,232,000 shares (L) 12.96 (L)
Double Grace! EnEAA 126,232,000/% (L) 12.96 (L)
First Kind International Limited® Beneficial owner 186,750,000 shares (L) 19.17 (L)
First Kind International Limited® EnEAA 186,750,000% (L) 19.17 (L)
Hony Capital Fund Ill, L.P.®) Interest of controlled corporation 186,750,000 shares (L) 19.17 (L)
Hony Capital Fund Il, L.P.® RIERERER 186,750,000 (L) 19.17 (L)
Hony Capital Fund Ill, GP, L.P.® Interest of controlled corporation 186,750,000 shares (L) 19.17 (L)
Hony Capital Fund Ill, GP, L.P.® TS EEE S 186,750,000/% (L) 19.17 (L)
Hony Capital Fund Ill, GP, Limited® Interest of controlled corporation 186,750,000 shares (L) 19.17 (L)
Hony Capital Fund Ill, GP, Limited®  SR&IAERER 186,750,0008% (L) 19.17 (L)
Hony Group Management Limited® Interest of controlled corporation 186,750,000 shares (L) 19.17 (L)
Hony Group Management Limited®  SR#LAE R 186,750,000% (L) 19.17 (L)
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Name of Shareholder

Nature of Interest and Capacity

Number and Class
of Securities"

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding (%)

RREB, R BEMHERSH EHBERERND  BAORERDH(%)
Hony Managing Partners Limited® Interest of controlled corporation 186,750,000 shares (L) 19.17 (L)
Hony Managing Partners Limited® XA E 186,750,000% (L) 19.17 (L)
Exponential Fortune Group Limited®  Interest of controlled corporation 186,750,000 shares (L) 19.17 (L)
Exponential Fortune Group Limited®  S#HLAE R 186,750,000% (L) 19.17 (L)
ZHAO John Huan® Interest of controlled corporation 186,750,000 shares (L) 19.17 (L)
HSEO XA E R 186,750,0008% (L) 19.17 (L)
Greenwoods Asset Management Investment manager 59,178,000 shares (L) 6.07 (L)
Limited®&™
SEMEEBEER QRO RELE 59,178,0008% (L) 6.07 (L)
Greenwoods Asset Management Interest of controlled corporation 59,178,000 shares (L) 6.07 (L)
Holdings Limited®&"
SMEEEEERAR QRO REhEEER 59,178,000 (L) 6.07 (L)
Unique Element Corp.®&" Interest of controlled corporation 59,178,000 shares (L) 6.07 (L)
Unique Element Corp.®%™ Xyt EE 59,178,000% (L) 6.07 (L)
JIANG Jinzhi®&®" Interest of controlled corporation 59,178,000 shares (L) 6.07 (L)
FinEOR REHEE S 59,178,000 (L) 6.07 (L)

Notes:

(1)

@)

3)
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The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares
of the Company or the relevant group member. The letter
“S” denotes the person’s short position in the shares of the

Company or the relevant group member.

The entire issued share capital of Guidoz Limited is legally and
beneficially owned by Mr. YOUNG. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
YOUNG is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Guidoz Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Central Success is legally
and beneficially owned by Mr. AN. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. AN
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Central

Success.

Hit

(1)

2

(3)

EXFE L ARBAALRAR A E%
BB RN AR D AR - EXFE[S)
KEBALRARAIZ G B R A Flay R
DHRKE -

Guidoz Limitedf) 2355 #7TIRA B LS
EREwIEE - RIEFFRBEIRY - 5EE
W18 BRGuidoz Limitedfiis 255k 17 P HEH

PR 2R E EITREAB LA LEER B
B o RIFZFRHEED » 2 ERBERRAF
AT 2 A D P s o



(4)

%)

(6)

(7)

The entire issued share capital of Double Grace is legally
and beneficially owned by Ms. LI. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. LI
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Double
Grace.

The entire issued share capital of First Kind International
Limited is legally and beneficially owned by Hony Capital Fund
Ill, L.P.. Hony Capital Fund Ill, L.P. is controlled by its sole
general partner, Hony Capital Fund Ill, GP, L.P. Hony Capital
Fund Ill, GP, L.P. is in turn controlled by its sole general
partner, Hony Capital Fund Ill, GP, Limited. Hony Capital Fund
Ill, GP, Limited is wholly owned by Hony Group Management
Limited. Hony Group Management Limited is owned as to 80%
by Hony Managing Partners Limited. Hony Managing Partners
Limited is wholly owned by Exponential Fortune Group Limited.
Exponential Fortune Group Limited is owned as to 49.0% by
Mr. ZHAO John Huan and 51% by two individuals equally (each
holding 25.5%).

Greenwoods Asset Management Limited controls 6.07% of
the Company’s shares through Golden China Master Fund,
Golden China Plus Master Fund and Greenwoods China Alpha
Master Fund in the capacity of Manager of the funds. The
entire issued share capital of Greenwoods Asset Management
Limited is legally and beneficially owned by Greenwoods
Asset Management Holdings Limited. Greenwoods Asset
Management Holdings Limited is ultimately owned as to 81%
by Unique Element Corp which is controlled by Mr. JIANG
Jinzhi.

The Company has been informed by Greenwoods Asset
Management Limited that it disposed of a net total of 1,402,000
shares in the market for funds and accounts under its
management during the period from 18 February 2014 to 31
December 2016.

(4)

(%)

(6)

(7)
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Double GraceB) 282 ZTRABRL L E
EREm IR o RIFZFHFRBERY - L1
#iE BRDouble GracefrtEZ2EffR 17 H#HE#E

e
2 °

First Kind International Limitedd)<&5E &77
RAF#Hony Capital Fund I, L.P.A%ERE#
#H ° Hony Capital Fund Ill, L.P. SHIKE—
ZFEAZAHony Capital Fund Ill, GP, L.P.#%
#| + fiHony Capital Fund Ill, GP, L.P. <X
P — B A B AHony Capital Fund Ill, GP,
Limited# #l - Hony Capital Fund Ill, GP,
LimiteddiHony Group Management Limited
2 E#H A - Hony Group Management Limited
HiHony Managing Partners Limitedi# &
80% ° Hony Managing Partners Limitedf#
Exponential Fortune Group Limited% & #
& ° [fiExponential Fortune Group Limitedf!
AL EEEHEF49.0%K A E R A F
PIEFERTE1% (FHFH26.5%) °

RNEEERFRAABAERE EFEHE
& B @R E e R R B R
BB EEAL AL 76.07 %817
e RMEEERERAAIZEE FETREAH
ENEEEEERERAFIEEREGHE °
BENEEEEFRE R 7] 5685855 AT
#l#Unique Element CorpiR#XEH81% °

AR ESNEEEEFR ARG EM AR
201442518 A F20164F 12531 A HE1iZ B E
B E LR RITSE R EE 1,402,000
BT -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the
Directors were not aware of any other persons/entities (other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company, its group members or associated
corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors or Controlling Shareholders of the Company or any
of their respective associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group
or has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
repurchased and cancelled 23,489,000 shares of its
own ordinary shares through the Stock Exchange at a
total consideration of HK$96,227,000 (approximately
RMB81,132,000).
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Details of the Company’s own shares repurchased by the
Company are as follows:

Number of ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company

AR EBREE

Month of repurchase

Price per share

Report of Directors
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AprEEEA HFBROOHBOT

Aggregate
consideration paid

BE A5 0.10B THEBRKREA BRERK ENERE
Highest Lowest
Be B
HK$ HK$ HK$’000 RMB’000
BT BT THE T AR%®TR
January 2016 9,501,000 4.42 4.14 40,642 34,267
201651 A
April 2016 7,561,000 4.06 3.78 29,882 25,194
20164 A
May 2016 5,946,000 4.19 3.80 23,749 20,024
201645 A
June 2016 481,000 4.09 4.01 1,954 1,647
201646 A
23,489,000 96,227 81,132
Save for the above, neither the Company nor any of its B& E it # &40 - R # £20165F12H318 IE F

subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporative activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in
force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section
470 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance when the
Report of the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved
in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

B ARRAREEMAMBAREEREE HEX
BRIARQBER EHES °

BEBRE

ARAEBERANIRERS AP LERREE
EBRENGX  BEARRAEERLAIRER
BRRBEMBL o

EETFHBERX

ARFCHEEENSREEABRACEEDE
HZERFD REERTBRABZEERHER
REEZ2RE - BEEZRUECEZTERERER
B RBUERGIZEIN(1)(a) IRIERLER - SZIEEFTEY
BEGRXEEBBRAGIFITORNREER
EEMa A
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company

and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has

maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules

during the year ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can

be found in the Corporate Governance Report contained on

pages 37 to 54 in this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 6 February 2017,
the Share Buy-Back Agreement (“Share Buy-back

the Company entered into

Agreement”) with First Kind, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to acquire and First Kind agreed
to dispose of 146,140,200 shares of the Company’s
ordinary shares at the total consideration of
HK$560,739,947.40, equivalent to HK$3.837 per share.

The Share Buy-back Agreement is conditional upon,
among others, (a) the Executive having granted and not
having withdrawn the approval of the Whitewash Waiver
and the Share Buy-back; and (b) the Disinterested
Shareholders approving (i) the Share Buy-back
Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder; and (ii) the Whitewash Waiver, at the
extraordinary general meeting. Completion will take
place on a day before the Long Stop date as agreed
between First Kind and the Company in writing after
fulfilment of the conditions precedent under the Share
Buy-back Agreement (for definitions, please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 6 February 2017).
An extraordinary general meeting of the Company will
be held on Tuesday, 11 April 2017 for the purpose of
considering and, if thought fit, passing the relevant
resolutions (for details, please refer to the Company’s
circular dated 20 March 2017).
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On 17 March 2017, the Company signed a commitment
letter (the “Commitment Letter”) with BNP Paribas,
acting through its Hong Kong Branch (the “Lender”),
pursuant to which the Lender conditionally (conditions
include but not limited to the signing of formal facility
documents) agreed to grant the Company a three year
term loan facility of up to HK$560,000,000. Pursuant
to the Commitment Letter, if (a) Mr. AN Yubao (“Mr.
AN”, the current Chairman of the Company’s Board of
Directors) and Central Success Developments Limited
(which is wholly owned by Mr. AN) and Ms. LI Qian
(“Ms. LI”, a current Executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company) and Double Grace
International Limited (which is wholly owned by Ms.
Ll) cease collectively to (i) be the beneficial owners,
either directly or indirectly, of at least 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company or (ii) be the single
largest shareholder, either directly or indirectly, of the
Company; or (b) Central Success Developments Limited
ceases to be wholly-owned by Mr. AN and/or his family;
or (c) Double Grace International Limited ceases to be
wholly-owned by Ms. LI and/or her family, which each of
them will constitute an event of default, all outstanding
amounts under the Loan Facility (including principal and
interest) shall become immediately due and payable (for
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 17 March 2017).

On 30 March 2017, the Board proposed to declare
a final dividend and a special dividend. For further
details, please refer to Note 24(b) to the financial
statements.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held on Wednesday, 31
May 2017. Shareholders should refer to details regarding the
annual general meeting in the circular of the Company to be

issued in due course and the notice of the annual general

meeting and form of proxy accompanying thereto.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To determine the eligibility of the shareholders of the
Company to attend the annual general meeting to be held on
Wednesday, 31 May 2017, the Company’s register of members
will be closed from Thursday, 25 May 2017 to Wednesday,
31 May 2017 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be entitled to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting, all completed
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 24 May
2017.

In addition, to determine shareholders’ entitlement to the final
dividend, the Company’s register of members will be closed
from Tuesday, 6 June 2017 to Friday, 9 June 2017 (both days
inclusive). In order to qualify for the entitlements to the final
dividend, all completed transfers documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 pm on Monday, 5 June 2017.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, KPMG, is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By order of the Board
Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited

AN Yubao
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 89 to 207, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

REESER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RFiEFETE=HEIBERFINFEZEHEH - RAEHAK
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the HIGAMEBRERNENZAEENETH EHE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These EEERMPIEBFELHEAMBEHRRLEAES B
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the #ETTEIEM - K TS HELEEEHSEBENE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming & o

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements

WARERR | BT HE

BRI A BN A2 R E 123E &5 R °

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 123.

The Key Audit Matter
BREITSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRANETOMEEZEE

Revenue mainly comprises sales of pharmaceutical
products to a large number of distributors
throughout Mainland China.

WAT 2 BT EARES RS EHEHEE Em

Each year, the Group enters into standardised
agreements with its distributors setting out
the key terms of the distribution arrangements
(“Distributor Agreements”), including the terms
of delivery and policies for sales rebates and
sales returns. Purchase orders are then placed
with the Group and products are delivered to the
location designated by the distributor, at which
point the risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods are considered to have been transferred to
the distributor and revenue is recognised.
EEESFRAKHEIVEE LR ETHIL
HZH ([(REEHR ) HE2EN - BREIMENK
NRIHERMMHERENEE - RIFMHERSME
SETERBE MERAMINEZEETHE - &E
B EnEEENERRERSHEERCEETEH
R R A B E®ER

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue from distributor arrangements included the
following:

BT ERRE L HALHFNRANETIRFEIEAT
5

o assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s
key internal controls which govern revenue

recognition;

. HEE IR E R B AR FYBR S A R ES MY AR AT B
1T REIER L -

° inspecting Distributor Agreements, on a sample

basis, to understand the terms of the sales
transactions, including the terms of delivery,
applicable rebates and sales return arrangements
and to assess the Group’s revenue recognition
criteria with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

. MERELHENHE - WEREERXINGRR (B
RN ERRMEIHERELEENIRR) - AR2E
BTG ERNRE T EEEN WA RERIZTE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FRErEE (2)

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements (Continued)

WATER . BHBZH (&)

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 123.
BRI BIAN T2 RE 1238 )& FHHE °

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BEREENEE BN ET N EEZSE

We identified recognition of revenue from | e for a sample of revenue transactions recorded
distributor arrangements as a key audit matter just before and after the year end, inspecting the
because revenue is one of the key performance related goods delivery notes, which had been
indicators of the Group and therefore there is signed by the distributors as evidence of their
an inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of receipt of the goods, to assess if the related
recognition of revenue by management to meet revenue had been recognised in the appropriate
specific targets or expectations. financial period on the basis of the terms of sale
BMRABRREKEELHNRABBRESTS as set out in the Distributor Agreements and the
B REARKADESBES —KRBERRRIEE & terms of the purchase orders;
FEEIREBIREERRANKELGEBIETE B R | o HHLFRFLE BN RARNBAZZEATS - &
ENEAERR - HEANERZXNEER (EHKEEEE @ (FREKE

ERMER) - AT EABRART BB BEHE R
5 0 0 U TR R 3T MO K O 0 B B
PHERR

° for a sample of sales rebates recorded during the
year, comparing the details of the bases of the
rebate calculations and the rebate ratios with the
terms of the underlying Distributor Agreements
and comparing the rebate bases (e.g. the sales
amounts settled during the year) to sub-ledgers
and underlying bank remittances, cheques, bills
and other payment slips (where applicable);

. AFAARNHEERMERN S LLBURMEETEE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

HEETEE (&)

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements (Continued)

WATER  BHEBZH (F)

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 123.

BLRRFE R E BN 2 RE 128 SR °

The Key Audit Matter
AREITSERE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMET O AREZSE

scrutinising the sales ledger after the year
end to identify significant credit notes issued
and sales returns and inspecting relevant
underlying documentation to assess if the related
adjustments to revenue had been accounted for
in the appropriate financial period in accordance
with the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards; and

& F 4B RHIHE 9 R AR BB 2 ey KSR
BRENMHERE W URBRERBE X AT BRAE
THHEERBRRREREBRITEAENNRENEE
W BHR AR - &

inspecting significant manual adjustments to
revenue raised during the reporting period,
enquiring of management the reasons for
such adjustments and comparing the details
of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.
BERBEHANHRAELENEAAFTHAE - AER
BERELEHARARNRE R BFHABHFIEEEH
e
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Recoverability of trade receivables
B 5 W TR /Y T o]

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 108 to 111.
BRRG S BHREN L 18R E108EE 111 AR B IBE -

The Key Audit Matter
ARETSERE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMET O AEEZSE

As at 31 December 2016 the carrying value
of the Group’s net trade receivables totalled
RMB275,164,000, which included an allowance
for doubtful debts of RMB3,565,000.

20165 12A31H - EXBEE 5 ERWHKIENREE
M FEEA LA ARM275,164,0000T - EFBERE
# 8 AR %3,565,0007T °

The Group’s allowance for doubtful debts is based
on management’s estimate of the recoverability
of individual trade receivables with reference
to the ageing of overdue balances, repayment
histories of individual debtors, existing customer-
specific and market conditions and the fulfiiment
of repayment arrangements agreed with specific
debtors.
ESENREREENNEEEL2Z0HEHKER - @
FEBARNERESE - BEZTFPEHUERTHIRIAKR
B F BB AT ER IR EITIE R M 5 &
ZEMGRIEE L O b et R

Management is required to apply judgement in
assessing the allowance for doubtful debts for
individual trade receivables. The ability of the
debtors to repay the Group depends on customer-
specific and market conditions which involves
inherent uncertainty.

IR AL E B B 5 R WU IE B R AR 1 48 B 10 2A
HE - EHARNEEEERNENTRARETPEER
MISARRATME @ B ESER TARREE -

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of
trade receivables included the following:
PIst et (2 2 RS IR R AT B M ) BT 2 Fr B A T A2

obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating to
credit control, debt collection and the calculation
of the allowance for doubtful debts;
TEEEREEES  WERAERRREARN
B A EREIE RURRET - BT REIE R AL

assessing the classification of individual
balances in the trade receivables ageing report
by comparing the details of individual items with
underlying invoices on a sample basis;
FRMELLRERIERNFFEAERESR A8
FEW IR BR e TR &5 W E R A& #R e D B8R

obtaining an understanding of the basis
of management’'s judgements about the
recoverability of individual overdue balances and
evaluating the allowance for doubtful debts made
by management for these individual balances
with reference to the industry in which the debtors
are operating, the ageing of overdue balances,
historical and post year-end payment records and
repayment arrangements agreed with specific
debtors. This included inspecting relevant
correspondence with individual debtors;

T RREIE B A B ) 38 HA A BR T U B 1 A 1l AR
NRBEEBARERETE  BHERER  EX
REFE BN REEHELERFTEBARENERL
B AIEERERZEEREMMELORRER - 1t
B BEmE RERNESANERBE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

HEETEE (&)

Recoverability of trade receivables (Continued)
B ENRER K EE (&)

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 108 to 111.

FLHGRE R BEIREMNF18RFE108RET1T11 R R IHR

The Key Audit Matter
BREITSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

KEHET N AEEZSBE

We identified the recoverability of trade
receivables as a key audit matter because of
the inherent uncertainty in assessing if trade
receivables will be recovered in full and because
the assessment of the allowance for doubtful
debts requires the exercise of management
judgement.
HMRREZRWFIAN AT E M EERETFE
REZFEROERTAARE (B 5 RUIFIER
BEWE) EREEGONFETEETERBITEAE -

assessing the historical accuracy of the estimates
made by the management for the allowance for
doubtful debts by comparing the allowance made
by the management as at 31 December 2015
with the actual new provisions, write offs and
recoveries in respect of trade receivables as at
31 December 2015 during the current year; and
FRLEREREN2015F12A31BEH A RER BB
EARFENERAEE  WHRER2015512 531
BNESRKFIBRANKREIFHIE  FEEEEMRR
RBBATEGRTNEL EBE - &

comparing cash receipts from debtors
subsequent to the financial year end relating to
trade receivable balances at 31 December 2016
with bank statements and relevant underlying
documentation on a sample basis.
HZTREREFEBECETAKREBNER S (ER
20165F 12 A1 AN E SR FRIREAFRE) BR1TH
AR B8 AR B S HE AT HAREE R o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
By AR E

REEEE (&)

Step acquisition of Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries

RAIHREZBMEREFTLAARANE L AZLKBEER

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 98 to 102.

BLRRFE N EBEXN T 15 R FEIBRE102R B &K °

The Key Audit Matter
BREITSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

KW ETNAEEZSBE

In 2015 the Group entered into certain equity
acquisition agreements and acquired a 45.27%
equity interest in Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group Co., Ltd (“Yulin Pharmaceutical”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group”) for a total consideration
of RMB641,342,000. As at 31 December 2015,
Yulin Pharmaceutical Group was accounted for as
an associate of the Group.

20155 » EEEAIE TRIERERZE - WIALK
BARKG641,342,000t BT EREMBEEEE
BREERR ([EMHE]|) REMBAR (MER[E
MBEEW |) 45 27%# - 20155128310 » £
MREEEEREEEN —KBERRIALR -

During the first half of 2016, the Group entered
into another acquisition agreement and increased
its equity interest in Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
from 45.27% to 48.87% for a consideration of
RMB31,612,000.

20165 E+F - EEEFT Y S —HWEGZE - Ui
HRNEMBESEARAERA5.27%IENE48.87%
RER/ARY31,612,0007T °

Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for the
step acquisition of Yulin Pharmaceutical Group included
the following procedures:

B EMBREEEZ T WBREARNEAEF BN
T :

evaluating the competence, experience, capability
and objectivity of the external valuer engaged
by management to perform the valuation of FV of
NCI, FV of Tangible Assets, FV of Trademark and
FV of Patents;
FEEEEMEERIFERESA
AME BREARENRENALEE
BIEVERE - &8 - e W MEHM

RfE BREER
T EMSNEEE

engaging our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating the valuation
methodologies adopted by the external valuer in
the valuation of FV of NCI, FV of Tangible Assets,
FV of Trademark and FV of Patents with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

ZEADHEZER - UBBEM2ERITEHERR
E o AHBIMNELEMRIEERESAAE  BLEE
AAE - AREAAEREMNAABETHERRAD
HETA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

HEETEE (&)

Step acquisition of Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries (Continued)
BEAIMABEBEREFLAAIREWE R AIZEL WEEE (&)

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 98 to 102.
BRI A BN T 15 R FEISH Z 1028 ) &5 IKAE °

The Key Audit Matter
BREITSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

KEHET N AEEZSBE

During the second half of 2016, the Group
acquired a further 5.76% equity interest in Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group for a consideration of
RMB69,361,000, upon completion of which
the Group held an equity interest in Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group totalling 54.63% and Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group became a subsidiary of the
Group.

R2016F T F - EEE UK EARKG69,361,000
TR T EAMRBL 2R E RIS 76 % X HE - M T
BR BEEEAASEEMHEEE5S4.63%MH#
EFMBEEEAREREN —RIBEBAA]

The Group’s acquisitions in Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group have been accounted for as a step
acquisition under the prevailing accounting
standards, where the fair value of any non-
controlling interests in Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group that was held by the Group immediately
before obtaining control has been used in the
determination of the total consideration of the step
acquisition.

RIFBRITEAED  EEBRBEMBEEEDER
BZHXWEBEEAR  EhEERGENENESEAR
FAREMBREEBNEFFERERNIAEDH
EEEE T WBEERMNENRE -

with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, critically challenging the key
assumptions and most significant inputs adopted
in the discounted cash flow forecasts for
estimating FV of NCI and FV of Patents and in the
discounted royalty income forecast for estimating
FV of Trademark, which included future revenue,
future profit margins and future cost growth rates,
by comparison with the historical performance
of Yulin Pharmaceutical Group and the Group,
current industry reports and sales agreements
signed subsequent to the reporting date;
EAREEZRBH T » B HHTRRERE
BAl (A FEREEARBERENAAEMES)
MBS EERBWATEA (BMETEEARENS)
RRANARBRIEEAEENHE ARE (ERaRE
ARIEEA - RRAMBRERRAANEREER) ZHE
B AR REMBESEREREHNEL KRR
BRITEHE N RE B REZNHEE

engaging our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the royalty rate applied
in the discounted royalty income forecast of FV
of Trademark by assessing whether the royalty
rate falls within an expected range with reference
to the general guidelines used for determining
royalties in intellectual property licensing
negotiations, taking into account the historical
earnings before interest and taxation of Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group;

ZEADLEZER - UBBEM2ERENBEET
AmEPEERTEERN KBS HERAAE
IR ER KA AN TS RE
HEHE - HAEARTEZ T REXELENEHEE
A (BEREMBESENE L BBRATAN)
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Independent Auditor’s Report
By AR E

REETEE (&)

Step acquisition of Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries (Continued)
BEAREMABEEBEREFLARAIREMWE R AIZEL WEEER (&)

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 98 to 102.
BRI A BN 15 R FEISH ZE 1028 B &5 IKAE °

The Key Audit Matter
BREITSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

KW ETNAEEZSBE

The Group engaged an external valuer to perform
a valuation of the fair value of the non-controlling
interests of 48.87% held immediately before the
Group obtained control of Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group (“FV of NCI”), the fair values of non-
current tangible assets, which included lease
prepayments, investment properties, buildings,
and equipment and machinery (“FV of Tangible
Assets”), and the fair value of intangible assets
which were previously not accounted for, which
comprised a trademark and patents (“FV of
Trademark” and “FV of Patents”). The valuations
of FV of NCI and FV of Patent were assessed by
preparing discounted cash flow forecasts, which
required the exercise of significant judgement
in estimating forecast revenue and profit, the
useful lives of the patents and the discount rates
applied. The valuations of FV of Trademark and
FV of Tangible Assets were assessed using the
royalty method, the direct market comparison
approach, the depreciated replacement
cost method or other common valuation
methodologies.

EEEDZE—RINEGER - URREEEENG
T AR B 52 [ 47 I M AT BT 5 S H948.87 % IE IR AR B 2
WARE ([FEREZAARE]  FRDEVEE
(BEEERMNKIE REME BFRREMES)
WARBE(BREERAARME]) REMIARARNE
WEE (BREBELREN) 2B ((BEARE]
RIBMARE] ETHE - FERESZAABELERR
MARENGEDEBREFTRR S RETRMETT
il B R 2 MAET AN N TER - EHR A A
FHRMERITRERITEEARAE - AFEARER
BEREEARENGLEDRBEFEERE EED
SBHEE TEEERNEHEMT ROBEREE
1TaHeE -

engaging our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating discount rates applied in
the valuations of FV of NCI, FV of Trademark and
FV of Patents by comparing the discount rates
applied with those of comparable companies in
the same industry;

ZEADEEZER - UBBRMTEREERERA
nE AEARERIENARERETEANITE
R FERKBE-TRABLBRARMELBHEME
R ITIR =X

evaluating management’s assessment of the
estimated useful life of the trademark with
reference to future operating plans and our
knowledge of the pharmaceutical industry;
DEBEERKREEANEURBMBBEETENR
B ATEEEEURMIENME A A FHMIENRT
filr

evaluating management’s assessment of the
estimated useful lives of each patent with
reference to the expiry dates of respective
patents’ certifications, which were issued by the
State Intellectual Property Office of China;
2ERRINEFE (ATPEBRRNBERBDEL) 6
[Em B E - FHEEIEEYHRIBENN A A F
FTVERY TR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 “FE#HE 83



Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

REETER (&)

Step acquisition of Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries (Continued)
BEAIMABEBEREFLAAIREWE R AIZEL WEEE (&)

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 98 to 102.

LG E R EREN T 15 R FISRE 102 EEIBE °

The Key Audit Matter
BREITSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

KEHET N AEEZSBE

We identified accounting for the step acquisition
of Yulin Pharmaceutical Group as a key audit
matter because of the significant judgement
exercised in determining the fair values of the
assets and liabilities acquired, in particular the fair
values of intangible assets which were previously
not accounted for, and the fair value of the non-
controlling interests held immediately before the
Group obtained control of Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group.
BARBSENBREEEZ PN BEEBERRESSF
B RERREEMBBEERABNHAAE (KH
REAMIARABRNELEENAABREZREEER
S EMBIBEEEIT SR RA R SEERE R AR
B) BITEAEARHE -

comparing data in the discounted cash flow
forecasts with the relevant data, including
revenue, cost of sales and other operating
expenses, in the financial budget which was
approved by the Board of Directors;

KB RReREFANBBEELESTS AN
REANMBEBEE  BREWA  HEKAREMEE
P

engaging our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the parameters and
assumptions adopted in the valuations of FV of
Tangible Assets by comparing the value of land
and residential buildings with publicly available
sale prices or quotations for comparable land
and properties on a price per square metre basis
and assessing the replacement cost of other
buildings and plant, machinery and equipment by
comparison with industrial benchmarks taking into
account the remaining economic useful lives of
the relevant assets; and

ZEABEEZER  UBBHRMATEELEELAAE
HEMRANZ2BERR (FEREBR T EEFE
ENEEEFAELRT W EMENTRARESHE
BREWE (BRUBTHRREE)) - URFFEE
BT MBS RBREEENEERAR (FERKLTR
HEAEENR TR BAERFRREITEREEL
) &

considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements of the step acquisition of
Yulin Pharmaceutical Group with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
S2ERTETENNRE - ZRECUBRRTEH
EIMBREEEZ S RBEERNREER -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBERE

REVMBBRRERARBAREUAINESRS

EEFHHEMES
BANZEHER
R EEN RS -

BE - HMESERETERNE
1T RO B E A

BAESEEFMBRRNEEL NREEMER
BT A EREEMERBEREMNTANERE

o
EABRMEBANBRENES  RMAHECR

FIEEMES  FlBERY  ZEEMEEES
B AP BHRRAKMNEBFTRETRTENE
MEEERBBEREUTFFEERNERBANE
Mo EREMEMTHIE  WREMABAEM
EEFEERHERRL - RAFTERELFE -
EESE - BFPRAERRS -

EERGaMBRRAKENEE

ESARAARBEEEGRMASRMNCERH
BamELER) kBB (CRBIERDD) B E 2 R 5tE
EEMTENEAMBHRE  UHARS/ES
BMBHREROBE T FHEARE %W%%ﬁ%ﬁ
HY B A 55 AR Rt FT 75 O A BB A 1 g

EREHFEMBHRRE  EXRATEERER
BRRENE ﬁ’IEL%\ﬂT&%E?fﬁM
BRNER ARERKECERSTER B
HEFEEREEEFRRELRLE  HHEH
ERNERTR -

ERZEEWDEFTRTEEERENMBRE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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BREMPE M BRRAENES

BFNER  EHGEAVMBHRRABERBES TR
MR AFF B RME R EAERRANG S E
RiE - THABERHEMEROXEMEBE - &M
EEMEBERRRBE o BRI RAHRSED
AREEMAE - RABMTIREARENAR - &
EREMALTARSIREEREL -

BERELHKTINRFRRE  BIERERR(E
BETEL) ETNRF > EX -EARHEHRERM
TR IR AR RE B3R - SR RRERM AJ LA FR BRAF S8R aR 5
£ mREERHACMHEBRERERAETE
ARE IS RRE BB REM IS MR EL R
RTE - BB RS RRA TR RIEERX -

ERBC(EABTER) ETETHNBRESD - B
PERTEHEALE  RIFTEEEREE - &M
DINE

— BRI EERNERFFERERM GRS Y
BRRFEERBERBAWER - R K
WITRFTEF AL ELRAR - A RER
RRMBEENESRE  EREMEEDN
Hit - HRMGFAIRES MR B &
BAER - ERRA - S0 ERARERESZ
o RREHRRRARFEMERHEAE
AL R SRR R IRA R ME
HYE K SR RR PRy R o

- THREEMEBONBEH - LRHEY
BHIZR - B8 ML R KA
HINBRIEERER -



- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBERE

FEEZMRASTBRERARE T RED
EEHEFTNAEREENS R -

HEERAKBECESHERNREEE
HéEmm o RIBMENNELER  BER
EFERSHEXBRLABENERTEE
o EMAEEBHERENFEL L
NELEEARE MRBEMABA/EFEEKR
THEEN  AALBERBRMBRETRS
FEREIBRAVERPOEREKE - B
ERBENEETE  MRMAEEHRIEE
REER - IR %Eﬁ%%ﬁ’”@%ﬁ(ﬁﬂi#&i
B LBV EETERRE - A - RRFA
HBERAEERERETRERFELE -

AEFEMBEHRRNERIIHS N - &
MAR - BERE  UREEHBHRERE
ERERRIZMER

REEEANERIEHAINUKERE
HMEE L?%?Ef]%;ﬁr_m L/H?iﬂi E?T

A BEBMBT - 1*/21[1?7,%%%' %ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ%‘
2HEE -

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among B EMEBIEI - RFHEBEZEES BB THEH
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and E:t&E - FRETH - EXEHNEIRSE  8ER

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies  {f9fE 255t % Bl H A 2012 Hl B F{a] 8 KEREG ©
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lam Kai Wa.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
meEBER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HZE2016F12A31BLEFE (AARKZ7)

2016 2015

20164 20154

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

it ARET T ARBFIT

Revenue WA 2 1,223,488 831,108

Cost of sales SHE AR (312,465) (160,542)

Gross profit EF 911,023 670,566

Other income HAtn g A 3 6,104 31,329

Distribution costs 7 SHR AR (374,365) (259,043)

Administrative expenses THAX (141,666) (122,946)

Profit from operations R ER A 401,096 319,906

Finance costs IR AN 4(a) (1,509) (441)

Share of profit/(loss) of an associate  E(LEEE AT %A/ (EE) 3,865 (4,683)

Profit before taxation i B0 A 4 403,452 314,782

Income tax FriS#i 5(a) (83,795) (65,093)

Profit for the year FR=ER 319,657 249,689

Attributable to: AN AT FEfh -

— Equity shareholders of the Company  — KA al#Ezs IR E 307,526 249,689

- Non-controlling interests — IR R 12,131 -

Profit for the year FER=ER 319,657 249,689
Earnings per share (RMB yuan) BREAN (AR¥T) 8

- Basic — &K 0.32 0.25

- Diluted — s 0.32 0.25

The notes on pages 96 to 207 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the
year are set out in note 24(b).

FO6HEF207E ZHFEAX S U IEMRMERK
BB o BLEF RE F BN A D RS R A AR B 5
IFE KT FE24(b) °
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GREREREMEEEER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HZE2016F12A31BLLFE (UARKE7)

2016 2015
20165 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
Profit for the year FR=ER 319,657 249,689
Other comprehensive income for the year HE&TGgEEHF/EZEEN
that may be reclassified subsequently FREMBEUE :
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of EhEE A RAFE ([HE])
financial statements of operations BEINFE TS B B SRR A
outside the People’s Republic of EHER - HRHIE
China (the “PRC”), net of tax 150 40
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZ2EWREE 319,807 249,729
Attributable to: T AL :
— Equity shareholders of the Company — RAR) R 307,676 249,729
— Non-controlling interests — FEIEAR M 12,131 =
Total comprehensive income for the year £R2HEKISHELE 319,807 249,729

The notes on pages 96 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.

B -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
me BRI R

as at 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi)

R2016512 8318 (AARKZ25)

2016 2015
20164 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR®F ARBFIT
Non-current assets kRBEE

Investment property KEYE 9 18,552 -
Other property, plant and equipment E % - ME K& G 10 392,882 223,773
Lease prepayments METERRIE 11 86,006 23,574
Intangible assets B EE 12 489,629 =
Goodwill Ba 18 320,647 —
Other investments Hx & 14 2,600 2,600
Interest in an associate R — R & R Bl A RE RS 15(b) - 636,659
Prepayment for equity investment A% B TR K 15(b) - 62,458
Other prepayment EMIER R 16 40,400 =
Deferred tax assets RIETR A& B 23(c) 18,334 8,639
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 1,369,050 957,703

Current assets REEE
Inventories Fe 17 140,974 71,014
Trade and other receivables g5 N HE M EN A 18 576,320 399,187
Cash and cash equivalents ReE KRB EFBEAEE 19 672,711 489,987
Total current assets REEEHLE 1,390,005 960,188

Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E M E FRIE 20 483,252 201,235
Deferred income PEIE W =5 21 1,346 436
Current tax payable FE{ST BN EATR X 23(a) 62,133 27,679
Total current liabilities nEBAERE 546,731 229,350
Net current assets REEEFEE 843,274 730,838
Total assets less current liabilities @AEERABER 2,212,324 1,688,541

The notes on pages 96 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
meEBBERR R

as at 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi)
R2016FE 128318 (AARKEZ5)

2016 2015
20165 2015%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR®T ARET T
Non-current liabilities ERBASE
Deferred income PRIEW = 21 21,603 11,582
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFTRAE 23(c) 129,670 40,204
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEEHE 151,273 51,786
Net assets EERE 2,061,051 1,636,755
Capital and reserves EARR#EE
Share capital R AN 24(c) 76,237 78,074
Reserves & 24(d) 1,684,257 1,558,681
Total equity attributable to equity AARERRREGEREE
shareholders of the Company 1,760,494 1,636,755
Non-controlling interests FiERER 300,557 -
Total equity e 2,061,051 1,636,755

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R201743 308K EE I R IFRET)E -

on 30 March 2017.

AN Yubao LI Qian
ZHE BE

Chairman Executive Director
FrE HITEE

The notes on pages 96 to 207 form part of these financial 5968 & F207 8 v Ml sT A% S0 IEHMERHHERK

statements. BB
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE2016F12A31HILFE (UARKEZ5)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARAERRRER
Treasury
shares
held under Other PRC
Share Share  Exchange Capital Other Share Award treasury  statutory  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserves Scheme shares reserve  eamings Total
RERRA
RETERE
fr RGRE  ERBE  BRRE  EMEE  0ERR  EtERR tEEEEE  REEA &5t
Note RMB'0O0 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
M ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT AREBTT ARETR ARETR
note 24(c) note 24(d)(i) note 24(d)(ii) note 24(d)(iii) note 24(d)(iv) note 22(b)(i) note 24(c)(i) note 24(d)(v)
WisEod(c)  MiRE4()i) PsEa(d)ii) BEEo4(d)ii) Miskd(o)(iv) FiEEo2(b)) BEEod(c)) PHE24(d)v)
As at 1 January 2015 R201551 818 78,250 684,601 167 47,633 80,769 (45,359) - 59,815 527,310 1,433,186
Changes in equity for ~ 2015£E%£T :
2015:
Profit for the year ERngh = = = = - - - - 249,689 249,689
Other comprehensive A2 Ak
income - - 40 - - - - - - 40
Total comprehensive FENEES
income - - 40 - - - - - 249,689 249,729
Purchase of own shares ~ EREEEFR(A 22(b)i)
during the year 24(c)(ii) - - - - - (44,638) (8,840) - - (53,478)
Cancellation of shares AR
during the year 24(c)i) (176) (8,664) - - - - 8,840 - - -
Appropriations to statutory  EEZEFHE
reserve 24(d) - - - - - - - 613 (613) -
Dividends approved and &R TEIRE
paid 24(b) - (28,000) - - - - - - - (28,000)
Employees' Share Option BB B Rigst 2l
Scheme 22(a) - - - 34,762 - - - - - 34,762
Shares granted under the R 2832l
Share Award Scheme RTHRG 4(b)/22(b) - - - 556 - - - - - 556
As at 31 December 2015 }#2015612731A 78,074 647,937 207 82,951 80,769 (89,997) - 60,428 776,386 1,636,755

The notes on
statements.

pages 96 to 207 form part of these financial

BB
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEeERgEx

for the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi)
#HZ20165F12A31HILFE (AAREZ25)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARERRER

Treasury
shares held
under Share Other PRC Non-
Share Share  Exchange Capital Other Award treasury  statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves Scheme shares reserve  earnings Total interests equity
RERH
LR )
ka  BRGEE  EXRE  HARG  HEBE  NEER  HEEER TE%ERE  REEN & FBEREER ERER
Note  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Wi ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETr ARBTR ARMTR ARETr ARETn ARETR ARETR
note 24(c) note 24(d)(i) note 24(d)(ii) note 24(d)(iii) note 24(d)(iv) note 22(b)(i) note 24(c)()) note 24(d)(v)
Wiskoa(c)  BiEE4(d)() Posko4(c)(i) MrEEoa(o)(ii) MIEE24(c)iv) BHEE22(b))  MEE24(c)) MrEER4(d)(v)

As at 1 January 2016 R2016E151R 78,074 647,937 207 82,951 80,769 (89,997) - 60428 776,386 1,636,755 - 1,636,755
Changes in equity for 2016 EHEE :

2016:
Profit for the year EEA - - - - - - - - WIE6 0756 12131 319657
Other comprehensive Eth2 e

income - - 150 - - - - - - 150 - 150
Total comprehensive SENGEE

income - - 150 - - - - - 307,526 307,676 12,131 319,807
Purchase of own shares  £REEH SR

during the year 24(c)ii) - - - - - - (81,132) - - (81,132) - (81,132)
Cancellation of shares FREHRG

during the year 24(c)i) (1,837) (79,295) - - - - 81,132 - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries  KEEHBAR 15(b) - - - - - - - - - - 348827 348,827
Acquisition of Wi RiER

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - (23,158)  (23,158)  (124,209)  (147,367)
Capital injection from JeiEs

non-controlling interests  #E &%}

holders - - - - - - - - 12,31 12,31 63,808 76,179
Appropriations to BRTERRRE

statutory reserve 24(d) - - - - - - - 7,876 (7,876) - - -
Dividends approved and i RE EIRE

paid 24(b) - (1451 - - - - - - - (a1 - (Me51)
Employees' Share Option S MRiE: 2

Scheme 22(a) - - - 21,590 - - - - - 21,590 - 21,590
Shares granted under the  RER £ 4(b)

Share Award Scheme EF0ke 20(b) - - - 904 - - - - - 904 - 904
Shares vested under the RIS EB3 2l

Share Award Scheme Lol 20(b) - - - (1,355) - 1,355 - - - - - -
As at 31 December 2016 20165128318 76,237 454,130 357 104,090 80,769 (88,642) - 68,304 1,085,249 1,760,494 300,557 2,061,051

The notes on pages 96 to 207 form part of these financial 968 & $2078 2 Mk AL EHRERMBRK
statements. Eip o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
ll'/_\éiﬁlﬁﬁii

for the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE2016F12A31HILFE (UARKEZ5)

2016 2015
20165 2015%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR®T ARET T
Operating activities KeEER
Cash generated from operations KL TSR G 19(b) 511,318 246,818
PRC income tax paid BN PBIATEE 23(a) (62,141) (62,775)
Net cash generated from REFTHRBEELSTFE
operating activities 449,177 184,043
Investing activities REEE
Interest received 2 W F B 22,988 13,849
Net cash acquired through acquisition W EHIB A FIESFRE -
of subsidiaries, net of cash paid MEEZ R 15(b) 165,647 =
Payment for interest in an associate LA — R4 A AR N K 15(b) (31,612) (641,342)
Prepayment for equity investment RSB FEA R 15(b) - (62,458)
Payment for purchase of other BEHMYZE BB RBHED
property, plant and equipment FIE (25,028) (17,281)
Payment for leasehold land FAE TR 16 (40,400) -
Proceeds received from disposal of ~ BUHEWE - HE & EE
property, plant and equipment FriS sk I8 293 526
Decrease in available-for-sale AftHESREERD
financial assets - 250,900
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFERE (FiA)
investing activities HEFE 91,888 (455,806)
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds of loans and borrowings B RERFrERIE - 95,000
Repayments of loans and borrowings B M & FGEF (90,000) (95,000)
Dividends paid BRI E (114,512) (28,000)
Interest paid EHE (1,509) (441)
Payment for purchase of shares HEARGEEETEIET
under Share Award Scheme B&AD BT 3R - (44,638)
Payment for repurchase of shares BB B R4 5T HAR 1 &Y
which were subsequently cancelled INEN (81,132) (8,840)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W& JEIE Mz 15(c) (147,367) -
Proceeds of capital injection from FEIE AR E R A AR B AT 508
non-controlling interests holders 15(d) 76,179 -
Net cash used in financing activities ®&EEEMARSEE (358,341) (81,919)
Net increase/(decrease) BHEFHESEEEAN
in cash and cash equivalents B0 GRd) B5E 182,724 (353,682)
Cash and cash equivalents M AIBENEER
at 1 January HeEHEER 489,987 843,669
Cash and cash equivalents M12A31ENEER
at 31 December HeEEER 672,711 489,987

The notes on pages 96 to 207 form
statements.

part of these financial
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=FEHEHIN

1

96 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/ESEABRAA

AARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 1(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
the nearest thousand, which is the functional

rounded to

currency of the subsidiaries carrying out the
principal activities of the Group.

1
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(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 28.

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=FEHEHIN

1

AARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective

issued a number of

for the current accounting period of the Group.
None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

98 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/EXSEABRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 1(m)).

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=FEHEHIN

AARESIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

100 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/FXSEBRAA

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group
or Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and

operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of
the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see notes 1(f) and (m)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.

1

EXREHEE (&)

(e)

BENT

BE N REAREES ARG E

2 ) - B0 B E sl AR 2
HEEBZH (PESENEREE
RE) HEES ©

REEE QR IR E R E VI HRE
RS EARR - BIEERE @ 1%
B REANRE - WA EEE
ERIRERRKBE BRI EE
SFER A EEE 1R E A AN A ]
i (A) IEHFAE - & - Z
BREREAEEMERIRERRE
EFEOERKEENEE REZ
2E (MW E1HRmM) BEH
EREBEELAZE - WEE A
A EA D - NREBFRA
BRI E R RIRBEMHEEE
AR RESERGEEBREERA
BR - MASEEGFRERTIR
BEMOFREEMEmIKRESEEB R
ARBEREMEEKSERAER

EAKERGEHBERREBERBEAE
PRt iy - N SR B A0 B 2 A R0
ET WARIIERE-TERE -
WM AEECELERIHEER
£ HERKRBRE R BT FAR
S o BEULTE - AN S B Y HE 51 2 A
mREDAHERENEEE &
RIEE LRBKEBIAREREEA
AREFEN R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 1(m)), unless
classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for
sale)).

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 1(Q)).

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=FEHEHIN

1

102 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZESEEER QA

AARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 1(m)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Other investments in equity securities

Investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
are initially stated at fair value, which is their
transaction price unless it is determined that the
fair value at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an
identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction
costs, except where indicated otherwise below.

Investments in securities are classified as
available-for-sale securities. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve.
As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in an
active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably
measured are recognised in the statement of
financial position at cost less impairment losses
(see note 1(m)).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.
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AARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

()

Investment property

Investment properties are land and buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 1(l)) to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. Investment properties
are measured initially at cost. The cost of a
purchased investment property comprises its
purchases price and any direct attributable
expenditures. Investment properties are
accounted for using the cost model and stated
in the statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(m)). The cost of investment
property, less its estimated residual value and
accumulated impairment losses, is depreciated
using the straight-line method over its estimated
useful lives as follows.

° Land use right 57 years

o Buildings 6 years

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(m)):

- Buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land classified as
held under operating leases (see note
1(1)); and

- Other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0

Other property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of
the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than
50 years after the date of completion

- Machinery and equipment 5 - 20 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
- Office equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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AARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

(k)

Research and development costs

Research and development costs comprise
all costs that are directly attributable to
research and development activities or that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such
activities. Because of the nature of the Group’s
research and development activities, the criteria
for the recognition of such costs as an asset are
generally not met until late in the development
stage of the project when the remaining
development costs are immaterial. Hence both
research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period
in which they are incurred.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 1(m)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which
it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for
use or date of acquisition, whichever is shorter
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Patents 8 — 13 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively
from the date of change and in accordance with
the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.

Lease assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.
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AARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()] Lease assets (Continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under
an operating lease is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.

(m) Impairment of assets

(1)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and
other receivables that are stated at cost
or amortized cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more
of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; and

= significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any
impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

- For investments in associates
accounted for under the equity
method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 1(e)), the
impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note
1(m)(ii). The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note

1(m)(ii).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

110 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/FESEEABRAA

For unquoted equity securities
carried at cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at
the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost are not
reversed.

For trade and other current
receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material.

If in a subsequent period the
amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

1 EXREHEE (&)

(m) ¥EEREE)

() KREEBFRKERAMERS
B ()

AR A AN 51 B B 4R ¥R
BERAZZME @ R
EBEBRLDUNEREE
FREE SRS EHRRIEA
EREMERNER
AR BT ER
BEX - ARELC SR
BEEMER ™S E R
YT o WARAT IR
B A AN RE 5B (B & 1R
SR -

S DA 55 A AR 51 iR
B 5 R EAMIRE B
FIRME - BEEIR
TIRBEEMREE
HBEFARAKRBAERE
BEWEBNERET
B IR ERE
K- AREREER
BB = (A 4h e
RELEFEERGED

BEBRFIE) R -

el 5 12 B RUE &S
BB MARH
Rl B e R Ol (A 1R
BRELENEHAER
Bl e - AIBRR
BEEREBBRERE
[B] o )R B /&5 18 1Y 5 [
TREHEEMRE
BERBHEBEFE
R HEREREE
BMEETHEHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly,
except for impairment losses recognised
in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and
other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

112 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ESEER QA

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- investment property;

- other property, plant and equipment;

- lease prepayments;

- intangible assets;

= goodwill;

- interest in an associate; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’'s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other assets (Continued)

= Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an

if there has been a

impairment loss
is reversed
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are
recognised.
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first
six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year (see notes 1(m)(i) and

(ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment
(Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill,
available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost
are not reversed in a subsequent period.
This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only
at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder
of the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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AARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(P)

(a)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 1(m)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings, together with any interest and
fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash

at bank and on hand, demand deposits with

banks and other financial institutions, and

short-term, highly liquid investments that are

readily convertible into known amounts of cash

and which are subject to an insignificant risk

of changes in value, having been within three

months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Contribution to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred, except to the
extent that they are included in the cost
of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
AARKEIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(BR=FEHEHIN

1

118 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/FESEABRAA

(s)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in
a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the
binomial tree model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it
is included in the amount recognised in
share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly
to retained profits).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(1)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=FEHEHIN

AARESIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

120 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/FESEBRAA

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax
liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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AARESIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

(u)

122 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/FESEABRAA

Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on

either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to

realise the current tax assets and

settle the current tax liabilities on

a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to

settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided

it is probable that the economic benefits will

flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if

applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered at the customers’ premises
which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss
in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are
earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

(w)

124 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/FESEABRAA

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are initially recognised as deferred
income and subsequently recognised
as other income in profit or loss over the
useful life of the assets.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

1

ERETHE (&)
(v) WARER (&)
(iv) BFF#E

(w)

BEAAGEREASEKES
Yo 31| B8 A 468 B 3 & 98 <7 LY
HIRME - BSmMens
RS R AT ARER -
RIEHERSEMELNR
XHHBRELEFRXHE—
HEA Zp R Es R A
Rl - MEAKEEE
PR 7S ) 48 B 1) 2 e 2R A AR AT
WA HBERZBEENA
ERFHNBRERAERS
H s e

Sl

FANINERZRZTIRN R 5 B HH
SNEERE R E o DUONEETEM R
BERBERNEE BRI
PE R o [ 5 Ua & B TN 18
BmRATER -

AINE R E LA ANGH BRI IEEHE
ENBEDERRR S BHHINE
E R - AR EFIBRAASNE
AHEFREREERBEDNERARNE
EAREE BHINEER;BE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates

results of foreign operations are

approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into
Renminbi at the closing foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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AARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Related parties

(a)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iiif)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(2)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly

controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has

significant influence over the

entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a

group of which it is a part, provides

key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s
parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical

locations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=FEHEHIN

AARESIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(@

128 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/FESEABRAA

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
manufacturing and sales of pharmaceuticals.

The amount of each significant category of
revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

1 EXREHEE (&)

(@)

D EWE (&)

A BHmREMS - A5 T2HAMER
EERENE  BRIFEZFNAER
BB - BEEmRRBE T
B -HEIRFUHE FERPEAEY
P& - D HE MR RIS P E
MDA EERENEE ST A
W WEN T EZNEEDBNTE
REDZERE - RIFETAH -

2 WA R 7 BB R &

(a)

LN
AEENTEXBREREERE

£® o
=]

RERERNSEZRABR NS
UK :

2016 2015

20165 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

Kidney medicines BIRELY) 734,476 645,164
Contrast medium Elnag 125,033 121,460
Others Hh 363,979 64,484
1,223,488 831,108




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

(b)

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

2 WARDBEHE (&)

Revenue (Continued) (a WA #E)
Revenue from major customers contributing over REBRMASERABIREI0%8E
10% of the revenue of the Group, is as follows, EREHWA (BFERANEBESE
including sales to entities which are known to the HZER P HEEE 7 E2BEL
Group to be under common control with these RHE) IR :
customers:
2016 2015
20165 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETTT
Customer A EFEH 338,430 287,064
Customer B BFEZ 141,510 N/A TiE
Revenue from customer B contributed less than R E E=2015F12A31H I F E -
10% of the revenue of the Group for the year REBRFOHBAERMDRAEE
ended 31 December 2015. WAHKI10% ©
Segment reporting (b) SIBHE

The Group manages its businesses by production
lines. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following two reportable segments.

- Consun Pharmaceutical Segment: this
segment manufactures and sells modern
Chinese medicines and medical contrast
medium.

- Yulin Pharmaceutical Segment: this
segment manufactures and sells traditional
Chinese medicines.

AEBREEREBEEER - A&
EME25 T HMmERBERDE - H
ST RSN EER KR ERER
BHMAAKRESETREEAR
AEHREERN T AEB—B -

- BRAEDE W BEE
K SHE IR A A B K B AR
R LLA o

- EARESE: HHBEE
R 85 (B 0P PR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

()

130 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/FXSEABRAA

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to
each reportable segment on the following

bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference
to sales generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from
the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments. However,
other than reporting inter-segment sales
of pharmaceutical products, assistance
provided by one segment to another,
including sharing of assets and technical
know-how, is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment
profit is gross profit. The Group’s senior
executive management is provided with
segment information concerning segment
revenue and gross profit. Segment assets
and liabilities are not reported to the
Group’s senior executive management
regularly.

2

WARDB®RSE (&)
D EWE (&)

(b)

(i)

DERE BERAE

RFHE D BRI R E D B E
AERER  AEERRTH
EIRABRBIATEEELR
BER2H D MWEMENES
BENGRE:

WARRSX RS RZED
BREE £ A 3H B B X B S 3Rk
ENBRIGEETENEH

EENRX - PEER2]
D EB o PR - BR 2D HBME
E’\J??liu“u HESN - — & B

— (@S HRENTE (B
%/\ S EENEMEMM
#) B R FLAEE o

F 7 8P MR IR B
EF - AREEREEEE
o

AR OBBARENE
o nHEERABRERY
BERASEEREEEEY
EE ¥R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s
reportable segments as provided to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for
the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015 is set out below.

Consun
Pharmaceutical

(BR=AEIEHN -

IAARESITR)

2 WARDHBRE (&)
(b) SDEHE (E)
(i) DE¥E BEREE ()

# =20164F &20155F12 H31
HIEFE - BoREERKEET
mABREMAALEE RS
THEBABSRENAEH
AEWmH 2 ERE Y 0

T o

Yulin
Pharmaceutical

Segment Segment Total
BERED EHEES I et
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
2016 20154  2016%F 20154 20165  2015%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARSTR ARETT
Note
BisE
Reportable segment T 2H{H
revenue WA
Revenue from REIND
external customers EEHRA 946,140 831,108 277,348 - 1,223,488 831,108
Reportable segment T 2H{ 75
profit eyl
Gross profit EA 748,798 670,566 162,225 - 911,023 670,566
Note: Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group Mat: EREMBESEEGR

Co., Ltd (“Yulin Pharmaceutical’) and

its subsidiaries (collectively referred

to as “Yulin Pharmaceutical Group”)

became subsidiaries of the Group on 19
July 2016 (see note 15(b)). Therefore,

segment result of Yulin Pharmaceutical

Group represents the financial

performance from the 19 July 2016 to 31

December 2016.

BEEAR (I EMEE])
LEKHBRAR(GHE
RIEMBEEE]) B
20167 A198 &k A A
SERBAR (RHE
15(b)) « AL+ EME
EEENSIEBERRK
H H2016F7A190 =
2016%F12H31H &y At
BRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REBEAIN  LARKBTIR)
2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 2 WARDEHRE (&)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ABHE (&)
(ii)  Reconciliations of reportable segment (i)  F 2, EEFIBE AR
profit
2016 2015
2016 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Reportable segment gross profit R BERNEFINERFE 2
derived from the Group’s A 23k D HEF
external customers 911,023 670,566
Other income HAUgA 6,104 31,329
Distribution costs U= ] DN (374,365) (259,043)
Administrative expenses TEAX (141,666) (122,946)
Finance costs B RS A AN (1,509) (441)
Share of profit/(loss) of FE(RER S N ENER]
an associate (E18) 3,865 (4,683)
Consolidated profit before taxation 4R& %3 Al il 403,452 314,782
(iii) Geographic information (iii) HEEH

Analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results as well as analysis of the Group’s
carrying amount of segment assets and
additions to property, plant and equipment
by geographical market has not been
presented as the Group’s operating
profit is entirely derived from activities of
manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical
products in the PRC.

132 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EEX/FXSEABRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

OTHER INCOME 3 HA WA
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBTT
Government grants (i) BT BN()
- Unconditional subsidies — AR 1,664 509
— Conditional subsidies (note 21) — BIEMEEY (H5E21) 1,154 436
Rental income from investment wEMERSHA
properties 455 =
Interest income .2 U 2 3,299 27,531
Loss on disposal of property, BEEME  BEL
plant and equipment REELENER (762) (1,554)
Loss on deemed disposal of an RRIE E N RMEE
associate (note 15(b)(i)) (BFzE15(b)(i)) (827) =
Others Hitb 1,121 4,407
6,104 31,329
(i)  Government grants represent various forms of BT #68 B 75 P B 3 5 BUR R % T

incentives and subsidies granted to the Group by
the local government authorities in the PRC.

- Unconditional subsidies

The entitlements of certain government
grants amounting to RMB1,664,000 (2015:
RMB509,000) were unconditional. They
were funds to subsidise the operating
expenses of the PRC subsidiaries of the
Group during the current or prior years.

- Conditional subsidies

The remaining government grants were
conditional government grants and initially
recorded as deferred income. The amount
of conditional government grants charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2016
was RMB1,154,000 (2015: RMB436,000)
(see note 21).

REBEO R 2R S iRk -

- EREwHE

] & K 4 BT & B 615
+ 5 A A R ¥1,664,0007C
(20155 = A R %509,000
) HAKAEEAES
B3R A M B A R A FE R B
TFENEEER -

- BIRHRE

HARTE B A RGBT
B REFEELEAERT
WA o BIEHBATE BT
A Bl £20165F12H318 1
FEMNRABERNESEA
A R #1,154,0007T (2015
& AR #¥436,00070) (R
BizE21) »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 4 i A E A
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BADREF MG (G A) L& IEEE
(crediting): e
(a) Finance costs (a) BRI
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Interest on bank loans RITERF A 1,509 441
(b) Staff costs (b) BIRX
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFIT
Salaries, wages, bonuses and e 1LE - B REF
benefits 169,533 114,243
Contributions to defined FEHE R RFT B
contribution retirement schemes 7,524 4,566
Equity settled share-based VARG HE 45 E 30 LARR 19
payments: AEBHOAR
Share Option Scheme (note 22(a))  B&ERIESTE (HizE22(a)) 21,590 34,762
Share Award Scheme (note 22(b))  R&{n #ZEpEt 2] (MFzE22(b)) 904 556
199,551 154,127

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the local government
authorities whereby the PRC subsidiaries are
required to make contributions to the Schemes
based on certain percentages of the eligible
employee’s salaries. The local government authorities
are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees. The Group has
no other obligations for payments of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of employees other
than the contributions described above.

134 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/FXSEBRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 4 Bian=aA (&)
(c) Other items (c) HftEH
2016 2015
20165 2015%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ikz3 ARMT T ARETTT
Depreciation e
— Investment properties — BB 9 338 -
— Other property, plant and — HiWE - BER
equipment Ba 10 24,026 18,589
Amortisation b
— lease prepayments — HEBNRIE 11 1,378 627
- intangible assets —BEEE 12 14,707 -
Auditor’s remuneration ZERN B &
— audit services — Bt IR 2,100 2,100
— non-audit services — JEBETIRTS 1,580 450
Impairment losses recognised/ R, (BE) HRE
(reversed) for doubtful debts SRR 18 18 1,174 (5613)
Operating lease charges KEHEEA 2,370 970
Research and development cost’  fiff 2% pk Ax# 38,154 31,287
Cost of inventories* FERB A" 17 312,465 160,542
During the year ended 31 December 2016, u HZE2016F12A31ALEFE -

research and development cost include
RMB8,522,000 (2015: RMB6,497,000) relating
to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation
expenses and operating lease charges, which
amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in the

note 4(b) for each of these types of expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
cost of inventories include RMB63,918,000
(2015: RMB36,809,000) relating to staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation expenses, which
amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in the

note 4(b) for each of these types of expenses.

MK ARBIFEEE TR - 4T
ERBERINCEREE
FA A B M) A R 18,522,000
(20155 : A R %6,497,000
7T) + A L@ B IRET A £SOk
Ao B R ERE BB
EFEER SN o

HZE2016F12A31ALFE -
FERABFERS TRA - 7
ERBHERAI KL EER
8 B " A R %63,918,0007T
(20154 : A R #36,809,000
7T) - A E@FEIRET A £SOk
Ao B R ERE B E
EIRELE S ERN -
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

5

the Cayman lIslands and the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman

[slands and the BVI.

(i) No provision was made for Hong Kong (ii)

Profits Tax as the Group did not earn

income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax

for the years ended 31 December 2015

and 2016.

136 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/FESEABRAA

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5 REBERRANAEHR
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HREBBFRAMNBIAE
profit or loss represents:
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Current tax BENHARL 18
Provision for PRC income tax FERN PR TSR EE
for the year 94,010 61,120
Under-provision for PRC income BEFEFBEMSE
tax in respect of prior years BT 2 510 2,201
94,520 63,321
Deferred tax IRIERLIE
Origination and reversal of EEAE NG B B E
temporary differences 3 (10,725) 1,772
83,795 65,093
(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of (i) BERESHES REER R

E(RBELEEB] MR
ARG - ANEBEBARF
TSR -

AR EEREZ2015F &
2016128318 It F E I
ERIUBEBMB BT SR
WA - B\ EBFGH
TEH B -



5 INCOME TAX

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents: (Continued)

(iiif)

Taxable income for the subsidiaries of the
Company in the PRC is subject to PRC
income tax rate of 25%, unless otherwise
specified.

Consun Pharmaceutical (Inner Mongolia)
Co., Ltd. (“Inner Mongolia Consun”)
and Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Guangzhou Consun”)
were qualified as an “Advanced and New
Technology Enterprise”, Inner Mongolia
Consun and Guangzhou Consun were
entitled to the preferential income tax rate
of 15% from 2015 to 2017 and 2014 to
2016, respectively.

Yulin Pharmaceutical and Guangxi Yulin
Pharmaceutical Capsule Co., Limited
(“Yulin Capsule”) were qualified as
encouraged industry that operates in
western China. Yulin Pharmaceutical
and Yulin Capsule were entitled to the
preferential income tax rate of 15% from
2011 to 2020.

Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
Yuming Chinese Traditional Medicine Co.,
Limited (“Yuming Chinese Traditional
Medicine”), Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group Hongsheng Trading Co., Limited
(“Hongsheng Trading”) and Guangxi
Yulin Yunxiang Real Estate Co., Limited
(“Yunxiang Real Estate”) met the criteria
to apply for preferential income tax rate
granted to small and low profit-making
enterprises in the PRC, and were entitled
to the preferential income tax rate of 10%
in 2016.

Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
Yonglv Chinese Traditional Medicine
Industry Co., Limited (“Yonglv Chinese
Traditional Medicine”) met the exemption
criteria on income generated through
planting of agricultural products and was
exempted from income tax in 2016.

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

5 HRBEZXRANAER (&)

(a) HEBBRAWHRERE : (&)

(iii)

BRIERERE  TRIART
B o B8 B /B 2 ) ) R SR A U
AR 25 %M B R BT B
PSR -

RE#EZX (AEH) BRE
Fral(RETEE] &
BMEEZ#EGR AR ([E
MEE ) ERFE A=
¥ ASHREREMNE
E f] 9 Bl 20154 £2017
F K20145F £2016F £ %
BEMEHHE15% o

TR B JE 70 T AR BB
BEBERAA(EMBE]
ERFEANTRAIEERN
HEMEEXAT 0 TG
M EMRBRERG A 201152
2020F ZRBEMEHBE
15% o

EREHEETHPEGR
EELR([EsPE]) -
BREEMBEERLEAE
SBEREETA AR ([EHE
2 REREMNEREES
Raal ((EEBE]) /4
IEARER R T B/ GF
TEMNEEMEMBE - W
R2016F Z X BEEATSHH
R10% °

FEVE SR 5 B ok AR P SR =
BRAF ([kBEHE]) F
AEEREERBRANERRIZ
£ W R2016FEE B AR
FrisHi
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

5 INCOME TAX

IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a)
profit or loss represents: (Continued)

(iv)  According to the relevant tax law and its

implementation rules, dividends receivable

by non-PRC-resident corporate investors

from PRC-resident enterprises are subject

to withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced

by tax treaties or arrangements, for profits

earned since 1 January 2008. The Group
has adopted the 10% withholding tax rate
for PRC withholding tax purposes.

REBBERANAER (&)

mEBERRANBIRE : (&)

(iv)

BB B @R E R H E 4
Bl - B JE 520081 A 1H
HB R ER A g ) JE TR 7% 1R 91 =K
ZHER - TABEFEER
TEFEERKTEERD
E R BAEZ10% 8 M TE 0
et BREHEmME - A&
EEE R A10%H 78 40§

(b) Reconciliation between tax expenses and (b) HEMXRREARRAENSH
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: i M R AR
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Profit before taxation for the year F AT B A 403,452 314,782
Notional tax on profit before AR B AR
taxation, calculated at the wAERRETERD
rates applicable to profits BADE N B B &R BB
in the jurisdictions concerned 106,043 79,491
Effect of non-deductible expenses ] {155 S B 52 & 19,650 16,915
Effect of tax concession RIS E R A & (42,408) (31,324)
Recognition of previous year ERBEFEARERTS
unrecognised tax losses &5 - (2,190)
Under-provision in respect of BEFERETE
prior years 510 2,201
Actual tax expenses ERHIERX 83,795 65,093
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

AN =
e MR MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEI - UARKEIIR)

6 EEME

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section

383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and

Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

RIEE S (R TR F38(NERAT
(REEBFHER) KAFBIMRE
BENEEWSFENT -

Year ended 31 December 2016

BZ2016F12831ALEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonus contribution payment (i) Total
Ei =411 BRI R A
EzHE REVERN WA TR ERMARAI) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%¥TR AR®TR AR®TR AR%®TR AR%T:R
Executive directors TESE
Mr. AN Yubao ZHELE 1,300 1,080 6,285 - 5,072 13,737
Ms. LI Qian Lt 1,320 974 6,285 19 5,072 13,670
Mr. ZHU Quan KERE 435 587 - - 314 1,336
Non-executive directors ~ FHTES
Mr. WANG Shunlong TIERELAE - - - - - -
Mr. LIN Sheng (ii) RER 55 A (i) - - - - - -
Independent non- BYFYTES
executive directors
Mr. SU Yuanfu HrELE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. FENG Zhongshi BEHELEL: 120 - - - - 120
Ms. CHENG Xinxin IR Z £ 120 - - - - 120
3,415 2,641 12,570 19 10,458 29,103
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=FEHEHIN

AARESIR)

6 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

6 EEME (F)

Year ended 31 December 2015

HZ2015F12A31B L EE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonus  contribution  payment (i) Total
He o 28 R IRAD A
E20E  REDETN MiETEA ATEIRER EREEAR() @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Executive directors HITES
Mr. AN Yubao ZHERE 1,300 1,080 4,778 - 8,782 15,940
Ms. LI Qian Bfg+ 1,320 974 4,778 19 8,782 15,873
Mr. ZHU Quan RERE 435 729 - - 2,157 3,321
Non-executive directors ~ JF#HITEE
Mr. WANG Shunlong FIBERE - - - - - -
Independent non- BT
executive directors =
Mr. SU Yuanfu #LfELE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. FENG Zhongshi BHELE 120 = = = = 120
Ms. CHENG Xinxin BRIk 120 - - - - 120
3,415 2,783 9,556 19 19,721 35,494

(i)

140 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED RE#ZESEEER QA

These represent the estimated value of share
options granted to the directors under the
Company’s Share Option Scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 1(s)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted,
are disclosed under the paragraph “Share Option
Scheme” in the directors’ report and note 22(a).

Mr. Lin Sheng was appointed as non-executive
director on 1 April 2016.

(i)

BERRBEAQRBRETEET
B ERENGKEEEB ZEHE
BENEEEBAEBELHURG B
EMONRRZOGHEE (R
MIEE1(s)(ii)) 51 & °

2EEMRAMNFE (BEELE

BOETEGALEB) EES
H &
22(a

=113

%

A%
=
=R

H[EERETE] — R EWE
2) B -

MBS £ R2016F4A1H E L (T
BIERITESE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 7

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, three
(2015: three) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 6. The aggregate of
the emoluments in respect of the other two (2015: two)
individuals are as follows:

AN =
e MR MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEI - UARKEIIR)

REHMAL

hAGERIFMALTHRAE=H (20155 - =
Z) RARNBIES - HEMRM 64K -
BN (20154 + M%) A THIH B2
PN

2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETTT

Salaries and other emoluments e & E b 3 B 1,614 1,309
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT - -
Contributions to retirement scheme RORET IR 31 15
Share-based payment LARS 17 A ERE B 3R 1,213 1,654

2,858 2,978

The emoluments of the two (2015: two) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

Mm% (20155 : MB) x=mFHMALTHH
B FATEE -

2016 2015

20165 2015%F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

ALTEH ATEE

HK$1,000,000 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,000/% 7L £ 2,000,000 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,000 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,000/ 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T - 1

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 FE&HE 141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=FEHEHIN

8

AARESIR)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@

Basic earnings per share

8 BRER

(a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share

is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB307,526,000
(2015: RMB249,689,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of
959,503,000 shares (2015: 981,567,000 shares)
in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

BREXRZF

BRERARBAMNDBIBEBEFAARRD
AEEREEMGLE AR
307,526,0007T (2015%F : A R ¥
249,689,0007T) K& B 1T & MK
#Y hn #E F 15 £0959,503,0008% A% {5
(20154 : 981,567,000/% B 1) &t
B AHENT

Weighted average number of ordinary shares EiE IR INREE B
2016 2015
20164 20154
’000 shares 000 shares
TR T
Issued ordinary shares MIA1BE &I SRR
at 1 January 997,757 1,000,000
Effect of shares repurchased and BE O] R iR D Ry e 2
cancelled (18,325) (286)
Effect of shares purchased under  J&f5 #EB) 5t 2118 B A
the Share Award Scheme BRhHewE (20,000) (18,147)
Effect of awarded shares vested [&1n d2 BT 2118 T 2B A fn
under the Share Award Scheme SEBRTE 71 =
Weighted average number of M12A31 B E AR IniE T 58
ordinary shares at 31 December 959,503 981,567
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8 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Diluted earnings per share

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

8 EBREF(E)

(b)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share

for the year ended 31 December 2016 is based

on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB307,526,000 (2015:
RMB249,689,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 959,734,000 shares
(2015: 981,786,000 shares), calculated as

follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

BREERF

H E2016F12A31H L EFEN T
IREEE B A Ty IRBE AR A B = iR
R E AL & A A R #307,526,000
7T (20154 A K #249,689,000
Jo) R EE R M N EF Y H
959,734,0008% A& 13 (20154 :
981,786,000/ fx 17) 5t & * & &
AR

BEERMEF9H (85F)

(diluted)
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
’000 shares ‘000 shares
TR T
Weighted average number of 123318 L@
ordinary shares at 31 December In#EF98 959,503 981,567
Dilutive effect of awarded shares R D 2R ETEITE T
under the Share Award Scheme AL EA (D B s R 231 219
Weighted average number of 712 4318 I imAk hntE
ordinary shares (diluted) g (#5E)
at 31 December 959,734 981,786

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and

2015, the effect of the Company’s Share Option

Scheme (see note 22(a)) was anti-dilutive.

R E 220164F &2015F12A31H
IEFE - RARIEIRERE (26
fizE22(a)) AREEHE -
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

9 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 9 REWM=E
RMB’000
ARETTT
Cost 24
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and MR2015F1A1H » 201512 HA31H
1 January 2016 20161 H1H =
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries BRWENBARRE
(note 15(b)(ii)) (P 5E15(b)(ii)) 18,890
At 31 December 2016 ®2016%12A318 18,890
Accumulated depreciation: ZHTE -
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and 201551 H1H  2015F12H31H
1 January 2016 201651 H1H =
Charge for the year FRkR (338

At 31 December 2016

72016412 A31H

Net book value:
At 31 December 2016

BREFE -
72016912 A831H

At 31 December 2015

7R2015%12A31H

Investment properties of the Group are situated in

Guangxi Province of the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 5-10 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased every year to
reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment property are
classified as investment property.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as

AN =
e MR MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEI - UARKEIIR)

REWE (&)

AEEREKLHEELHREME - 1%
HEIE R5-105F - Rz BRAEEEY
ERSENHEMBGR - HEMNFER
SEFEM URBRHEES - HEME
BRIERES

PIBNEERERTSINRBUNTARE
MENERDRRBR/RENE -

AEBREIAIHGROEELHEERKRE
W SR E KB T

follows:
2016
20164
RMB’000
AR¥F T
Within 1 year 1FER 1,506
After 1 year but within 5 years 1F&E5F R 1,473
After 5 years 5% 1% 123

Investment properties of the Group were stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
carrying amounts of the investment properties were
not materially different from their fair value as at 31
December 2016.

REBWIREMERTE VBT TIRK
BB E LR EEIESER - 20165
12A3TAREMENREEHEAE AR EL
mEBEAEER -
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSBERIN  AAREDIR)
10 OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 HWx - BERRE
Machinery
and Motor Office Construction
Buildings equipment  vehicles equipment in progress Total
BF HERRE AE WARE HRIR @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥Tr AR®TR AR%Tx AR%Tn AR¥Tn
Cost: B
At 1 January 2015 20151 18 181,443 97,858 10,535 10,929 6,727 307,492
Transfer from construction BHERIE
in progress =i 6,991 523 = = (7,514) -
Other additions HiRE 1,437 4,347 2,979 1,055 4,710 14,528
Disposals RE (87) (8,197) (553) (921) - (9,758)
At 31 December 2015 and  72015%12531H
1 January 2016 %2016E1H1H 189,784 94,531 12,961 11,063 3,923 312,262
Addition though acquisition & BKENBA 7
of subsidiaries NE
(note 15(b)(ii)) (P E15(b)(ii)) 77,384 23,495 1,066 1,357 71,772 175,074
Transfer from construction BERIZEHR
in progress 32,213 42,235 - 66 (74,514) -
Other additions HAE 124 6,568 1,472 2,040 8,912 19,116
Disposals BE - (5,379) (1,295) (338) - (7,012)
At 31 December 2016 R2016512831H 299,505 161,450 14,204 14,188 10,093 499,440
Accumulated depreciation: Z:HE :
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 /18 (34,331) (29,897) (7,526) (5,824) = (77,578)
Charge for the year FRk (7,442) (9,318) (578) (1,251) = (18,589)
Written back on disposal ~ REEH &M 49 6,404 498 727 = 7,678
At 31 December 2015 and  }2015%F12A31H
1 January 2016 %2016F1 A 1H (41,724) (32,811) (7,606) (6,348) - (88,489)
Charge for the year FNMK (10,100) (10,673) (1,235) (2,018) = (24,026)
Written back on disposal R &[0l = 4,548 1,165 244 = 5,957
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12831H (51,824) (38,936) (7,676) (8,122) - (106,558)
Net book value: BREEE
At 31 December 2016 R2016E12A31H 247,681 122,514 6,528 6,066 10,093 392,882
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12831H 148,060 61,720 5,355 4715 3,923 223,773
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11

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN =
e MR MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEI - UARKEIIR)

OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 HE#t¥% BER®RE (&)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this M20165F12H31H RE ZE AR E A & -
report, the Group is in the process of applying for 2N £ B IF £ 7t BR T (B A R #4,026,0007T
certificates of ownership for certain properties, with (201565F12H31H : A K #29,381,000
carrying value of RMB4,026,000 (31 December 2015: T0) MEBETYMXERFMEERE - XAF
RMB29,381,000). The directors of the Company are of EERR - ERLEAMERE EAYER
the opinion that the use of and the conduct of operating EREBFHI TG EARNER HARIIGHA
activities at the properties referred to above are not MEFEZFEMIITE o
affected by the fact that the Group has not yet obtained
the relevant property title certificates.
As at 31 December 2016, the original cost of the fixed M20165F12A31H - ERRRITEENMERE
assets that have been fully depreciated but are still in FRMETE & ERERAKEK32599,000
use was RMB32,599,000 (2015: RMB27,585,000). JC (20154 : AR®27,585,0007T) ©
LEASE PREPAYMENTS 11 HERMRE
RMB’000
AR¥ETTT
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and R2015%F181H » 2015F12A31H
1 January 2016 K2016F1H1H 29,808
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries FRWEMRBARRNE
(note 15(b)(ii)) (BF=E15(b)(ii)) 63,810
At 31 December 2016 120165 12H31H 93,618
Accumulated amortisation: HotEes -
At 1 January 2015 R2015%F1H1H (5,607)
Charge for the year FRHk (627)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R2015F 12 A31H &2016F1H1H (6,234)
Charge for the year F IR (1,378)
At 31 December 2016 20165124311 (7,612)
Net book value: BRIENEE
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12H31H 86,006
At 31 December 2015 7R2015%F12H31H 23,574
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

11 LEASE PREPAYMENTS (Continued) 11

Lease prepayments represent prepayments for land
use rights paid to the PRC authorities. The leasehold
lands are located in the PRC, on which the Group’s
manufacturing plants were built. The Group was granted

HERMNRE (&)

MERMFRECH THEKENLBE
FR#EMRE HELHURFE - 2R
HIMRASENEERE - AEE &)
BRAHS0F L EAE - SRTFHN

land used rights for a period of 50 years initially and the F33FE434F o
remaining period range from 33 to 43 years.
12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BEE
Patents Trademark Total
=X [GEE #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TRT AR®Tx
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 72015 1H1H - 20159
2015 and 1 January 2016 12A31H &2016F1A1H = = =
Addition through acquisition of FRKERBLRRE
subsidiaries (note 15(b)(ii)) (FFEE15(b)(ii)) 248,103 256,233 504,336
At 31 December 2016 1K20165F12H31H 248,103 256,233 504,336
Accumulated amortisation: Sty -
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 720151818 - 20154
2015 and 1 January 2016 12A31H &20165F1H1H = = -
Charge for the year FAHKR (14,707) = (14,707
At 31 December 2016 M20165F12H31H (14,707) - (14,707
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12A31H 233,396 256,233 489,629
At 31 December 2015 2015612 A31H - — =
The amortization charge for the year is included in “cost RERNNBENBHKBESEGRSEARA

of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBEHEIN - LAREIIR)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 12 J|BEEE (&)
Trademark with the carrying amount of R2016%F & B UL EE T ML B B M &S
RMB256,233,000, newly acquired through the AR TH (& /& A R #256,233,0007T B 1% -
acquisition of Yulin Pharmaceutical Group in 2016, are HEREMAEREBEZMN DT EEEFEH
assessed to have indefinite useful lives when, based RALEESFR SR A BT &R R
on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no #l - WA AEEERERFE o HNE
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is AEREAFHNREEAFFTGHAE
expected to generate net cash inflows for the Group. WEEARSEHREMRERR - %d
The recoverable amount of the trademark that has B ORHAEEN EIMBEEFENIRE
indefinite useful life is estimated annually whether or EXEBAM ([REELEM]) -
not there is any indication of impairment. The amount is
allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
of Yulin Pharmaceutical Group.
The recoverable amount of the trademark that has A EREAFHOFRZNAKEEER
indefinite useful life is determined based on value-in-use BEREBEFEMET  HEA: FHES
calculations by preparing cash flow projections of the 12 E O 8 Sl B 5 7808 O & L 4F B
relevant CGU derived from the most recent financial M) SHMERRcELESEMNRSRER
forecast approved by the management covering a Bl BBAFHNIR e REE AEETE
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period EERERENKAE EIYMIHES WL E
are extrapolated using an estimated increase rate of 3% EREL - ReRSHEAIIEAXE13.82%
in selling price and cost with no growth in sales volume. (20155 « &) 473 - I AR ETY
The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of MY M EiEER S ELESENEBY
13.82% (2015: nil). The discount rate used is pre-tax HFER - RE 220165 12H318 IEF
and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant CGU. B - BERRREEIE
No impairment loss was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2016.
GOODWILL 13 BE
RMB’000
ARBET T
Cost and carrying amount BRARREE
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and 20151 H18 + 2015124318 K&
1 January 2016 2016F1A1H -
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries FRKENELRRE
(note 15(b)(ii)) (P EE15(b)(ii)) 320,647
At 31 December 2016 MR2016%F12A31H 320,647
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=FEHEHIN

13

14
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AARESIR)

GOODWILL (Continued) 13 B8 (&)
Impairment tests for CGU containing goodwill BEEENBESELENMIRERR
Goodwill newly acquired through business combination FIBERA I ES R EE R 5 AL A
is allocated to the Group’s CGU of Yulin Pharmaceutical SENEMRBEEBNIBSEALEN -
Group.
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined BEEEBMNMAI L EETIRIBEFERE
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations Bt EMET - ZZ:TEHEAUKEERE
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets HENPKEE CREAFHH) AEE
approved by management covering a five-year period. MRS METRA - BRAFHNRSRE
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated FRAGETHE BKRIE R LK AL R3%Mm
using an estimated growth rate of 3% in selling price HESTEEREESY - AN REERA
and cost with no growth in sales volume. The growth HRBREEABMMEEEFTNTHER
rates used do not exceed the long-term average growth HER .- IRE REHEAITEX13.82%
rates for the business in which the CGU operates. The (2015% : ) #1IR - FIERAMITIRRT)
cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of R R EAERCELESNEEN
13.82% (2015: nil). The discount rates used are pre-tax TR - RE 220165 12H318 IEF
and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant CGU. - BIEERREREE -
No impairment loss was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2016.
OTHER INVESTMENTS 14 HhgE
2016 2015
20165 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETT
Available-for-sale equity A HEREAES
securities-unlisted —JEET 2,600 2,600

Other investment of the Group represents an investment
in a domestic medicine manufacturer located in Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region of the PRC. The Group
owns a 5% equity interest in the domestic medicine
manufacturer. No quoted market price in an active
market for the investment is available. Quoted prices
in active market for similar investment or observable
market data as significant inputs for valuation techniques
are also not available. Therefore, the unlisted other
investment is stated at cost less impairment, if any, in
the consolidated financial statements.

AEEMEMKRERTEERENTEAR
HEAEN-REABELIER - AKE
REZBANBELERMNSREE - BH
BREWEEEMSMISRE - EAHER
MEEREABBNRUREREETS
HMREX A BRMISHBENEEES -
gt FEEMAEMBRER GRS B BHERF
BRARERE (F) FIE



(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

PR ERAR Y RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIEEIN - LARKETIR)
15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 RHEBAINRE
List of subsidiaries (a) MEARRE
As at 31 December 2016, the Company had MR2016512H31H - AR AR T
direct or indirect interests in the following FItEB AR (2RI ARE) %
subsidiaries, all of which are private companies, EEENEEZERER  FBEHRHI WM
particulars of which are set out below: IS¢
Place of Authorised Attributable equity
incorporation and fully interest held by
Name of company and business paid up capital the Company Principal activities
A LR BALNIRED
NAER EXBH EERHRRE ey IERH
Direct Indirect
E# 3
Brilliant Reach Group Limited BVI United States Dollars 100% - Investment holding
BEEEARAA EERAES (“US$")50,000/USS 1 RERR
50,000%7 ([ %7))/
1%
Immense Value Holdings Limited BV US$50,000/USS1 100% - Investment holding
LBRES 50,000%7C/ 1%7 REBR
Century International Develop Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000/HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
tHRERARERAR &k 10,0007 /1T BEBR
Grand Reach Company Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000/HK$1,000 - 100%  Investment holding
RRERAR B 10,0007 /1,000 REBR
Guangzhou Consun PRC RMB300,000,000/ - 100%  Production and sales of
BMEE i RMB300,000,000 pharmaceutical products
AR300,000,0007 / E#En
AE#300,000,0007T
Guangzhou Consun Medicine PRC RMB3,000,000/ = 100%  Trading of pharmaceutical
Company Limited el RMB3,000,000 products
BNRRBERRA" AR#3,000,0007,/ Zn8%
AR3,000,0007C
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B =H A

15

AARESIR)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15

(a)

List of subsidiaries (Continued)

RMBARNRE (&)
(a) MEBLAREE (&)

Place of Authorised Attributable equity
incorporation and fully interest held by
Name of company and business paid up capital the Company Principal activities
ERALR HAAREED
ARER EXHy EERHRBE il RARER TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# 3
Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical PRC RMB10,000,000/ - 100%  Research and development
Research Company Limited i RMB10,000,000 of pharmaceutical
BNREENTEAR AR AR 10,000,000,/ products
AK#10,000,00070 HeEq
Inner Mongolia Consun PRC RMB?25,000,000/ = 100%  Production and sales of
RE G RE t RMB25,000,000 pharmaceutical products
AR#25,000,0007 / E¥Eq
AR25,000,0007T
Yulin Pharmaceutical PRC RMB448,834,102/ - 72.62%  Production and sales of
ez # RMB437,274,382 pharmaceutical products
AR 8448 83410270 / EHEq
ARB437,274,3827L
Yulin Capsule PRC RMB1,340,000/ - 72.62%  Production and sales of
FHEE i RMB1,340,000 capsule
ARE1,340,0007 / EHRE
ARE1,340,0007C
Yuming Chinese Traditional Medicine ~ PRC RMB2,000,000/ = 72.62%  Trading of pharmaceutical
FHPE HE RMB2,000,000 products
AR#2,000,0007,/ #EEn
ARE2,000,0007
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e EmRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEI - UARKEIIR)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15 RWBARANRKRE (&)
(a) List of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) KMBARRE (&)
Place of Authorised Attributable equity
incorporation and fully interest held by
Name of company and business paid up capital the Company Principal activities
A LR MALNRREN
GER Xy EERBRREK ey TEER
Direct Indirect
E# A%
Yonglv Chinese Traditional Medicine PRC RMB1,000,000/ - 72.62%  Production and sales of
K& i RMB1,000,000 pharmaceutical products
ARE1,000,0007T,/ EHER
AK%1,000,0007
Hongsheng Trading PRC RMB500,000/ - 72.62%  Trading of pharmaceutical
EHES i RMB500,000 products
AR%500,0007T/ Bng5
AR 500,000
Yunxiang Real Estate PRC RMB3,000,000/ = 72.62%  Property development
RFEX e RMB3,000,000 VEZES
AR3,000,0007 /
AE#3,000,0007C

* =
* =

The official name of the entity is in Chinese. The TRNETEABATX - B
English translation of the entity’'s name is for FENEGERERSZE -

reference only.
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=FEHEHIN

15
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AARESIR)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of Yulin Pharmaceutical Group

The principal activities of Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group are production and sales of
pharmaceutical products in the PRC. As at 31
December 2015, the Group held 45.27% equity
interests in Yulin Pharmaceutical Group and Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group was accounted for as an
associate of the Group. In June 2016, the Group
entered into another acquisition agreement and
increased its interest in Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group from 45.27% to 48.87% for a consideration
of RMB31,612,000.

On 23 November 2015, the Group entered
into a conditional equity transfer agreement
with an independent third party agent to
further acquire 5.76% equity interest in Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group at a consideration of
RMB69,361,000 (the “Proposed Acquisition”).
As at 31 December 2015, the Proposed
Acquisition was not yet completed and the
advance payment of RMB62,458,000 paid by
the Group was recognised as prepayments for
equity investment. In July 2016, the Proposed
Acquisition was completed and the remaining
consideration of RMB6,903,000 was settled.
Accordingly, the Group’s equity interest in Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group increased to 54.63% and
Yulin Pharmaceutical Group became subsidiaries
of the Group on 19 July 2016 (the “Acquisition
Date”).

The series of the Group’s acquisitions in
Yulin Pharmaceutical Group were accounted
for as a step acquisition under the relevant
accounting standards, where the fair value of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
was held immediately before obtaining control
has been used in the determination of the total
consideration of the step acquisition.

15

RBERARNRE (&)

(b)

W EMRESE

EMBEEEN T EZEBEARFH
85 B o A20155E12A31H -
REBEFH ENEEEEI5.27%
BEBEFHEBEEEBERLTEER
B — KB D E] ABR - R20165F6
A AEEF VS —EHKE RS -
VA EL P TR AR 4% & B ) 2 45
45 27% N1 E48.87% * RIEEAA
R#31,612,0007T °

R2015F 115230 » A &L EHH—
BN E=HRE AL E &M
B s WE—SFPWRET
MR BEEES 76% 1 E - REAA
R #69,361,000C ([E & WK B =
1H]|) o PA2015F12A31H @ # &
WHESEIBMARTK  MAEEDE X
FHy AR A R #562,458,00070 B
R MR A TR 5k o 20164
7TH BEEWEEEESTK M
#TR{EAR6,903,0007T 25
BBl "EEFAEMREESE
& 1 A% #E 32 N E54.63% @ M K M
FlEiEEH2016F7 198 ([WEE
BH]) EXAEAERHHBAR -

RIBABE SR - AEBH EM
HESEETH—ERWECHES
FEHEWBAR  REEZTZWED
RRER - SRARERISIES
RE R P HE A LB & (] FE R A A

HODARME -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
(Continued)

(i)

Information relating to the interest in an
associate:

The following table summarises

the financial information of Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group as included in its
own consolidated financial statements,
adjusted for fair value adjustments at
acquisition and difference in accounting
policies. The table also reconciles the
summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in Yulin Pharmaceutical Group. The
information for 2015 represented in
the table includes the results of Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group only for the period
from Yulin Pharmaceutical Group became
an associate of the Group to 31 December
2015. The information for 2016 includes
the results of Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group only for the period from 1 January
2016 to the Acquisition Date, when
Yulin Pharmaceutical Group became
subsidiaries of the Group.

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

15 RHEBATNKRE (&)
(b) WEEMREEE (£)

(i)

RBEE LA ERER -

TREMERBEEEF F
REMEHRERA - LARE
HEMEENAABERAER
BB RERENMBE
Bl o 2R M BRERTIEE
FHEAREBN EMREEE
REMEEE - ZKPIEHD
EMRBEEFE2015FEFER
EREa EMEEEEKA
ARE B L A RIREE2015F
128318 L B ELE -
2016F EH ERHEBIEEM
B 5% &£ B 5201651 81H
REWEBE (Al EMRR
ZEENAAEBHMER
7)) IFHARI R4S o
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15 RHEBARNKRE (&)
(b) Acquisition of Yulin Pharmaceutical Group (b) WBEMRESE (&)
(Continued)
(i)  Information relating to the interest in an (i) REBEELGERER -
associate: (Continued) (#&)
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
Group’s effective interest AEBzERER 48.87% 45.27%
Current assets mMENEE - 331,126
Non-current assets EREEE - 759,837
Current liabilities mEAaE - (257,030)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - (99,831)
Net assets (100%) SHEE(100%) - 734,102
Group’s share of net assets REEEGEEFE
(45.27%) (45.27%) - 332,328
Goodwill SES - 304,331
Carrying amount in the NGRS e
consolidated financial HEREE
statements - 636,659
Revenue WA 210,061 85,649
Profit/(loss) and total HrEF (B8 &
comprehensive income for ZER BT
the period 8,487 (12,173)
Group’s share of total AEEEFAREEB S
comprehensive income for #aza
the period 3,865 (4,683)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEI - UARKEIIR)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15 RHEBARNKRE (&)
(b) Acquisition of Yulin Pharmaceutical Group (b) WEBEMBEED (Z)

(Continued)

(i)  Information relating to the interest in an (i) REBEELGHERER -
associate: (Continued) (%)
The following table summarises the T B E MRS E
information relating to the interest in 5.76%1 7 5 5% W IS = 1A 5T
an associate immediately before the P AT Bt 8 & O 2 Y 4
completion of the Proposed Acquisition AR

of 5.76% equity interest in Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group:

RMB’000
ARBET T
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2015 201512 A31 HEEEE 636,659
Acquisition of additional interest in R2016F6 H #E — P Ui Fg ki &
an associate in June 2016 NAEERE 31,612
Share of profit of an associate from FE(LEE & R E) 8 20164F
1 January 2016 to the Acquisition Date 1 A1 B Z 4k B B FE 3,865
Carrying amount as at the Acquisition Date ~ AUE B HAEEE 672,136
Disposal of interest in an associate AN NI (672,136)
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2016 2016912 431 HEEEE =
Carrying amount of 48.87% equity interests  ZH2JES I HI AT A £ kRl %2
in Yulin Pharmaceutical Group held £ E48.87 % iEm M ERAIE
immediately before obtaining control 672,136
Fair value of 48.87% equity interests S RI T R Lk
in Yulin Pharmaceutical Group held SE48.87% R A NE
immediately before obtaining control (B E15(b)(ii))
(note 15 b(ii)) 671,309
Loss on deemed disposal of an RRBEEHE R FIRNEIR
associate (note 3) (FI7E3) 827
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 2 HHAI - ARBFIR)
15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15 RHEBARNKRE (&)
(b) Acquisition of Yulin Pharmaceutical Group (b) WEBEMREEE (&)

(Continued)

(ii) The following summarises the nature (i) Tiﬁfﬂ'fﬁ%"/f(sﬂﬁﬁ—fgﬁ
of consideration transferred, and the R fE H RN 5 E R AAE
recognised amounts of assets acquired BEENERSH
and liabilities assumed at the Acquisition
Date:

Recognised
Carrying Fair value values on
amount  adjustments acquisition
HREE MAEHAE ERIANEEE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARETR ARETR ARETR
Investment property HEYE 9 1,838 17,052 18,890
Other property, plant and HitW%x - BERR
equipment 10 121,264 53,810 175,074
Lease prepayments MEBRMNZE 11 27,355 36,455 63,810
Intangible assets BV EAE 12 = 504,336 504,336
Inventories FE 97,633 - 97,633
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E MG 65,296 = 65,296
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRBSEEER 172,550 - 172,550
Deferred tax assets BEREE 23(b) 1,252 = 1,252
Loans and borrowings BERRER (90,000) = (90,000)
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTA (137,828) = (137,828)
Tax payable BB FR 23 (2,075) = (2,075)
Deferred income R E 21 (8,340) - (8,340)
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEAR 23(b) = (91,748) (91,748)
Net identifiable assets AR EE#E 248,945 519,905 768,850
54.63% share of identifiable HRFEEEMN
net assets 54.63%1{7 %8 420,023
Consideration for 5.76% EHBEEZES.76%
equity interests in Yulin BRERE
Pharmaceutical Group 69,361
Fair value of 48.87% equity SHREGEHER
interests in Yulin EMEEEE48.87%
Pharmaceutical Group held BEMARLE
immediately before obtaining (P EE15(b)(i))
control (note 15 b(i)) 671,309
Total consideration BR(E 740,670
Goodwill (S 13 320,647
Analysis of cash flow: Bemah
Cash consideration paid THEERE 6,903
Less: cash acquired w o ERRE (172,550)
Net cash acquired through BB B N B &S
acquisition of subsidiaries, FRe - Mk
net of cash paid YRES (165,647)
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15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Acquisition of Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
(Continued)

(ii) The following summarises the nature
of consideration transferred, and the
recognised amounts of assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the Acquisition
Date: (Continued)

Yulin Pharmaceutical Group contributed
a revenue of RMB277,348,000 and net
profit of RMB40,433,000 to the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2016.
Should the acquisition have occurred on
1 January 2016, the consolidated revenue
and the consolidated profit of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016
would have been RMB1,433,549 000 and
RMB328,144,000, respectively.

Acquisition of non-controlling interests
(“NCI”) in Yulin Pharmaceutical Group

On 11 August 2016 and 16 August 2016, the
Group entered into a series of equity transfer
agreements with certain individual shareholders
of Yulin Pharmaceutical to further acquire
16.11% equity interest in Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group at a total consideration of approximately
RMB147,367,000. As a result, the Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling
interests of RMB124,209,000 and a decrease
in retained earnings of RMB23,158,000. Upon
completion of the acquisition of NCI, the Group’s
equity interests in Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
increased from 54.63% to 70.74%.

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

15 RHERXRANERE (&)

(b)

(c)

WS EMRERE (&F)

(i) FXHEEEZEABHMER
RUWIE AR W IE R EREE
EEERTHE - (F)

EMBESELGREEHEE
2016 12A318 Ik F E 4
GEEREREMBAARE
277,348,000 K2 % F1E A
R #40,433,0007C - REH
B UL B8 M2016F1 A18 &
B4 - AEBEREZE2016
F12A31H EFERMLZE K
ARGENBED R ABARE
1,433,549,0007C & A R #
328,144,0007T °

BEEMAREEENFERES
([P m AR 1)

720168 A11H K&%2016F8516
H - NEESEE RS T @5
BRRZFEZERES ZHZ - NERE
# AR ¥147,367,0000T © i — 4
Ui B T AR B 5% £ [F16. 11 9% A1 ©
Bt - AEBEmRIEERER R
AR ¥124,209,0007T & (R 8B & F
B A R 23,158,000 © A W
BIFERERTRE  AEERE
B BE B ) IR #E 54.63% 15 &
70.74% °

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 FE#HE 159



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=FEHEHIN

15
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AARESIR)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(d)

Capital injection in Yulin Pharmaceutical

On 27 October 2016, the resolution to
inject capital of RMB300,000,000 to Yulin
Pharmaceutical was approved at the general
meeting of Yulin Pharmaceutical. Pursuant to
the resolution, the Group and non-controlling
interests holders of Yulin Pharmaceutical were
entitled to make capital contribution in cash in
proportion to their respective equity interest on
or before 31 December 2016. In the event that
certain shareholders of Yulin Pharmaceutical
forgoing such right or not making full capital
contributions in proportion to their respective
equity interest, the shortfall may be covered by
other shareholders of Yulin Pharmaceutical, who
are willing to make extra capital contributions, in
proportion to their respective equity interest.

As at 31 December 2016, certain shareholders
of Yulin Pharmaceutical forwent the right to
make capital contributions in proportion to their
respective equity interests, and a total cash
contribution of RMB288,440,000 was made by
the Group and certain non-controlling interests
holders, in the amount of RMB212,261,000 and
RMB76,179,000 respectively. Therefore, the
Group’s equity interest in Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group further increased from 70.74% to 72.62%,
while non-controlling interests decreased from
29.26% to 27.38%. The Group recognised
an increase in non-controlling interests of
RMB63,808,000 and an increase in retained
earnings of RMB12,371,000.

During January and February 2017, the shortfall
of RMB11,560,000 was covered by the Group
and certain non-controlling interests holders, in
the amount of RMB8,722,000 and RMB2,838,000
respectively. Upon the completion of the extra
capital contribution, the Group’s equity interest
in Yulin Pharmaceutical Group further increased
from 72.62% to 72.69%.

15

RBERARNRE (&)

(d)

HEMREARLE

R2016F10H27H » EM B #H
BRERAEHETBBE EMRR &
# & A R #300,000,0007T KR 3%
RoBBRER  AEBREMR
BEIEERERIFE AR R20165F
12 431 B ek 2 AL & B AT AR BE L
PIAE S HE - BRINABH T EMRE
BERY B E H B s NR E AR L 51
FHELE  REFNITHEMEE
BIMNHE B E MR BER T IR EFER
LB E -

R2016F12831H » & F E M E
ERRREREFRLALEE - 4
/& R E AR ¥288,440,0007T 7
AR AERES THERESRES
A+ AR %212,261,0007T K A
R#76,179,0007T ° EIt - A%
REMBESEHAREHT0.74%
R ET72.62% M FEFE AR AE
7 Bl BH29.26% 8 £27.38% ° A
SEEREERESEMNARE
63,808,0007T RIREEAFIEMAR
#12,371,0007C °

R2017F1A E2R  BREI D A
R #11,560,0007T % B A A £ [ %
ETHEERERFAALDEARKE
8,722,000t & A K 2,838,000
T o MEBIMEB TRk - AEER
FEMEEE BN REBRT2.62%HE
—FHHET2.69% °
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AN =
e MR MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEI - UARKEIIR)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15 RHBERARNRKRE (&)

(e) The following table lists out the information () TRILFEEMHESE (K&
relating to Yulin Pharmaceutical Group, the only EHEAERFEREROE—F&
sub-group of the Group which has a material E) MER - TXEIMFBER
NCI. The summarised financial information B2 BARFTEMEE A A R HEHEH
presented below represents the amounts before HIH)E ¥8 o

any inter-company elimination.

2016
20164
RMB’000
AR®T T
NCI percentage at 31 December 12 A31 8 3EER S 27.38%
Current assets MENVE E 635,206
Non-current assets EMEEE 784,323
Current liabilities mEra s (224,957)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (96,848)
Net assets BEFE 1,097,724
Carrying amount of NC| IIERERREE 300,557
Revenue from the Acquisition Date to BUWEHEZE12A831BKA
31 December 277,348
Profit from the Acquisition Date to BUWEEHEZ=12A318EF
31 December 40,433
Total comprehensive income from the BUEEHEAZ12H31H
Acquisition Date to 31 December 2HKRLBEE 40,433
Profit allocated to NCI 73 Be T FE1%E AR e 2 O A1) 12,131
Cash flows from operating activities KETEBIR SN 118,004
Cash flows from investing activities KEEHRES R (43,494)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEBIRE R 196,931
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

16 OTHER PREPAYMENT 16 HMEAMNRK
Other prepayment represents the downpayment for H A FE R FRIEFLEVS AL TR A L 2 {FE
obtaining the land use right located in Yulin City. FB#EMTEN K - R20165F12812H @ &
On 12 December 2016, the Group entered into an EERIMTELERBII LR UK
agreement with Land Resources Bureau of Yulin City {8 A R# 40,400,000 H 15 A 8 + 0 (5 FA
for obtaining the land use right in the consideration ¥ o R2016F 128318 @ L fF AREH
of RMB40,400,000. As at 31 December 2016, the BRATK  MAETMHELERBERR
transfer of the land use right was not yet completed and B # AR #40,400,0007T B #ERR A E A
RMB40,400,000 fully prepaid to Land Resources Bureau FAREK
of Yulin City was recognised as other prepayment.
17 INVENTORIES 17 78
2016 2015
20165 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT
Raw materials R A4 % 70,669 25,049
Work in progress panblpns 42,891 17,197
Finished goods SURY Oh 27,414 28,768
140,974 71,014

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

ERRAMNZLH ABRNFE LB
mT

2016 2015

20164 2015%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET AREEF T

Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAK 310,224 160,376
Write down of inventories FEMR 2,241 166
312,465 160,542
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e EmRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEI - UARKEIIR)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 HEZRHMEWRFIR
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTTT
Trade debtors 2 5 AR 278,729 120,854
Bills receivable [ ES 282,111 242,868
Less: Allowance for doubtful B EUBCRERE S
debtors (note 18(b)) (BI5E18(b)) (3,565) (19)
557,275 363,703
Other receivables (note 18(d)) Hh U s IE (MI5E18(d)) 9,146 22,756
Prepayments TR IR 9,899 12,728
576,320 399,187
(a) Ageing analysis (a) MRS
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing REBEER - B HRKERRRE W
analysis of trade debtors and bills receivables ZR (Bt AB S R EAMEWFIE)
(which are included in trade and other NEZEAHRAEEYHKRRIREE
receivables), based on the invoice date and net HERE AT T -

of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

2016 2015

20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTIT

Within 3 months 3MEAA 512,413 362,954
3 to 12 months 3E121E A 29,153 749
Over 12 months 1218 A BA 15,709 =
557,275 363,703

Trade receivables and bills receivable are due BESRINEREEREERE LR
within 30-90 days from the date of billing. Further B H BB ET30-90H N E|HE o A&
details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in BEEERRNE—SFBEENMT

note 25(a). 25(a) °
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=FEHEHIN

18
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AARESIR)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors and bills
receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors
and bills receivable are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against
trade debtors and bills receivable directly (see
note 1(m)).

18

EZRAEMBEWRRE (&)

(b)

B2 RYIRR R ERRENRE

BRE SRR R ERE B
BEBLARBERS  BREAKH
SN B FRIEA SRR - RIRE
ERBERER SRR KRR
ZEHMIE (2RME1(m))

The movement in the allowance for doubtful FARBRBEEHZEESOT
debts during the year is as follows:
2016 2015
2016%F 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETTT
At 1 January M1A18 19 4,323
Addition from acquisition U B BT B 22 B A9 N
of subsidiaries 2,494 -
Impairment loss recognised/ &R (B E) BREKIE
(reversed) 1,052 (513)
Uncollectible amounts 8 AOE U [0 FR0E
written off - (8,791)
At 31 December M®12H31H 3,565 19

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s trade
debtors of RMB7,548,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB19,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that only
a portion of the receivables is expected to be
recovered. Consequently, specific allowances
for doubtful debts of RMB3,565,000 (2015:
RMB19,000) respectively were recognised.

MR2016F12A31H ' &N &£ B &
2 FE W R X A K #7,548,0007T
(2015%F12A318 : AR#19,000
7L) EERIREERE - BEBIRE
B R IE Y R R P R R B R
% BEEELTETERR L
MEWFIE - AL - D HIERRE
2 BRI B % B A R #3,565,0007T
(20154 : AR¥19,0007T) °
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18

(c)

(d)

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

EZREMBERRE (&)

Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not () FEENEZEVRERREKREZRE
impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills KR BB AERE 5 FE R & &
receivable that are not considered to be impaired WEBRRERDITAT
are as follows:
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR¥ETTT
Neither past due nor impaired REERINARRE 536,868 362,954
Less than 1 month past due BHATE A AT 909 465
1 to 3 months past due BEI1E3{E A 1,840 186
More than 3 months but less B0 HA31E H A &
than 12 months past due ERE121E A 4,176 98
Over 12 months past due wHA12(8 A A b 9,499 =
16,424 749
553,292 363,703
Receivables that were neither past due nor S 380 HA 78 AR R (B Y FE ik T8 B 3T B
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for WARERGEENZ AT AR -
whom there was no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired £ %80 HAME SRR E #) R WK IR 8 B
relate to a number of independent customers THEASEH#FRITRZLEHENE
that have a good track record with the Group. NEP o REBEATLER  BEER
Based on past experience, management believes RBERZEERIEL RERE
that no impairment allowance is necessary in HAEEE=UEEREE BERD
respect of these balances as there has not been WR AT 2EURE -
a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
Impairment of other receivables (d) HtEWRENREE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s other
receivables of RMB122,000 (31 December 2015:
nil) were individually determined to be impaired
in full.

R2016F 128310 + AEE E b
FE U 3278 A R #122,0007T (2015
F12A318 : &) @Rl AE TR
A o
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=FEHEHIN

(a)

(b)

AARESIR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19 HRERAEEEEEB
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) HeRBELESEBEBHBE:
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETTT
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFEIRS 672,711 489,987
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BiADEFEKEFESRSWHEIR:
generated from operations:
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Profit before taxation 5 Al i A 403,452 314,782
Adjustments for R
Depreciation e 24,364 18,589
Amortisation ey 16,085 627
Provision recognised/ RERBEEER
(reversed) for doubtful debts (#[) 1,174 (513)
Interest income I B Wz (3,299) (27,531)
Finance costs A& AR 1,509 441
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEX
plant and equipment REBEAENER 762 1,554
Share-based payment LARR 7 AR Y
transactions NHRR S 22,494 35,318
Write down of inventories FE®RH 2,241 166
Share of (profit)/loss of an FE(R A A
associate Ca#),/ &’ (3,865) 4,683
Changes in working capital %Eﬁi\ﬁﬂ:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories Em S OFd) 25,432 (17,698)
Increase in trade and 2 5 RHEA Y
other receivables IEIE AN (128,250) (136,548)
Increase in trade and B 5 REAMER
other payables I AN 146,628 53,384
Increase/(decrease) in RE W eS8
deferred income Om) 2,591 (436)
Cash generated from operations KRERFBRS 511,318 246,818
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e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BERBEN - UARETITR)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES EZREMENRE
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEFIT
Trade payables B 5 R RIE 79,733 39,760
Receipts in advance FEUL FRIE 10,368 1,276
Accrued expenses fEstR X 169,810 54,635
Employee benefits payable FE & B 12 T 67,572 40,143
Other payables H fth FE S 718 155,769 65,421
483,252 201,235

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing

analysis of trade payables (which are included in the

trade and other payables), based on the invoice date,

is as follows:

RBEMR  EZERNFKE (BHAES
REMENRIE) R A B RELENR
7

RO

2016 2015

20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

Within 1 month 118 A K 39,085 29,169
1 to 12 months 121218 A 40,341 10,591
Over 12 months 1218 A LA £ 307 =
79,733 39,760
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

DEFERRED INCOME IEFE U 25
2016 2015
201645 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
At 1 January ®1A1H 12,018 12,454
Addition from acquisition of Ui B O /B N B HY 3 00
subsidiaries (note 15(b)(ii)) (BF=E15(b)(ii)) 8,340 =
Additions H b3 0 3,745 =
Credited to profit or loss (note 3) st AET (MizE3) (1,154) (436)
At 31 December M®12H31H 22,949 12,018
Representing: KRR
Current portion BN HAER 1 1,346 436
Non-current portion JEBNHA =1 21,603 11,582
22,949 12,018

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, deferred income
of the Group mainly includes various conditional
government grants for research and development
projects of new or existing pharmaceutical products
and subsidies relating to purchase of land use rights.

Deferred government grants relating to research and
development projects will be recognised as income
in the same periods in which the expenses for the
development project are incurred. Deferred government
grants relating to purchase of land use rights will be
recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful life of the relevant land use rights.
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R20164F K2015F12A31H » NEBEH
B mE EREFEMSIRE B
EHAMZEEGREBRNME - WREEE
T b R AR R o
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FABE L ERRNRERTHES
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

Employees’ Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on
2 December 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
whereby the board of directors of the Company
is authorised, at its discretion, to grant options
to the directors and employees of the Group to
subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company.
The Company can issue options exercisable up
to 100,000,000 ordinary shares under the Share
Option Scheme.

In 2014, the Company granted 60,000,000 share
options to certain directors and employees at
a consideration of HK$1 for each grantee (the
“2014 Grant”). The exercise price of these
share options was HK$6.64 per share, and the
aggregate fair value of these share options
amounted to RMB138,095,000. The options vest
after one year to five years from the date of grant
and are then exercisable on or before 23 March
2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
an aggregate of 24,790,000 unvested share
options under the 2014 Grant were cancelled
(the “Cancelled Share Options”), among which
9,200,000 and 15,590,000 unvested share
options were previously granted to directors and
employees, respectively, with remaining vesting
period ranged from one year to three years.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company granted 52,000,000 share options
to certain directors and employees (the “2016
Grant”). The exercise price of these share
options was HK$4.01
aggregate fair value of these share options
amounted to RMB81,168,000. The options vest
after one year to three years from the date of

per share, and the

grant and are then exercisable on or before 31
March 2026.

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

22 LIRELEEYUROGBEROLR

(a)

EEBRETS

KA BIR2013F12 2B R — 18
FERR T ([BBRRFERT L) - B
BIRER S RATESSRRE
ARBEAEMNREEES KEEK
HAIREAR R T B ERE -
BRI RS - AR R AIEITA
771 R B8 5 %100,000,000/% & @
AR B B A o

R20145F - KR A AT AR A
1IBTHRERTETESERES
60,000,00017 B % # ([20145F &%
Hl) ZEBERBTEERER
6.648TT  REBREARNEERT
#= A R #138,095,0007T ° % & B
BRERAREBHRE—EZAFHE -
SR 18 ] LARA 20244 3 A 23 H 3k 2 Al
1T o

E Z2016%F 128318 It & E -
20144 % H I T & #£24,790,000
MAFBOERECDHTHE (B
MBI #E ) - H #9,200,0001
15,590,00017 7K 7 B AR #E 5L AT E
DRBRTEEREES A THEEB
ANF—FE2=F -

# Z=2016F12A318 I+ F & -
AARBETETEEZREE
52,000,00017 & fix # ([20165F &%
Hl)  c ZEERBTEERER
4018 ZEBREARESF
# AR 181,168,0007T ° % MR
ERELBHRE-—FE=F5%8
18 A AR 2026 3 A31H sk 2 Al
1T -
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 22 UURBEZEIURMHBEBHLR

(Continued) (&)
(a) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a)

Under the 2016 Grant, 36,440,000 share options
(the “Replacing Share Options”) were identified
as the replacement for 23,650,000 of the Cancelled
Share Options (the “Replaced Share Options”),
while the remaining 15,560,000 new share options
were granted to certain employees who previously
were not grantees of the 2014 Grant.

The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options cancelled and granted
are as follows:

EEBRESE (B)

R #E20164F % H + 36,440,000/
BRE((BRBRE]) BERR
BB B R EH 23,650,000
DHERBRE]) mERE
i £ #:15,560,00017 ¥ HE S %
F & T IE2014F 1% K AR A {E

g o

BN THBRER R RnE
FHITEEWT

2016
20164
Weighted

average Number of
exercise price options
nEFEH BB AR
TEE S gE|
HKD 000
AT TR
Outstanding at 1 January 2016 R20165F1 18 M ARITEE 6.64 52,846
Granted under the 2016 Grant RIR2016F KB E T 4.01 52,000
Cancelled during the year F NS 6.64 (24,790)
Forfeited during the year FARIK 5.84 (8,633)
Outstanding at 31 December 2016 72016412 31 H Ak 1TfE 4.82 71,423
Exercisable at 31 December 2016 2015412 431 B AJ 171 6.64 20,623

The share options outstanding at 31 December
2016 had an exercise price of HK$6.64 or
HK$4.01 (31 December 2015: HK$6.64) and a
weighted-average remaining contractual life of
8.6 years (31 December 2015: 8.3 years). No
options were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: nil).

The Group recognised share option expenses
of RMB21,590,000 during the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: RMB34,762,000) in
respect of share options cancelled and granted
in the current and prior years.
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M2016FE12A31H » HARTTIEE
% #E 77 £ & £6.64/5 JT 54.0175
7t (20155F12 A31H : 6.647 7T)
MEFH R &4 4 F H B86F
(2015512 A31H : 8.3%F) - H &
2016F12A31BH It FE - WER
PR 1T1E (20154 : 48) o

H E2016F12A31B IEFE - &
EERAFENBEFETHEE
FTRBBREEREREERARE
21,590,0007T (20154 : A R #&
34,762,0007T) °



22

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 22

(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(a) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(i)

The terms and conditions of the 2016

(BR=AEIEHN -

IAARESITR)

DUREEELURDHERN TR

(%)

(a) EEBRETE (F)

(i) 20165 % 1 Y1 5% B2 1K FE 20

Grant are as follows: 3N
Number Contractual

Tranche of options life of

Date of grant number granted Vesting period options
2F BREN

i B il BREME RED BHRFH
Options granted to employees:
% 18 B BB E -
1 April 2016 Tranche 1 12,600,000 1 year after the date of grant 10 years
2016418 EREid Rt B 14 104
1 April 2016 Tranche 2 12,600,000 2 years after the date of grant 10 years
2016F4A1H Fott Bt B Eifg 25 106
1 April 2016 Tranche 3 16,800,000 3 years after the date of grant 10 years
2016F4A1H F34t it B &34 104
Options granted to directors:
RTESNERE -
1 April 2016 Tranche 1 600,000 1 year after the date of grant 10 years
2016F4A1H F18t Bt BB 14 105
1 April 2016 Tranche 2 600,000 2 years after the date of grant 10 years
2016F4 H1H Fo#t it B g5 105
1 April 2016 Tranche 3 800,000 3 years after the date of grant 10 years
2016F4A1H F34t Bt B HifE 34 105
27 May 2016 Tranche 4 2,400,000 1 year after the date of grant 9.8 years
20165 H27H Fa4t Rt B ER1F 9.8
27 May 2016 Tranche 5 2,400,000 2 years after the date of grant 9.8 years
2016F5R27H 58t Bt B Hifg 25 9.8%
27 May 2016 Tranche 6 3,200,000 3 years after the date of grant 9.8 years
201655 H27H Fo#t BRIt B 834 9.8
Total share options granted
BHERESE 52,000,000
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(RSEIEAIN  AARETITR)
22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 22 LIREZFIUROD/BEHNMRK
(Continued) (%)
(a) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) {(EEBKREE (F)
(i)  Fair value of share options under the (i) 2016 F#EHIE T BREN L
2016 Grant and assumptions: AERER -
The fair value of services received in FA AR EUER () B AR R P 2 Al
return for the share options granted is BHARETI2EMRHE
measured by reference to the fair value Bz AREFE - BEHE
of share options granted. The estimated BIENBTAREBEIIERS
fair value of the share options granted XHHERETE - BIRESH
is measured based on a binomial tree FHEBRRFRER—IE
model. The contractual life of the share A BIE o IRATTTE AT AR
options is used as an input into this EAAL = XBHRA - T
model. Expectations of early exercise are FIERENALERR
incorporated into the binomial tree model. oo
Set out below are the fair value of share
options and assumptions.
Tranche number
#5%
1 2 3 4 5 6
Fair value at measurement T2 HAA4(E
date (HK$) (B7t) 1.73 1.87 1.98 1.71 1.85 1.97
Share price (HK$) WM& (BT) 3.99 3.99 3.99 4.02 4.02 4.02
Exercise price (HK$) 17EE (A7) 4.01 4.01 4.01 4.01 4.01 4.01
Expected volatility B H R R 56.71%  56.71%  56.71%  55.99%  55.99%  55.99%
Expected option life Ta ER RS A% 12 4 Ef 10 years 10years 10years 9.8years 9.8years 9.8years
106 105 106 9.8% 9.8% 9.8F
Dividend yield 8= 1.23% 1.23% 1.23% 1.23% 1.23% 1.23%
Risk-free rate EE A= 1.61% 1.61% 1.61% 1.72% 1.72% 1.72%
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22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(iii)

Fair value of the Replaced Share Options
under the 2014 Grant and assumptions:

The fair value of the Replaced Share
Options and the incremental fair value
of the Replacing Share Options were
RMB26,422,000 and RMB30,472,000
respectively. The incremental fair value
of the Replacing Share Options was the
difference between the fair value of the
36,440,000 share options under the 2016
Grant and the fair value of the Replaced
Share Options, both at the respective date
of grant of the share options under the
2016 Grant. The fair value of the Replaced
Share Options were estimated as at the
date of replacement, using a binomial
tree model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which those options
were granted. Set out below are the fair
value of the Replaced Share Options and
assumptions.

Fair value at measurement date (HK$)
AAERAAE (GBIT)
Share price (HK$)

& (BT)

Exercise price

1TE(E

Expected volatility

T8 HA R 08

Expected option life

& HRFE AR fE 4 HA
Expected dividend yield
TE AR B &

Risk-free rate

g g

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

DUREEELURDHERNMNRK

EEBREE (Z)
(iii) 2014FFHEH T ERER

BEAALERBE -
WERERENARERE
RIBRERN D A EILED B
B ANR#26,422,0007T & A
R #30,472,0007T ° B
IRiER A o [EIG IR A20165F
% 78 T-36,440,00017 & A%
WA EEE SR ERE
MARBEZHEONERE AR
EHR2016FRHEETEE
BRIEREHERE - RER
HE gZREHEREN
R R GEHE - wERBR
R AR ERA = XEHER
fEETSH o TXEIIFEER
BREN D ERRE -

1.32~1.45
3.99

6.64
54.68%

8 years
8%

1.23%

1.51%
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(b)

174 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/FESEABRAA

(iii)  Fair value of the Replaced Share Options
under the 2014 Grant and assumptions:
(Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility (calculated based on the
weighted average remaining life of the
share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected
dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

Share options were granted under service
conditions and non-market performance
conditions. These conditions had not
been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services
received. There was no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.

Employees’ Share Award Scheme

On 21 July 2014, the Board of Directors of the
Company approved the adoption of a share
award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”)
under which shares of the Company (the
“Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected
employees (the “Selected Employees”) in
accordance with the provisions of the Share
Award Scheme and the nominal value of the
shares awarded under the Share Award Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time.

22 DREGEIUROGABEBHGTR

(%)

(a)

(b)

EEBRESE (B)

(iii) 2014FFHEH T ERER
BHRALEREBR - (&)

TEHDR IR AR SR I A
(AR 45 78 A R 1O pD 4 - 19 &
SREMFE) LREAR
FERSHE R B BUR MK IR
ZAERITRREE T LARE -
EHREUAELKRE /E
o THRABBRRNE
BAHAREZEAELE
REE -

R P T 5 AR 7 AR A Ko I
MISRBGHTRE - 1F
R A AR ET AP AR TS 09X
HEHINARENE - B
2 X S TS R
B e

BERMDERTE

201478218 ARG EEE
HOERM—IBR D EBEEE ([
R BT E]) - R ARIEBAR G 5
BErglmRERTREEE ([
ERE]) ARFRMKRG ([EER
71) - BRipEEENETEITE T 2E A AR
NEBETSBBAARTREET
PEAREI10% °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Employees’ Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Unless terminated earlier by the Board of
Directors in accordance with the rules of the
Share Award Scheme, the Share Award Scheme
will be valid and effective for a term of 10 years
starting on 21 July 2014. A trust has been set up
and fully funded by the Company for the purpose
of purchasing, administrating and holding the
Company’s shares for the Share Award Scheme.

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all
vesting conditions, which might include service
and/or performance conditions, specified by the
Board of Directors of the Company at the time
of making the award and become entitled to the
shares of the Company forming the subject of
the award, the trustee shall transfer the relevant
Awarded Shares to that employee at no cost.
The Selected Employee however is not entitled
to receive any income or distribution, such as
dividend derived from the unvested Awarded
Shares allocated to him/her.

At 31 December 2016, 20,000,000 ordinary
shares were held by the trustee under the Share
Award Scheme (2015: 20,000,000 shares),
among which 302,000 shares in respect of the
Awarded Shares vested as at 31 December 2016
were held on behalf of certain employees (2015:
nil), while the remaining 19,698,000 shares were
held on behalf of the Company (31 December
2015: 20,000,000 shares).

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

22 LDREGEIUROGABERBNGTR

(%)
(b)

EERGRBEE (F)

BRIEEEESRIBRGN REF &K
RARELILE - RO EBEFEINE
MHEA B 20147 A21 B #E5T A E10
F o RARIEKIY —HErELiRE
2EES  FEAERE EEM
BAERRBRMDZEFE T AR

{/\ ®

WS ERENAARREFTENH
HEBRIEENMERBIERE (7
REERBEREHRBEH) LF
REABXEBOARRES - 8
XFEABERZIE BB R AR R
- BAWEUERIZEM - AW - %
E R 8 ERWEUERIBMAR DK -
{51 an 2> Be T H 69 K 57 88 22 B AR 0 P
EERNRE -

R2016F 128310 » 3 AR &
B& 17 82 Bh T 21455 20,000,000/% &
A A% (20154 : 20,000,0000%)
H B R2016F12A31H BB ®
42 B i% 15 B B #9302,0008% % 5
BREAETEERHA (20154 :
7)1 H #:19,698,000% A% 15 8l
REA R A HE (20155F12 431
H : 20,000,0000%) °
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

22 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 22 UREZEIURGABEBHMLR

(Continued) (%)
(b) Employees’ Share Award Scheme (Continued) (b) EERGRBE (Z)

() Details of the treasury shares held under (i) BRI (0 BB AT &l 15 A A E
the Share Award Scheme are set out FRREFER T X -
below:

Average
purchase No. of
price shares held
¥ BB Value of shares
BEE RAEE RIPEE
HK$ ’000 HK$’000 RMB’000
B TR TR ARETR
At 1 January 2015 R2015%1 818 5.99 9,528 57,207 45,359
Shares purchased FREERH
during the year 5.38 10,472 56,357 44,638
At 31 December 2015 WA2015%128318 5.68 20,000 113,564 89,097
Shares vested during FRRERN
the year 5.68 (302) (1,710) (1,355)
At 31 December 2016 120164128318 5.68 19,698 111,854 88,642
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 22

(Continued)

(b) Employees’ Share Award Scheme (Continued)

(i)

Details of the Awarded Shares are set out

below:

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

DUREEELURDHERNMNRK

(4&)
(b) EERH

REEE (F)

(i)  EREIRODFEBR T ICES

Number of the Awarded Shares

RBROHE

Vesting Vesting

date on date on

30 June 31 December
2016 2016 Total

BERHA BEREA

20165 20164
6HA30H 12A31H ay
’000 ’000 ’000
Tk T8’ ‘TR
Granted on 7 May 2015 R2015F5A7B & 1,096 1,096 2,192
Forfeited during the year ERRI (940) (917) (1,857)
Unvested at 31 December 2015 R2015F12A31 B RFE 156 179 335
Forfeited during the year FRRE (14) (19) (33)
Vested during the year FREE (142) (160) (302)

Unvested at 31 December 2016

2016512 H30B R EE

The estimated fair value of the Awarded
Shares on the grant date is determined
by reference to the market price of the
Company’s shares.

The Group recognised share award
expenses of RMB904,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB556,000).

302,000 shares were vested for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil).

ZEFRBRONE L B
EARAET2EARRFR
MEHEMETE -

#H 220169 12H31H It F
& A R #904,0007T (2015
F: AR¥556,0007T) °

302,000% % 17 E. 2016 F
12A31H % B (20154 :
;) o
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

23
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 23

RE MR RN FTER

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) HZEMBERRRAWEDEBIEE :
of financial position represents:
2016 2015
20165 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBET T
At 1 January K1A18 27,679 27,133
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wi R Fff /8 1 )
(note 15(b)(ii)) (BF=E15(b)(ii)) 2,075 =
Provision of PRC income tax FANREIFTFTRE
for the year 94,010 61,120
Under-provision for PRC income BAEFENFE
tax in respect of prior years FrigtifE T 2 510 2,201
PRC income tax paid FANENPBMED
during the year (62,141) (62,775)
At 31 December M12H31H8 62,133 27,679
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) CEEREZEHEEEREME:
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RERE B IEARN R RFERBE TR
recognised in the consolidated statement of BEE/(BRFE) MABKIBMDRF
financial position and the movements during the W&
year are as follows:
Withholding
tax on future Fair value
dividend adjustment
income from  Intra group Share of
Deferred tax assets/ fromPRC Unused tax  Provisions  business unrealised  loss of an
(liabilities) arising from: subsidiaries losses* and accruals acquisition profits  associate Total
RETENE
RETHIRENELSE AARRRE ABA BER  EBUBH SEE  EfiHE
gE/(86): hENEDR  REER  EHER  AAERE RERER QAER Ch
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT  ARBTR ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
t 1 January 2015 201561 A1 (40,850) 1,269 8,428 (2,043) 3,403 - (29,793)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (k&) /3t AfB& - (781) (979) 66 (780) 702 (1,772)
At 31 December 2015 and 20156124318
1 January 2016 201651418 (40,850) 488 7,449 (1977) 2,623 702 (31,565)
Addition through acquisition RENELAmEN
of subsidiaries (note 15(b)(ii) (Brsk15(n)(i)) - - 1,252 (91,748) - = (90,496)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (1) /5t A - (344) 9,489 3487 (1,205) (702) 10,725
At 31 December 2016 H2016E12A31H (40,850) 144 18,190 (90,238) 1,418 - (11,330)
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 23
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(Continued)

t Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused
tax losses of certain PRC subsidiaries of the
Group. They are now progressing to their
normal operation stage and are deriving profits.
Accordingly, it is considered probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available in the
future to utilize their unused tax losses before
they expire. As at 31 December 2016, tax losses
of RMB577,000, will expire in 2021.

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

REVBRRRANFER (&)

CRIABLEHREEERAE (&)

EEHEEENRALESE T
R B B B A B 89 K B R B 7S R
BMER - ZEF QA BATEZR
HERETEEERBRITES
il o B AR AR R R AT
BEE A T S FE SR B m Al ATE
BEIEBRERAKEZ KB A
Tt 1% &5 18 - M20165 12731
H - $IEEEARKS77,0007T
#2021 F 1 -

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement HEMBMRKRNEER
of financial position
2016 2015
201645 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTIT
Net deferred tax assets RERE AR R IER
recognised in the consolidated HIERERI IR & R A
statement of financial position 18,334 8,639
Net deferred tax liabilities KRB AR R RER
recognised in the consolidated RYEERIE B (5558
statement of financial position (129,670) (40,204)
(111,336) (31,565)
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

As Guangzhou Consun is wholly owned by
the Company, the Company can control the
payments of dividends by Guangzhou Consun.
According to the Group’s plan and intention of
reinvesting its earnings in its PRC business, it
will not distribute any earnings of Guangzhou
Consun and its PRC subsidiaries generated after
1 January 2014 in the foreseeable future. As at
31 December 2016, the Group has undistributed
earnings of the PRC subsidiaries totaling
RMB777,131,000 (2015: RMB449,328,000) which
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the Company has not provided
for the related deferred tax liabilities on the
undistributed earnings of the PRC subsidiaries
totaling RMB77,713,000 as at 31 December 2016
(2015: RMB44,933,000).

24 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS
(a) Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
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23

24

mEMBRRRANAER (&)

(d)

RERKBELERERE :

HRENEERARARIZENA -
ARAR A EMNERARE X
1 o IRIRANGE E A H A B 2 75
WBMNBRENGTERER - AR
AIFERNRRETSIREEMNEE
REFABEKBARR2014F1 /18
BEENTMAT - R20165F12
H318 - AEEEFREBHE A A
RA]FE R RN EIRER RS
fic &2 ) 4 55 = A R #777,131,000
7L (20154 : A K #449,328,000
J0) e Bt ARRWARFEEFEH
M B A A& =2016F12A31H &
ROBEBAFHEABELETIES
Bzt AR¥77,713,0007T (2015
F : AR#44,933,0007T) °

BEX - RERKEE

(a)

REARBONES

AEE G A RN S EARBHR
240 R AR A 2 RO SRR BB
ARRBD % - AR FEAOE)
HAREH R F R R 2 P
HEBATX



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 24

(B HE0R5 -
X REREE (F)

IAARESITR)

(a) Movement in components of equity (Continued) (a) HERAKBONEH ()
The Company
ARR
Treasury
shares
held under Other
Share Share Other Capital Share Award treasury Retained
capital premium reserves reserve Scheme shares earnings Total
ERGED
FEETHEE
BA& R EE Rl EXitE  NEERG EtEERG REEF @ct
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®Tr ARETR ARETR AR¥TR AR%TR ARETR AR%T:n
note 24(c)  note 24(d)(i) note 24(d)(iv) note 24(d)(iii) note 22(b)(i)  note 24(c)(i)
Wizkod(c)  BizE24(d)(i) PEE24(d)(iv) PiEE24(d)(il)  MEEE22(b)(i)  FHEE24(c)(i)
At 1 January 2015 R2015%1A18 78,250 684,601 356,472 47,633 (45,359) - 11,354 1,132,951
Purchase of own shares FRBEE RN
during the year - - - - - (8,840) - (8,840)
Cancellation of shares during £ #RA
ihe year (176) (8,664) - E - 8,840 - -
Dividends approved and paid  #:/4 RIS = (28,000) = = = = = (28,000)
Employees’ Share Option EEERETE
Scheme - - - 34,762 - - - 34,762
Shares purchased under the  7ERk(A &2E)EHEE T
Share Award Scheme AEERD - - - - (44,638) - - (44,638)
Shares granted under the 1A BN EE T
Share Award Scheme RT ki - - - 556 - - - 556
Total comprehensive income  £RZARFEE
for the year - - - - - - (3,004) (3,004)
At 31 December 2015and 1 2015E12831B K
January 2016 2016F1 A1H 78,074 647,937 356,472 82,951 (89,997) - 8,350 1,083,787
Purchase of own shares FREERFRH
during the year - - - - - (81,132) - (81,132)
Cancellation of shares during £/ #4513
ihe year (1,837) (79,295) - - - 81,132 - -
Dividends approved and paid ~ #t R ({8 - (114512) = = = = = (114512)
Employees’ Share Option EERRE2
Scheme - - - 21,590 - - - 21,590
Shares vested under the R REEEET
Share Award Scheme BENRD - - - (1,355) 1,355 - - -
Shares granted under the TR REEEET
Share Award Scheme R 6k - - - 904 - - - 904
Total comprehensive income  £R2ENHEE
for the year - - - - - - (19,937) (19,937)
At 31 December 2016 20165124318 76,237 454,130 356,472 104,090 (88,642) - (11,587) 890,700
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 24 ¥E%&-RERKRE (&)

(b) Dividends b) KE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders () FAENERAERRRLY
of the Company attributable to the year BRE
2016 2015
20165 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Interim dividend declared EEIR &R
and paid of RMB0.045 HREAR B B AR E B R
per ordinary share AR#0.0457T
(2015: nil) (2015%F : #&) 42,942 -
Final dividend proposed FREBERZHRARKRE
after the end of the year B EAL
of HK$0.05 per ordinary 0.05% 7T (20154 :
share (2015: RMB0.075) AR¥0.0757T) 36,599 74,119
Special dividend proposed — ER{EEFHEL
after the end of the year 15 RIIA% B T AR T m AR
of HK$0.1 per ordinary 0.1%7T
share (2015: nil) (20154 : &) 73,198" 5
152,739 74,119
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b) Dividends (Continued)

U]

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the year
(Continued)

i On 6 February 2017, the Company
entered into a share buy-back
agreement with First Kind International
Limited (“First Kind”) pursuant to which
the Company agreed to buy back
146,140,200 shares (the “Buy-back
Shares”) at the total consideration
of approximately HK$560,740,000
(equivalent to approximately
RMB546,126,000), equivalent to
HK$3.837 per each Buy-back Share
and the Buy-back Shares would be
cancelled in full (the “Share Buy-back”).
On 6 February 2017, the directors of
the Group proposed a special dividend
of HK$0.1 per share in the aggregate
amount of approximately HK$82,813,000
(approximately RMB73,198,000), which
is subject to the completion of the Share
Buy-back. The Share Buy-back and
the distribution of special dividend are
subject to the approval by disinterested
shareholders at the forthcoming
extraordinary general meeting of the

Company.

As the proposed record date for
determining the entitlement of equity
shareholders of the Company to the final
dividend and the special dividend will
be a date after completion of the Share
Buy-back, the amounts of final dividend
and special dividend proposed had
excluded the dividend for the Buy-back
Shares.

e P BHmRMEE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEI - UARKEIIR)

24 EBX- FEERE (2)
(b) KRE (&)

(i) FERENE L ez KRR
BE (&)

@ g MW2017%2H6H -
A A &\ HEFirst Kind
International Limited
([First Kind]) &]
SRR GDEE R &
bt AARREEE
146,140,2008% % 17
(B E RG] 2K
B A& #9560,740,000
BTHERODAR
#546,126,0007T)
B E R AR S E R 5
3.837/ 7T+ i [ AR
D2 T AEE ([
7B E]) o R20174F
2AGH AEBEF
EHERBEEHIIRES
‘o1& T A& H K
82,813,000/ 7T (X3 A
R %%173 198,0007T) °
BERMEBTRER
AEE o RIPEER KD
R R RR B9 E A R
mEARRRE N AR TR
RITH R R EFRAE
ERUE - AR -

HREEEEANETER
RN B REFRIR S 2
IR 2w E e A HER R
MIEE K 2 & - REIRE
KRR B £ 82 HBk Tﬁﬁ
B % 17 YA 8.
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(RSEIEAIN  AARETITR)
24 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 24 E&X - f#ERRE (&)
(b) Dividends (Continued) (b) BE (&)

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders () FRAENERAERRRLY

of the Company attributable to the year BRE (&)

(Continued)

Final dividend and special dividend FREEZH R RIFRIR
proposed after the end of the year have BEUTERFREERRE
not been recognised as liabilities as at the & °

end of the year.

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) L—HBHFEENELARE
of the Company attributable to the wBRERE  REAHE
previous financial year, approved and paid Rt
during the year

2016 2015
20165 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETTT
Final dividend in respect FRHEE R R
of the previous financial E—FEREFE R
year, approved and paid IR BT B
during the year, of AR®0.0757C
RMBO0.075 per ordinary (20154 : AR
share (2015: RMB0.028) 0.0287T) 74,119 28,000
Less: Dividends for B ANRAEIFEE
treasury shares held EETFRRHY AR B
by the Company (2,549) -
71,570* 28,000

184 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/FXSEABRAA

The Company paid a final dividend of
RMB71,570,000 for the year ended 31
December 2015 as adjusted to exclude
the dividend for treasury shares held
under the Company’s Share Award
Scheme and other treasury shares held

by the Company.

o ARAERBEHE
2015%12H31H Lk %
BzRBEEAR®E
71,570,0007T (4 # &
ETBEARRRRN E
B EETHHRER
B RARBFAEAM
EFBRARE)
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(c) Share capital

(i)

(ii)

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIEEIN - LARKETIR)
24 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 24 ¥B& - @ERKRE (&)
(c) B’=R
Issued share capital (i) ERITRE
2016 2015
2165 20155
Nominal Nominal Nominal Nominal
Number of  value of fully  value of fully Number of  value of fully  value of fully
shares  paid shares  paid shares shares  paid shares  paid shares
ki8R ARROEE HERGEE RAGE ARRAEE HRROEE
'000 HK$'000 RMB’000 000 HK$'000 RMB'000
Th TR ARETR T Thr  AR¥TR
Ordinary shares, BERTRMRERR:
issued and fully paid:
At 1 January RA1H 997,757 99,776 78,074 1,000,000 100,000 78,250
Cancellation of shares ~ EMzHARI(i)
during the year (i (23,489) (2,349) (1,837) (2,243) (224) (176)
As at 31 December #M2A31R 974,268 97,421 76,237 997,757 99,776 78,074
Repurchase and cancellation of own (i) BERIAHEESKG

shares

During the year ended 31 December
2016, 23,489,000 ordinary shares (2015:
2,243,000 shares) were repurchased at the

average purchase price of HK$4.10 per
share (2015: HK$ 4.70 per share) by the
Company, all of which were cancelled as

at 31 December 2016.

B 20165128318 It &
B ARRNFEHBEES
B%4.107%8 7T (20154 « Bi%
4.707% Jt) ## [2123,489,000
gk & B & (2015% :
2,243,0008%) « &L 2R
2016512 431 A4 o
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
AARKEIITR)
CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(BR=FEHEHIN

24

186 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/FXSEABRAA

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the
difference between the par value of the
shares of the Company and proceeds
received from the issuance of the shares
of the Company.

Under the Companies Law (Revised)
of the Cayman lIslands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial information
of operations with functional currency
other than RMB.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion
of the grant date fair value of unexercised
share options granted to employees of
the Company that has been recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note

1(s)(ii).

24

BEX - RERKRE (&)
RENEERAR

(d)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BRGwE

B @ B AN A R i 5 E B
B 7 3177 AR B B Uk ER Y
FifSsRI8 2 MR =58 ©

RERSHEARE (K&
71) 0 AR ARG EE RS
MESAHYIKTARAR
R HEEHERESRKKEE
Bi& - ARBKBEBRENE
EEN B ERBRS D H
HER

ELFE

EXFEREREUARRE
LASMNEOTh B & 6 51 (B ) 275
BET 18 & B R E A I P S
MEZERR

N1

BRI AR BT EE1(s) (i)
FAIABR A7 73 EE B8 B 15 SR P R
MZEHHE  RETAR
AR BMARITERERED
AROFELHBHRRIAEZE
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Other reserves

The other reserves of the Group represent
the difference between (a) the nominal
value of share capital of Guangzhou
Consun; and (b) the nominal value of
the shares issued by the Company in
exchange under the reorganisation of the
Group completed on 24 December 2012.

PRC statutory reserves

Pursuant to the articles of association
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries now
comprising the Group, appropriations to
the PRC statutory reserves were made
at a certain percentage of profit after
taxation determined in accordance with
the accounting rules and regulations
of the PRC, until the PRC statutory
reserves was equal to 50% of the entity’s
registered capital. The percentage for this
appropriation was decided by the directors
of the respective subsidiaries. This
reserve fund can be utilised in setting off
accumulated losses or increasing capital
of the subsidiaries and is non-distributable
other than in liquidation.

During 2016, Guangzhou Consun and
Yulin Pharmaceutical transferred 10%
of their net profit of RMB898,000 and
RMB6,978,000 to the PRC statutory
reserves. The PRC statutory reserves
balances of Inner Mongolia Consun had
reached 50% of their registered capital,
and no further appropriation was made for
the year ended 31 December 2016. Other
PRC subsidiaries of the Group had made
losses during 2016 or had accumulated
losses, no appropriation was made
accordingly.

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

24 EBX- FEERE (2)
(d) RENMERRR (&)

(iv)

(v)

Rl

REERNEMEEZE T
MEZHERZERE : (a)BMER
ERANEE: Rb)AEA
A 1R & 2012412 A24H
FERM AN EBEHRFTETH
TER MR DE(E °

B EE EE

BEBEREERRETSHE
BB A R ARG IR M E
AEBECKEBETRES L
KERBEOB B REFHE
88 5t A R R 1R
ERBZ BEERBRETMH
BHENREBIMELD
50% ° BRI B 7 LA
BB ARIMNESET - %
EESATAREENE AR
B RFTEEBRIEE - R
ARDIR OBERERIN)

20165 - EMEE R E
MER B E AR S R A A
R #898,0007T & A R #
6,978,0007T #J10%% A
BUEERE - RELRER
FEETEREESHRDERHE
it B A 8950% ¢+ B R
E Z£201612831H It F
[N MR L — PR o K
EEMEAF HHB R RN
2016F B BB B K BT S
B R EER R -
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

24  CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at
a reasonable cost.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio.
For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as
total debt (which includes interest-bearing loans
and borrowings) less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity. The Group did not have any adjusted net
debt as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

During the year, the Group’s strategy was
to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio at a
level considered reasonable by the Group’s
management from time to time with reference
to the prevailing market conditions. In order
to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity
shareholders, issue new shares or raise new debt
financing.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.
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X RERKRE (&)

(e)

ErERl
AEEEREANTERAMNREE
HESBEEmees - fimE s
B B IR RE R AR KT AR E an B R
BEE - KBNS EKANEG
BMEMABERBRIRHER LA
HipMes AR E R M o

AEBZBEHBFEHFRERLL
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AERERRER) BESEESE
BIEE - KABREABREERNA
BHEMKE D o & B R20165F &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in the

normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s

exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group

to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade receivables are
due within 30-90 days from the date of billing.
Debtors with balances that are more than 12
months past due are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

25

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

MBEREERMBTIANDRE

AEEARENAERRBRAETELNE
ERnBETRR AKERMEHNZSE
e fen B 7 = T AR DA BB 3 o S R O B 75 R
BREEBR RERIF AT o

(a)

FERR

AEENEERRIEREES R
HtEWIE - ERECHEEE
MEERR  TARBEEZERE
ERBOEE

HESREMEKFIEMS + A%
EeHmEERET—E2BEE
WEFETEREET G - ZET
HEERFPBEIEENGCEIUR
EAMEREN  YEEEERE
FLARE P& &ML EIREN
TER - BHRUGFEER LIRS
HEI# 530 —90H W EIHY » R K
BB 12EANESARE
BRARERESS  HUEEEM
E—SEE- —HBms A£EET
TUREFRHEMERG -
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=FEHEHIN

AARESIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. As at 31 December
2015 and 2016, 28% and 25% of the total trade
receivables were due from the Group’s largest
customer and 45% and 45% of the total trade
receivables were due from the five largest
customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s financial liabilities (exclude
receipts in advance), which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed at contracted rates)
and the earliest date the Group can be required

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

BHEBREERVETANARE (&)

(b)

nRBESRR (&)

TRIAXREEN SR EE (BRE
WRFRIN) MAHE B RORIR A
W DIRBAOARMRASRE
(BREEAONXFENFE M)
EASEABENZRERHZY

to pay:
At 31 December 2016
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
R2016%12A31H
BARFTRRER
More than
1 year but
Within 1 year less than Carrying
or on demand 5 years Total amount
BE1F
1ERFERER B R5F @t REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
Trade and other payables &5 NEMENZIAE 472,577 307 472,884 472,884
At 31 December 2015
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
72015% 124310
BRRFTRRE ML
More than
1 year but
Within 1 year less than Carrying
or on demand 5 years Total amount
BB1F
TERNRIRER BOR5E @t REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AEEFT AREFT AREFT
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFIAE 199,959 - 199,959 199,959
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group does not have significant exposure
to interest rate risk as it does not expect interest
rate fluctuation would have any significant impact
on the fair value or cash flows of its cash and
bank deposits held as at 31 December 2016.

(d) Currency risk

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out
in the PRC, the Group’s transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi, which is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must
take place through the People’s Bank of China
or other institutions authorised to buy and sell
foreign exchange. The exchange rates adopted
for the foreign exchange transactions are the
rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank
of China that are determined largely by supply
and demand.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
give rise to cash balances that are denominated
in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than
the functional currency of the operations to which
the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise
to this risk are primarily Hong Kong dollars.
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5=EEEH - UAREITR)

25 HBEBREERMBETIANQAE(E)

Currency risk (Continued) (d) EXEm@EK (&)
Exposure to currency risk ET# 19 & e
The following table details the Group’s and the TRV AREE RAR RN E
Company’s exposure at the end of reporting MAERBAAINEERERR  %F
period to currency risk arising from recognised B R DEAABBEER 26k
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency BRI EEIEN D BREE
other than the functional currency of the entity SEEMESL - SE2HRMS - R
to which they relate. For presentation purposes, EEFBAAREYIR - WAFLEH
the amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB RIBNEADE R0 E o A INEI T
translated using the spot rate at the period end U BHRERBEKAER Z2RHEE
date. Differences resulting from the translation of MELNEBELIR -
the financial statements of foreign operations into
the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.
Exposure to foreign currencies
S L B
(expressed in Renminbi)
(AARESIR)
2016 2015
20165 2015%F
Hong Kong Hong Kong
Dollars Dollars
BT BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR¥ETTT
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEHEER 7,948 2,040

The Group had no significant foreign exchange
exposure as at 31 December 2016, as the
cash and cash equivalents held by the Group
denominated in the currency other than Renminbi
was insignificant.

HRAEEFEFUARBLIINNE
BEENRSRREFEEEMT
Tl WA B R20165F12H31
H LR E ARIMNE R B
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e) Fair Value

(i) Financial instruments and liabilities
measured at fair value

At 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015, the Company has no financial
instruments accounted for using fair value
model.

(ii)  Fair value of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amount of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost were not materially different
from their fair value as at 31 December
2016 and 31 December 2015 except
for the unlisted available-for-sale equity
securities whose fair value cannot be
measured reliably.

26 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December
2016 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements were as follows:

25

26

BHRBREERVETANARE (&)

(e) Ny
(1)
(2
BARESE

BAREEHHBETAR
B

MR2016F 12 A31H Kk20154F
128318 » AR AI &%
TERBARERERXAR -

HURREUNT IR £
HEERBEALE

BRAfENRER] SRt 2/93E
WA EERAREF N
AN - RS BR K A ok SH K
AYEMEe/m T AERAAE
2 H R2016F12H318 &
2015F12A31B WA /4 &
WEEAESR -

R2016F12A31B W A E LA B IFmE

BENRBITERAENT

2016 2015

20165 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARBFIT

Contracted for REEY 20,989 3,776
Authorised but not contracted for EHEBRETD 4,682 4,320
Total 25,671 8,096
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AN =
e MR MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEI - UARKEIIR)

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 EXBABALIXRS
Key management personnel remuneration FTEEEAEME
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEETZERAESNNE  BERAER
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s AIEE X MHFRIE (WA 6T EE) A KR
directors as disclosed in note 6 and certain of the METHEeEHES TFIE (M7
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 7, is as WER) HylmT
follows:
2016 2015
2016%F 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥ETIT
Salaries and other benefits e RHEAET 22,625 19,961
Retirement scheme of defined FEHFGRIRETE
contribution 101 95
Equity settled share-based LARS #E A5 B0 ARG D B
payment expenses R 12,178 23,100
34,904 43,156

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
4(b)).

None of the above related party transactions falls under
the definition of connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

RSt A TEIRA] A (RMEE4(b))

BELAEBT B ETRAIFI4AE
FIRENBER HUFFEMER S -
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br=HEHEBIN  AAREDITR)

28 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical
accounting judgments in applying the Group’s
accounting policies are described below.

(a) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual value.

The Group reviews annually the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any. The
depreciation expense for future years is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous
estimation.

(b) Impairments

(i) In considering the impairment losses that
may be required for certain property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayments,
recoverable amount of these assets needs
to be determined. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the net selling price and
the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate selling price because quoted
market prices for these assets may not be
readily available. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgment
relating to items such as level of revenue
and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as revenue and
operating costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BERBEN - UARETITR)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 28 &&Hfhat R (42)
(Continued)
(b)  Impairments (Continued) (b) RME (&)
(i)  Impairment losses for doubtful debts (i REREBBERESTEHAR
are assessed and provided based on A EREC DT R AT B 2 E
the directors’ regular review of ageing AT T AT A AT R4 o
analysis and evaluation of collectability. BEEETHESERNEFHE
A considerable level of judgment is FART AR B 38 1 We B AL % 5 F
exercised by the directors when assessing A= I -
the credit worthiness and past collection
history of each individual customer.
An increase or decrease in the above L UR (B B 18 B (AR S
impairment losses would affect the net R ERRFERE LN FF
profit or loss in future years. fE1E -
COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 29 AT EE AR R ER
POSITION
2016 2015
2016 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR%T ARETTT
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment in subsidiaries RETBARRIRE 15 342,444 342,444
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 342,444 342,444
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables 25 N EH A EW IR 521,326 353,276
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEFMEER 39,812 401,185
Total current assets REBEERE 561,138 754,461
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables Hfh e~ FkE 12,882 13,118
Net current assets REBEEZE 548,256 741,343
Total assets less current liabilities ZREERBABARG 890,700 1,083,787
Capital and reserves EXRFEE 24(a)
Share capital & A 76,237 78,074
Reserves e 814,463 1,005,713
Total equity XA 890,700 1,083,787
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198 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EEX/FESEBRAA

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Save as otherwise disclosed in note 15(d) and note
24(b)(i), on 17 March 2017, the Group signed a
commitment letter with BNP Paribas, acting through
its Hong Kong Branch (the “Lender”), pursuant to
which the Lender conditionally (conditions include but
not limited to the signing of formal facility documents)
agreed to grant the Company a three year term loan
facility of up to HK$560,000,000.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2016 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEI - UARKEIIR)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 31 HZX20165F12A31H L FECHEME

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED i AREMNIEET - FHEARZRENE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR EEE (E)

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT5B#sLE
BN E TR £
Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
BRI ERETRER N HenExk - %KFE:Z 2017F1A1H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred 1 January 2017
tax assets for unrealised losses
BEGAERFAREI N - FrEH - HRERBEXLBEL 175 EERIER 2017F1A1H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
ERNBRELERNESE 2@ T A 20181 H1H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
ERUMBRELERNENS - KEHEELZT LI EAHIHA 2018F1A1H
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and 1 January 2018
measurement of share-based payment transactions
BERMBWELRBIREFTR - URGBERHITH - URGBERTH 20181 A1H
PR E
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
BEMBHMELRNE165 - HE 2019F1A1H
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed
its assessment, further impacts may be identified
in due course and will be taken into consideration
when determining whether to adopt any of these new
requirements before their effective date and which
transitional approach to take, where there are alternative
approaches allowed under the new standards.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on
accounting for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement. HKFRS
9 introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement of financial assets, calculation of
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.
On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without
substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for
recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
and the classification of financial liabilities. Expected
impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s
financial statements are as follows:
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) as follows:

- The classification for debt instruments
is determined based on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt
instrument is classified as FVTOCI then
effective interest, impairments and gains/
losses on disposal will be recognised in
profit or loss.

- For equity securities, the classification is
FVTPL regardless of the entity’s business
model. The only exception is if the equity
security is not held for trading and the
entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security
is designated as FVTOCI then only
dividend income on that security will be
recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses
and impairments on that security will be
recognised in other comprehensive income
without recycling.

Based on the preliminary assessment, the
Group expects that its financial assets currently
measured at amortised cost and FVTPL will
continue with their respective classification and
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.
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31 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Classification and measurement (Continued)

The classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely
unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS
9 requires the fair value change of a financial
liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable
to changes of that financial liability’s own credit
risk to be recognised in other comprehensive
income (without reclassification to profit or loss).
The Group currently does not have any financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL and therefore this
new requirement may not have any impact on the
Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces
the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with
an “expected credit loss” model. Under the
expected credit loss model, it will no longer be
necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity
is required to recognise and measure expected
credit losses as either 12-month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses,
depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may
result in an earlier recognition of credit losses on
the Group’s trade receivables and other financial
assets. However, a more detailed analysis is
required to determine the extent of the impact.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standards,
HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting
for revenue from construction contracts. The Group is
currently assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS 15
on its financial statements. Based on the preliminary
assessment, the Group has identified the following
areas which are likely to be affected:

(a) Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in note 1(v). Currently, revenue from
the sale of goods is generally recognised when
the risks and rewards of ownership have passed
to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when
the customer obtains control of the promised
good or service in the contract. HKFRS 15
identifies 3 situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s performance, as
the entity performs;
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31 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(i) When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced;

(iii) ~ When the entity’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to
the entity and the entity has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these 3 situations, then under
HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the
sale of that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the
indicators that will be considered in determining
when the transfer of control occurs.

As a result of this change from the risk-and-reward
approach to the contract-by-contract transfer-of-control
approach, it is possible that once the Group
adopts HKFRS 15 some of the Group’s contracts
the point in time when revenue is recognised
may be earlier or later than under the current
accounting policy. However, further analysis is
required to determine whether this change in
accounting policy may have a material impact
on the amounts reported in any given financial
reporting period.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the
transaction price for the time value of money
when a contract contains a significant financing
component, regardless of whether the payments
from customers are received significantly in
advance or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such a
policy when payments are significantly deferred,
which is currently not common in the Group’s
arrangements with its customers. Currently,
the Group does not apply such a policy when
payments are received in advance.

The Group is in the process of assessing whether
this component in the Group’s advance payment
schemes would be significant to the contract and
therefore whether, once HKFRS 15 is adopted,
the transaction price would need to be adjusted
for the purposes of recognising revenue.

Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to
return the products, the Group estimates the
level of returns and makes an adjustment against
revenue and cost of sales.

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15
will not materially affect how the Group recognises
revenue and cost of sales when the customers have
a right of return. However, the new requirement
to recognise separately a return asset for the
products expected to be returned will impact
the presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the Group currently adjusts
the carrying amounts of inventory for the expected
returns, instead of recognising a separate asset.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(l), currently the Group classifies
leases into operating leases and account for the lease
arrangements according to the nature of the lease. The
Group enters into some leases as the lessor and others
as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16
is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to
practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee
will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use”
asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability,
the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on
the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can
elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less)
and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases for properties, plant and
equipment which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model
is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and
liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease.

The Group is considering whether to adopt HKFRS 16
before its effective date of 1 January 2019. However,
early adoption of HKFRS 16 is only permitted if this is
no earlier than the adoption of HKFRS 15. It is therefore
unlikely that HKFRS 16 will be adopted before the
effective date of HKFRS 15, being 1 January 2018.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T FEHERE

The Company was incorporated on 13 December 2010 and
became the holding company of the subsidiaries through a
reorganization in preparation of the listing of the Company’s
shares on the main board of the Stock Exchange on 24
December 2012. The consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2012 have been

prepared as if the Group had been in existence throughout the

years presented, or since the respective dates of incorporation
or establishment of the group companies.

AN A M R2010F12 8138 @ 2012
FI2A24BBBEHEAKNASTHBERRIMIZERA
A LEBARARRMDERBAZFAER LT - A&
EH E£2012F 128318 It FEMNGRE M BHE
MREHIAEERFTESFESXBEBRRF
B B S sk sz B HIRR —E R FE ©

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
2016%F 20154 20144 20134 20124
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’'000
ARETR AREBTT AR®ETT ARKTT ARETT
Revenue WA 1,223,488 831,108 730,683 571,765 457,801
Gross Profit EAH 911,023 670,566 571,767 452,234 346,689
Profit before taxation 5t Bl i A 403,452 314,782 264,159 210,462 179,062
Income tax FriS i 83,795 65,093 52,959 57,580 42 856
Profit for the year F N F 319,657 249,689 211,200 152,882 136,206
Earnings per share AR
(expressed in RMB Yuan (AERARE T
per share) SI7R)
— basic — HAK 0.32 0.25 0.21 0.20 0.18
— diluted — e 0.32 0.25 0.21 0.20 0.18
Assets and liabilities LENEE
Non-current assets EMENEE 1,369,050 957,703 266,412 264,256 200,949
Current assets TMENE E 1,390,005 960,188 1,396,529 1,192,689 445,058
Current liabilities nEBE 546,731 229,350 178,247 150,115 260,347
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 151,273 51,786 51,508 49,466 30,482
Net assets BEFE 2,061,051 1,636,755 1,433,186 1,257,364 355,178
Capital and reserves BARRFEE
Share Capital & 7K 76,237 78,074 78,250 78,250 1
Reserves 1 1,684,257 1,558,681 1,354,936 1,179,114 355,177
Non-controlling interests IR 2 300,557 - - - -
Total equity B 2,061,051 1,636,755 1,433,186 1,257,364 355,178

The summary above does not form

consolidated financial statements.

part of the audited
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